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Financial Summary

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2005 2006 Percent Change

!
Revenue $4.437 $8.162 84%
Operating income 8og 1,274 58
Net income 460 572 24
Net income per share — diluted 1.13 1.39 23
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Revenue Operating Income RevPAR
(in millions) (in millions) {comparable domestic owned hotels)

$157

$144

$128

$118
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Dear Fellow Shareholders:
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For an organization with the long and storied history of Hilton Hotels Corporation, 10 years is but

a blink of an eye. It is remarkable, then, to reflect on o
mation that has taken place in that relatively short time
accomplishment, growth and value creation unsurpasse

Consider: Acquisitions of Bally"s (and the subsequ

Promus, Hilton International and individual hotel pro

ur company's last decade and the transfor-

|
span. This period has seen a level of activity,

d in Hjlton's history,

ent spirh—off of our gaming business},

|
perties that fundamentally changed the

. . i .
complexion of our company. The transformation from a company focused on a few hotel-casinos

and big hotels in the US to a worldwide enterprise encom

passing approximately 80 countries.

Moving from 275 hotels to more than 2,900 around t}le world. Expanding from a single brand

(albeit the most renowned in the werld) to a collection
broad range of travelers. An emphasis on asset ownersh
ment and franchise fees. The development of a thriving
" most important, the building of the financial and hum:

to emerge as the world's premier lodging company.

of nine respected brand names serving a
ip thatlhas given way to a focus on manage-

 vacation ownership business. And, perhaps
|

| R
an resource strength that has enabled Hilton

Consider this one last fact in thinking about the bo

Hilton's market capita]iiation was $3.5 billion; at year-

ttom line...shareholder value: in 1995,

nd 2C:)06. it was $13.5 billion. Adjusting for

spin-offs and stock splits, the value of the company’s stock incrfeased 240 percent during this period.
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The power of our brands, our presence in the world’s
most in-demand markets, our financial resources,
the strength of our systems and the experience of our

team members give us a leg up on the competition.

e S l“;nr
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AMERICAS

1 Doubletree Hotel

That was then...let's talk about today, and tomorrow. Memphis Downtown

We spent the last 10 years creating this leadership position; now, both our challenge and our 2 Hilton Los Cabos
b
R Beach & Golf Resort
opportunity is to build on it. Our strategy is to continue growing our fee-based business by expand- ‘ d
3 Hilton Waikoloa Village *

ing the number of our hotels and our hotel brands in new and existing markets both domestically
4 The Beverly Hilton®

and internationally, while maintaining a strong balance sheet. The power of our brands, the « Hilion New York
worldwide respect afforded the Hilton name, our presence in the world's most in-demand markets, '
our financial resources, the strength of our systems and the talent and experience of our 105,000

teamn members give us a leg up on the competition.

Toward a Fee-Based Model

We have been steadily moving to a more fee-based business model by adding new units, increasing
revenue-per-available-room (RevPAR) at our hotels and selling previously owned assets while
retaining management or franchise agreements. Qur fee business grew 51 percent in 2006 from a
combination ofadding new units, growing RevPAR and the Hilton International acquisition.
Supplementing this growth was the sale and retention of management or franchise fees of 11 hotels,

including properties in London, Teronto, Minneapolis, Phoenix and Montreal.




IN 2006, GUESTS AT HILTON HOTEL

6.384.
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GLOBAL ROOM DISTRIBUTION®
h

Hampton Inn 28% \
Scandic 5% |
" Conrad 1% !
Doubletree g% ’

Hilton Garden Inn 8%
Homewood Syites byiHihon 4%
Waldorf-Astoriia Collection 1%
Embassy Suites 9% |

‘

]
Hilton Grand|Vacations 1%

Hilton 34%

*at 12/31/06

Qur strength in brand developinent and hotel mana, emeint is not easily duplicated and will
gt P geme! y dup

enable us to continue growing this very profitable part of our %:ompany. Of additional note is that
Wall Street historically places a premium on fee-based compar'xies. assigning higher trading
multiples to hotel operators than to hotel owners. '

While our strategic focus is on fee growth and selling many of the hotlels we currently own
(keeping franchise or management .agreeincnts, as we 17 entior‘led above), we intend to remain an
owner of particularly important hotel properties. This group of approximately 10 hotels can be
thought of a;s "brand builders,” those that are espeu;:ia]ly impox:‘tam to the Hilton brand and which
continue to possess attractive supply-demand characteristics. l:rreplaceable properties in New York

|
City, Hawaii and Chicago fit this profile.

Growing Brands Globally !

This is the cornerstone of our fee-growth strategy. We wrote 1&1 last year's annual report that "our
prospects know no boundaries.” Our accomplishments in 20b6 and opportunities in the years
ahcad bear this out. Ii
Two of the hottest markets and economies in the world are China and India. We moved quickly

in 2006 to secure deals with highly respected and well-financed partners in both countries to

i
)
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The presence of the Hilton brand in countries

around the world —in some cases 3o0-plus years
—1is a great competitive advantage. Developers
} | and travelers alike, in all corners of the:world,

know and respect the name "Hilton.”

introduce our mid-seale brands to a traveling public hungry for quality, affordable lodging in these ASIA

regions. Our plans call for an initial 25 properties in China and 75 in India. In addition, we 1 Hilton Beijing

2 Hilton Maldives Resort & Spa

debuted the first Hilton Garden Inn properties in Italy and Germany, as well as announcing plans H&ngu!i lsland

for new Doubletree hotels in China, Thailand and Costa Rica. Also in 2006 and early 2007, we 3 Hilton Sydney
opened or announced plans for new Hilton hotels in London, the Seychelles, Dublin, Warsaw, 4 Millennium Hilton Bangkok
Hefei (China), Sicily, Kuwait and Liverpool. 5 Trident Hitton

. Gurgaon, fndia
The presence of the Hilion brand in these and other countries around the world —in some

cases 30-plus years —is a great competitive advantage. Developers and travelers alike, in all corners
of the world, know and respect the name "Hilton,” a fact that will enable us to enter into a signifi-
cant number of agreements and maximize the performance of these new hotels once they are open.

Our international development strategy is to be "fast, focused and flexible.” We are org:fmized to
take full advantage of new opportunities; concentrate on ‘a seleet number of particularly appealing
markets, including the United Kingdom, Spain, Germany, Italy, Qatar, United Arab Emirates, |
India, Russia, China, Australia and Japan, in addition to the United States; and tailor our mid-

scale brands to suit the individual tastes, styles and needs of travelers in those countries.

Unit growth in the US and North America continues to be strong across the Hilton Family of

Brands. In 2006, we added 223 hotels to our system, most of them in the United States. Hilton




IN 2006, THE WALDORF=ASTORIA COLLECTION SCHEDULED

w 7529,@@{2 ,
soothing spa
lreatments

TRLDORAF=ASTORIA
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Garden [nn properties and Hampton Inns continue to ¢

saw significant expansion among all our brands—Hilton

comprise the majority of this growth, but we

Doubletree, Embassy Suites, Homewood

Suites by Hilton and Conrad. In 2006 and early 2007, new Hilton hotels opened in Kauai

(Hawaii}, Boston, 5t. Louis and at Baltimore/Washingto

North America in Birmingham (Alabama), Anaheim, Da

n Ajrp'ort, with new Doubletree hotels in

las, Q_Lgbec and at New York's JFK Airport.

{ .
Our development pipeline continues to be the strorlxgest ofany US lodging company (775

. ]
hotels and more than 110,000 rooms at year-end 2006) and is growing daily as our brands remain

the brands-of-choice for hotel owners. No one in ouri

have added 1.000 hotels to our system, and expect to ad

| . . .
ndustry is growing faster. Since 2000, we
I

d anotl'ler 900 (with 120,000 rooms) in

th;z three years beginning 2007. An increasingly larger percemiage of these openings will be outside

. . o . .
the US in the years ahead. When compared with our competitors, we are just getting started on

|
international expansion in the mid-priced segment, but therein lies our opportunity...and we are

prepared to move rapidly 1o exploit it.

Leading the Way in a Strong Environment
It is clear that one of the dynamics helping fuel our
industry. Demand among business and leisure travelers

strongest we've seen since 2000. These trends, which ar

growth is the current state of the lodging

n the United States, Europe and Asia is the

e expected to continue into 2007, have

i
?
i
|
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Our performance in respected consumerisurveys

!
confirms that we are doing what's necessary and

important to tend to the needs of our customers.

boosted travel té markets like New York, Hawaii, Chicago, London and Paris. As a result, we

experienced strong RevPAR gains in these and other markets in 2006. Many of our hotels in the US
markets in particular are operating at occupancy levels in the high 80 percent range with room rates
at all-time highs. This strong demand in New York and Hawaii is especially important since thase
two markets account for roughly 17 percent of our total profits.

As the hotel industry becomes increasingly competitive, and worldwide expansion more
impertant to our long-term success, enhancing the strength and profile of our brands is a high
priority in the years ahead.

Nowhere is this more important than \.yith our flagship Hilton brand. New product, service and
marketing initiatives were introduced in 2006 and will continue in 2007 and beyond. In addition
to the introduction of new fitness centers and guestroom amenities, many of our most prominent
hotels have undergone ma‘j.or refurbishments, including the Hilton New York, Waldorf=Astoria® and
Hilton Hawaiian Village® Hilton owners throughout the US have invested approxirr;ately $1 billion in
the physical product, resulting in the renovation of nearly 150 Hilton hotels arcund the country.

"Sponsorship of the US Olympic Team in the 2006 Winter Olympics and 2008 Summer
Olympics, the Association of Volleyball Professionals and big events such as the Grammy Awards® is

further enhancing the profile of the world’s most Fecognized hotel brand.

UNITED KINGDOM
AND IRELAND

) Ca;ledonian Hilton Edinburgh
2 London Hilton on Park Lane

3 Hilton London Tower Bridge

47?:1& Trafalgar

5Gdlvin at Windows. London
Hilton on Park Lane



IN 2006, HILTOK GARDEN INN SERVED
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Our proprietary OnQ™ technology system, already|in place in our 2,400-plus US hotels, is

being installed in our international properties, solidify
use of technology to better serve our customers.
These and other initiatives have resulted in signific

customer satisfaction scores throughout our worldwide

ng our industry leadership position in the

antly improved quality assurance and

system% Our performance in respected

. I .
consumer surveys confirms that we are doing what's necessary and important to tend to the needs of

our customers. In 2006, Hilton Garden Inn notched i

ts fifthlconsecutive #1 ranking from J.D.
! ;

Power. In addition, the Hilton Family of Brands collectively reiceived the highest score in the

University of Michigan's American Consumer Satisfaction Ind;ex {ACSI). We have been first, or tied

for ﬁrs_t, in five of the past seven years in the ACSI rankings.

A new and aggressive push in the growing luxury category <I)f the industry is another important

initiative going forward. Our Conrad brand, already one of thjc most respected brands in Asia with

fabulous properties in Hong Kong, Tokyo, Bali and Bangkok,is expanding into new Asian markets

such as Shanghai, and outside Asia into Dubai.

|
1

Extending the cachet of the world's most famous hatel nar:ne—Waldort":Astoria —we have

successfully introduced The ‘Waldorf=Astoria Collection to lu:%ury hotels in Maui, Hawaii; La

Quinta, California; Phoenix, Arizona; and Jeddah, Saudi Aralbia. Plans for new-build

Waldorf=Astoria hotels have been arnounced in Orlando, Flo?rida and Beverly Hills, California.

!
|
1
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|
. . .
An aggressive push in the luzury category is
another important initiative. We antici_;’)ate

having approximately 5o luxury hotels © m our

system by 2010.

1 e e

A r
‘We anticipate having approximately 50 luxury hotels in our system by 2010, establishing Hilton EURGPE
i
as a fofmidable worldwide competitor in this category. _ 1 Hilion Arc de Triomphe
2 Hilton Garden Inn
Bon:mAinorl
Timeshare: Proven Strategy, Great Profits 3 Hilion Prague
|
The strength and esteem of the Hilton name, coupled with a strategy of pursuing selective new 4 Hili’an Carden Inn
' HOﬁence Novoli

development in proven and desirable locations, has reaped dividends for our vacation ownership — .
5 Hilton Warsaw Hotel and
or timeshare — business, resulting in high customer satisfaction and the best rates of return Convention Centre

in the industry. _ , ‘ 5
Providing high-quality physical properties, services and amenities for our timeshare owners has
resulted in strong unit sales as well as significant increases in average sales prices. I'r? 2006, timeshare !
unit sales increased 2 percent, while average sales prices grew by 10 percent. Growth has been strong
across the board at our existing properties in Las Vegas, Orlando, Hawaii (both Waikiki and the Big
Island) and New York City.
With a full plate of new opportunities and strong demand in each of these markets, we plan to
continue the strategy of focusing on these areas for future development. In 2006, we began work on
new projects in Waikiki, adjacent to the Hilton Hawaiian Viilage; on Hawaii’s Big Island, near our

Hilton Waikoloa Village® in Orlando; and in midtown Manhattan,

' 21
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Muaintaining Our Strong Balance Sheet

A constant over the years has been our company's comm

focusing on prudent investment spending and maintenance of:a strong balance sheet. Following our

2006 all-cash acquisition of Hilton International, our

- . |
continuing to make the investments necessary to strengthcn and £row our company.

The signiﬁcapt free cash flow we are generating is be
expenditures and debt reduction. The proceeds of asset
In 2006, we sold approximately $1.5 billion of assets, wi
of the company. It is important to understand that we wi

even if we employ only our operating cash flow. Our suc

litment to a sound finanecial strategy,

'

riority has been to pay down debt while

ing cafefully carmarked both for capital
Gales his helped accelerate debt repayment.
th the proceeds going toward de-leveraging
Il be ai)le to reduce debt in a timely manner

I
cessful asset sales program —which first and

foremost helps us achieve our strategy of becoming a mor

In summary, our financial strategy, as it has been for several years, is centered on operating our

company efficiently and making prudent use of our shareholders’ capital.

e fee-based company —will get us there faster.




' s
A constant over the years has been our company’s
i

commitment to a sound financial strategy, prudent
!

investment spending and maintenance of a strong

balance sheet.

I TR Tt
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In Closing

Early 2007 saw some changes to our Board of Directors, We were terribly saddened by the passing
of Peter George, who served with ciistinction on our Bo‘ard for 10 years. Peter's insights and his
knowledge of the industry will be sorely missed, but more importantly, he will be remembered as a
great colleague and friend. We also acknowledge the retirement of Sam Young, Jr. from our Board
after 31 years of service. Matthew |. Hart, our president an;:! chief operating officer, was elected to
the Board in early 2007. Matt's contributions to cur company’s success since 1996, along with his
reputation as one of the lodging industry’s most talented al;d respected executives, make him-a
valuable addition to the Board.

[n all, 2006 was quite a year, one of the most exciting and productive ever for Hilton Hotels
Corporation. We hit tl;n.a ground running with the Hilton International acquisition, kept our eye on
our strategic initiatives and made significant progress toward all of our strategic goals. This
didn't escape the eye of Wall Street either, as the total return of Hilton wa; 46 percent during 2006,
far outperforming the S&P Hotels, Resorts and Cruise Lines Index (15 percent) and the
S&P 500 (16 percent).

While our company has been transformed over the last 10 years, one thing h_asn't changed...it's

still about creating value for our shareholders.

MIDDLE EAST
AND AFRICA

1 Hilton Seychelles Northolme
Resort & Spa

2 Hilion Dubai Jumeirah

|
3 Hilton Dahab Resort, Egypt

i
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IN 2006, GUESTS AT HILTON GRAND VACA]

239,680
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An important part of what has made the last 10 yea

company's history has been the support of our shareho

dedication of our team members around the world. With the achievements of 2006 behind us, and
the exciting prospects ahead of us, we are poised to take

previously unimagined. The next 10 years? Don't blink

Respectfully,

(Hsan. Neiza.

Barron Hilton

e

|
Stephen F. Bollenbach
Co-Chairman Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

4
|

rs suchila remarkable chapter in our

|
ders, customers and hotel owners, and the

Hiltor‘;l Hotels Corporation to heights

. You \iarouldn't want to miss it

|
|

i
|
|
i
!
|



Hilton Hotels Corporation
at a glance

brands

2,900

properties

500,000

rooms

78

countries

105,000
ream members
50
languages
50
anticipated luzury hotels by 2010
27

furst place rankings since 2000 in J.D. Power,

U of M Customer Satisfaction surveys

U

ranking of Hilton brand in Europe by J.D. Power

ranking of Hilton brand in Asia Pacific by BDRG.

Hotel Business Guest Survey
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Financial Overview
Financial results for fiscal 200§ were outstanding, with st

highlighted by a nearly g percent increase in revenue-pert

1 .
rong performances across all business segments,

ravailable-room (RevPAR) at our comparable

owned hotels worldwide, a 51 percent increase in management and franchise fees (aided by our acquisition

of Hilton International)} and a nearly 20 percent gain in ¢
making great strides in our asset sales program (while, as n

ment or franchise agreements at the sold hotels) and signi

2006 Financial Results

imeshare profitability. In addition, we continued

oted in the chairmen’s letter, retaining manage-
ﬁcantl}} reduced our debt levels.

b

Net income for 2006 was $572 million, compared to $460 million in 2005. Diluted net income per share

was $1.39 versus $1.13 in 2005, Nonrecurring items bene

Ated th!e 2006 full-year period by $.18 per share,

versus $.28 in 2005. Total operating income was $1.274 billion in 2006 (compared with $805 million in

2008) on revenue of $8.162 billion {compared with $4.4

37 billion in 2005).

Revenue from our owned hotels l:majority owned and|controlled properties) was $2.521 billion,

compared with $2.049 billion in 2005. Total revenue from comparable owned hotels was up 8 percent

from 2005. RevPAR from comparable worldwide owned hotels (I;)ro forma as if the acquisition of Hilton

International had occurred January 1, 2005) increased 8.

perceint for full-year 2006 when compared

with full-year 2005; occupancy increased 0.7 points to 76.4 perc"ent. and average daily rate showed a 7.8

percent increase to $182.73. Total owned hotel expenses i

ncreaseu‘!:l 22 percent to $1.780 billion; expenses at

the comparable owned hotels increased 7 percent. Comparable owned hotel margins (pro forma for the HI

acquisition) increased 20 basis points to 28.5 percent.

i

Pro forma system-wide RevPAR {including owned, managed ;and franchised hotels) showed a significant

9.5 percent increase, with all brands showing major RevPAR gains, driven by increases in average daily rates.

Management and franchise fees increased 5I percent

toa rec<:)rd $684 million, fueled by additions of

new units, RevPAR gains and the Hilton International acquisitioni. A total of 223 hotels with approximately

i
36,000 rooms were added to our system in 2006. At yeariend 2906, our worldwide system consisted of

2,935 properties and 501,478 rooms.

Our timeshare business, Hilton Grand Vacations Company (HGVC), had a record year with 2006

revenue of $650 million, compared with $554 million in

versus $420 million in 2005. Timeshare profitability was

2005. I;ixpenses in 2006 were $4.91 million

up 19 percent. HGVC saw a 2 percent increase in

unit sales and a 10 percent increase in average unit sales price duri‘ng 2006.

|
|
i
-




Asset Dispositions

Consistent with our strategy of deriving an increasing percentage of our profits from managing and franchis-
ing, our asset sales program —which began in earnest in 2004 —accelerated in 2006, During the year we
sold approximately $1.5 billion of properties, including the sale of Hilton International’s LivingWell health
club business. We have obtained good pricels for these assets, retained the flags and buyers in most cases are
making additional investments to improve the properties. We continue to see a vibrant market for future

sales, and further success in this program will again be a prierity in 2007.

Balance Sheet

At December 31, 2006, we had total debt of $6.97 billion (net of approximately $500 million of debt and
;:apilal lease obligations resulting from the consolidation of certain joint-venture entities and a managed
hotel, which are non-recourse to us). Subsequent to thfz acquisition of Hilton International, we reduced
our indebtedness by approximately $1.6 billion. A focus of our financial strategy for 2007 is further debt
reduction through operating cash flow and the proceeds of asset sales. Total cash and equivalents {(including

restricted cash of approximately $293 million) were approximately $4.31 million at December 31, 2006.

Capital Expenditures

In 2006, total capital expenditures, including timeshare, were $874 million. Our capital spending strategy
continues to emphasize the maintenance of our owned hotels in top-notch condition. In 20086, this included
significant renovation projects at three of our most important hotels (and our biggest profit generators), the
Hilton Hawaiian Village, Hilton New York and Waldorf=Astoria. We continue to invest in our highly profit-

able timeshare business, focusing on our key markets of Las Vegas, Orlando, Hawaii and New York. ;

Cutlook ' |

The fundamentals of the lodging industry continue to be very strong, and we lock forward to positive

demand trends in 2007 and beyond. All of the elements are in place for the ongoing success of our fee-

based business, owned hotels and timeshare operations. Qur significant free cash flow generation, focus on

prudent investment spending and debt reduction make for a sound financial strategy going forward. When
: .

combined with our transformation to a fee orientation and our irreplaceable owned assets, unparalleled

collection of brands, industry-leading development pipeline and worldwide growth opportunities, we have

the foundation to further strengthen our position as the world’s premier lodging company.

33
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Corporate Information
Ezecutive Officers

Stephen F. Bollenbach
Co—Qhéirman and Chief Executive Officer

Matthew J. Hart
President and Chief Operating Offreer

lan R. Carter
Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer

— Hilton International Co.

Tim Harvey
Executive Vice President — Global Distribution
Services and Chief Information Officer

Thomas L. Keltner
Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer
— Americas and Global Brands

Madeleine A. Kleiner
Executive Vice President, General Counsel

and Corporate Secretary

Robert M. La Forgia
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Senior Officers

Antoine Dagot

Executive Vice President, President and Chief
Executive Officer = Hilton Grand Vacations
Company

Tim S. Glassett
Senior Vice President and Deputy General Counsel

Marc A. Grossman

Senior Vice President - Corporate Affairs

Mariel A, Joliet
Senior Vice President and Treasurer

Molly McKenzie-Swarts
Executive Vice President — Human Resources,

Diversity, and Administration

Left: The Beverly Hilton®

" 16 be'hield at'the The: Beverly Hllton”9876 Wilshire

Kenneth M. Smith
Executive Vice President — Americas

Operations, Sales and Revenue Management

Steve Standefer

Senior Vice President — Tax ’ . I

David A. Thompson

Senior Vice President and Controller N

Ernest Wooden, Jr.
Executive Vice President — Brand Management

General Information

Hilton Hotels Corporation
World Headquarters

9336 Civie Center Drive
Beverly Hills, CA go210
2310-278-4321

Transfer Agent and Registrar for Common Stock
The Bank of New York

Shareholder Relations Department — 11E

Post Office Box 11258

Church Street Station

New York, NY 10286 I
Toll Free: 866-272-9485 . !
E-mail: shareowner-sves@bankofny.com

!
Website: www.stockbny.com ‘ !
f

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ‘
Ernst & Young LLP i

Annual Mectmg of Sharsholders "

The annual T meetmg *6f shareholders'is scheduléd \ |

.

i

|

‘ Boulevard, Beverly Hllls Callforma on May 24, l2007 ‘ |
atTiooam. N AL L

b

Hotel Reservation Information
1-800-HILTONS
Visit our website at:

www. hiltonworldwide.com
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Board of Directors

Stephen F. Bollenbach 3
Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Barbara Bell Coleman *3

President, BBC Associates, LLC, Newark,
New Jersey — A consulting company serving
businesses and philanthropic organizations

A, Steven Crown *** .
General Partner, Henry Crown & Company
(Not Incorpora'lcd). Chicago, Illinois —

A company which includes diversified invest-
ments and operating companies, and real

estate ventures

Christine Garvey 2
Real Estate Consultant, Santa Barbara,

California

Matthew ]J. Hart )
President and Chief Operating Officer

Barron Hilion

Co-Chairman

Benjamin V. Lambert *
Chairman, Eastdil Secured, LLC, New York,
New York — Real estate investment bankers

John H. Myers'
Chairman of ForstmannLeff, New York, New

York — An investment management firm

John L. Notter »*+
Chairman, Westlake Properties, Inec.,
Westlake Village, California — A hotel and real

estate development company

Donna F. Tuttle 234 Vo

Pariner, Elmore/Tuttle Sports Group, West

Valley City, Utah — A company specializing in
mir?or league sports franchises, management

facilities and concessions

Petgr V. Ueberroth **

Managi.ng Director, Contrarian Group, Inc.,
Newport Beach, California — A business management
company; Owner and Co-Chairman, Pebble Beach
Corlnpany.ipebble Beach, California; and Chairman
of the Board, US Olympic Committee, Colorado
Springs, Colorado

' Audit Committee

*C mpensation Committee

3 Diversity iCommittee

+ Corporate Governance and
Nominating Committee

We have included as Exhibit 31 to our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2006 filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, the
certifications of our Chief Executive Officer and
Chi:cf Financial Officer required by Section 302

of the Sarb;anes—Oxley Act of 2002. In 2006, our
Chief Executive Officer also submitted to the New
York Stock Exchange the annual certification that he
is not aware of any violations by Hilton Hotels
Corporation of the NYSE corporate governance

listing standards. .
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PART L. ce R
Item1. Business ' )
GENERAL INFORMATION

Current Operations =~ - o

Hilton Hotels Corporation is engaged, together w1th its sub51d1arles, in the ownership, management
and development of hotels, resorts and timeshare properties and the franchising of lodging properties. As
of December 31, 2006, our system contained 2,935 properties with approximately 501,000 rooms in
78 countries and territories. Of such properties, we owned and operated 60 hotels, leased and operated
203 hotels, owned an interest in and operated 53 hotels, managed 343 hotels owned by others and
franchised 2,242 hotels owned and opcrated by third parties. Also mcluded in the number of properties in
our system are 34 timeshare properties which we managed.

Qur hotel brands include Hilton, Hllton Garden Inn, Doubletree Embassy Suntes, Homewood Suites
by Hilton, Hampton; Scandic, Conrad and the Waldorf=Astoria Collection. We develop and operate
domestic timeshare resorts through Hilton Grand Vacations Company and its related entities, which we
wholly own. We are also engaged in various other activities related or incidental to the operation of hotels.

Hilton was organized in the State of Delaware on May 29, 1946. Our principal executive offices are
located at 9336 Civic Center Drive, Beverly Hills, Cahforma 90210, and our telephone number is
(310) 278-4321.

Acquisition of Hilton International

On February 23, 2006, we consummated the acquisition of the lodging assets of Hilton Group plc (the
“HI Acquisition”) including its operating subsidiary, Hilton International Co. (“HI"), for approximately
£3.3 billion, equivalent to approximately $5.7 billion on the transdction date, excluding acquisition costs, in
an all-cash transaction. As a result of the HI Acquisition, we believe we are-one of .the largest and most
geographicaily diverse lodgmg companies in the world. The HI properties that we acquired consisted of
392 hotels with approximately 102,000 rooms, including 39 owned, 201 leased, four partially owned through
joint ventures, 118 managed and 30 franchised properties. The hotels we acquired in the HI Acquisition
consisted of 249 properties operated under the Hilton brand, 131 .properties operated under the ‘mid-
market Scandic brand, one property under the Conrad brand’and 11 other properties. We also-acquired 80
LivingWell health clubs, primarily in Europe, and six timeshare properties. As a result of the HI
Acqmsmon we now wholly own the Hilton HHonors Worldwide frequent guest program and the Hilton
Reservations Worldwide reservation system, both of which were previously owned equally by us and HI.
We.also obtained worldwide ownership of the luxury Conrad hotel brand, which had been operated as a
joint venture between us and HI since 2002. As a result of the HI Acquisition, we now own all the rights to
the Hilton and Conrad brands, including the right to develop these brands, along with alt of our other
proprietary- brands, on a worldwide basis. See “Note 3: Purchase of Hilton Internatlonal” 1o the
consolidated financial statements under Part II—Item 8. ; - '

Recent Developments
Hotel Propenies ‘ . : o '

 In 2006, we commenced management of the Grand Wailea Resort Hotel & Spa in Maun Hawan
the Arizona Biltmore Resort & Spa in Phoenix, Arizona, the La Quinta Resort & Club in La
Quinta, California and the Qasr Al Sharq in Jeddah, Saudi Arabia. These properties, togcther with’
the Waldorf=Astoria in New York, New York, are included in our new Waldorf=Astoria
Collection of luxury hotels.
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Timeshare Propenies

DLF Limited to develop hotel properties and service
company plans to develop and own 50 to 75 mid-scale a
years. We also announced an alliance with Deutsche

. » In the fourth quarter of 2006, we announced plans to form a joint venture with real estate developer

d apartments in India. The joint venture

nd extended-stay hotels over the next seven

sset Management and HQ Asia Pacific in

which they will develop an initial 25 Hilton Garden Inms in Beljmg, Shanghal and Tianjin, Chlna

which are expected to be franchlsed hotels.

In 2006, we sold the followmg assets we acquired as pa

t of the HI' Acqulsltlon for aggregate gross

proceeds of approximately $1.281 billion as of the transgction dates the Hilton London Metropole,

Toronto Airport, the Hilton Toronto Downtown, the

‘the Hilton Birmingham Metropole and the Wembley hotel, all in the United Kingdom; the Hilton

Hilton Quebec City, the Hilton Montreal

Airport and the Hilton Saint John, all in Canada; the stand alone LivingWell health clubs; and the

leaschold for the Drake Hotel in (“hlcago Ilinois.

W

¢ have. retained multi-year management

agreements on all of these dlsposmons except for L1v1ngWel]

In 2006, we sold three wholly owned domestic propertle
owning three properties. We retained management o

s and our minority interest in joint ventures
franchise agreements on each of these

properties, which included four Hiltons and two Embassy Suites.

We are continuing to develop a 1,582-unit timeshare

. *

resort in Las Vegas'_, Ne\:'ada, of which

45 percent.of the planned four-tower project has been ctlmpleted.

We are ‘developing or have developed three timeshare résorts in Orlando, Florida: a 440-unit resort

at Tuscany Village on International Drive, of .which
adjacent to Sea World, of which 48 units were added i

.- . which the first phase is expected to contain 141 units.

*of which 198 units are scheduled for completion in 2010, |

In Waikoloa, Hawaii, we have completed development g
Coast Vacation Suites, and commenced construction of

In Honolulu, Hawaii, we have commenced constructior
timeshare project adjacent to the Hilton Hawaiian Villag}

In 2006, we announced the development of the 57" Stre

in New York City scheduled for completion in early 2009.

Additional Informanon

For a description of our planned expansion' activities
additional information, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

-Operations—Development and Capital Spending” under Part 11

Industry Segments

As of December 31, 2006, we operated in three reportab
similar products or services: Hotel Ownership; Managing and F

information, see “Note 16 Segment Informatlon to the consol

Item 8.

76 units are- opened; a completed resort
2006; and a new resort at Ruby Lake, of

fa 120—unit timeshare _res'ort‘called Kohala
4 new timeshare project called Kings Land,

of the Waikikian Tower, a new.331-unit
¢, scheduled for completion in late 2008.
et Tower, a new 1161-ulnit ‘t,imeShare_ project

5, sce “Operations—Development.” For

—Item 7.

le business segments which are based on
ranchising; and Tlmeshare For additional
ldated financial statements under Part II—




‘Hotel Properties ¢

OPERATIONS

-

Owned Hotels

As of December 31, 2006, we owned-a majority or controlling financial interest in and operated
60 hotels, representing 29,647 rooms:: The owned hotels include some of our largest and most profitable
hotels, including: C ' ;

e the 1,416-room Waldorf=Astoria;
e the 1, 980-roorn Hilton New York

-

s the 2,860-foom Hilton Hawaiian Vll]age

» the 1,240-room Hilton Waikoloa Village;

. the 1,908-room Hilton San Francisco; N

e the 1,544-roomi Hilton Chicago;

s the 1,119-room Hilvton Wasnington; and

s the 1,616- -room Hilton Nei;v Orleans"l-liverside

Our owned hotels lnclude six properties for which weslease the underlymg land. The expiration dates
of the leases range up to 2044, with certain leases containing renewal options for 10 to 40 years. Under
these leases, we own-the buildings and leasehold improvements and all furniture and equipment; we are
responsible for repairs, maintenance, operating expenses and lease rentals; and we retain complete
managerial discretion over operations. Lease terms génerally require us to pay fixed ‘monthly base rent
and may require us to pay additional rent based on a percentage of revenue' or income’ from the hotel.
Upon the expiration of such leases, the bulldlngs and othet leasehold improvements presently owned by us
revert to the landlords. For additional 1nformatlon see “Note 17, Leases to the consolidated financial
statements under Part [I—Item 8. ’ ‘

Leased Hotels

As of December 31, 2006, we leased 203 hotels, rep'rlesenting 46,663 rooms. Under these leases, we
lease the hotel from its owner, manage the hotel and are generally resp0n51ble for all aspects of the hotel’s
operations and recognize all revenue and substantially all expenses associated with the hotel’s operations.
In general, replacement of furniture, flxtures and equipment is ‘our respons1b111ty Our hotel leases may
require the payment of fixed rent payments varlable rent payments based on a percentage of revenue or
income, or the payment of rent equal to the greater of a mlnlmum fixed rent or variable rent based on a
percentage of revenue or income. The terms of our leases are for various perlods expiring through 2097
and generally provide for certain renewal options, subject to certain termination rights. For additional
information, see “Note 17: Leases” to the consolidated financial statements under Part Il—Item 8.

4

Joint Ventures . , ' ) ‘ v

As of December 31, 2006, we had a mlnorlty or non-controlling financial interest in and operated
53 hotels, representing 17,232 roorns. We have a right of first refusal to purchase additional equity interests
in certain of these joint ventures. We manage each of the partlally owned hotels for the entity owning the
hotel. '




Managed Hotels

ting 97,536 rooms, which are . wholly owned
erate a hotel for the benefit of its owner,
rsonal - property. Our management fee is
enue, operating profits, cash flow or a
b earn-an incentive fee based on operating
for various periods and generally contain

* As of December 31, 2006, we managed 343 hotels, represen
by others. Under our standard management agreement, we op
which either owns or leases the hotel and the associated pe
generally , based on_a percentage of each hotel's gross rev
combination thereof. For the majority of properties, we may alss
performance. The terms of our management agreements are
renewal options, subject to certain termination rights.

o

r and other expenses are paid by the owner
n, our managerial discretion is subject to
pval of capital expenditure budgets.

In general, under our management agreements all operating
and we are reimbursed for our out-of-pocket expenses. In tur
approval by the owner in certain major areas, including the appr¢

Franchise Hotels

As of December 31, 2006, we franchised 2,242 hotels, repr|
and operated by third parties. In general, franchisees pay us an i
a'franchise hotel and a continuing fee based on a percentage of
up to five percent of rooms revenue depending on the brand. 2
the management or operation of franchise hotels, we conduc

esenting 306,660 rooms, which are owned
nitial f'eel based on the number of rooms in
the hotel’s rooms revenue, which may be
Although we do not directly participate in
t periodic, inspections to ensure that our

standards are maintained and render advice with respect to
-generally approve the plans for, and the location of, franchise ho

Hotel Brands

"' We operate hotels through the brands described below, w
geographic aréas. According to data from Smith Travel Resea
Garden Inn, Doubletree, Embassy Suites, Homewbod_ Suitg
commanded market share premiums in the system-wide reveny
which represents the share of RevPAR these properties attain ve

Hilton

Hilton hotels are our upscale, full-service hotels that typica
retail facilities, meeting and banquet facilities, restaurants and 1g
other services. The Hilton brand also includes Hilton Suites hot

certain aspects of hotel operations. We
tels and assist in their design.

* *

hich target a wide variety of markets and
rch, in’ 2006, our domestic Hilton, Hilton
s by, Hilton and Hampton brands all
¢ per available’ room (“RevPAR”) index,
rsus their respective competitive sets.

ly include swimming pools, gift shops and
unges, room service, parking facilities and
els, which are upscale, all-suite’hotels. As

of December 31, 2006, there were 498 Hilton hotels, representing 172,605 rooms, located in 38.states, the

District of Columbia and an additional 71 countries and t
December 31, 2006, 36 Hilton hotels were under construction,
hotels and 16 are expected to be franchise hotels.

Hilton' Garden Inn

Hilton Garden Inn hotels are our upper mid-market, focu

erritories throughout the world. As of
of which 20 are expected to be managed

v

sed service hotels that generally utilize a

modular design constructed around a courtyard containing an in
the Hilton Garden Inn brand earned the first place J.D. Power

door or outdoor swimming pool. In 2006,
ard for “Highest Customer Satisfaction” |

in its category for a fifth consecutive year. As of December 31, 2006,7_thcre were 302 Hilton Garden Inn
hotels, representing 41,669 rooms, located in 44 states, the District of Columbia, Canada, Germany, Italy
and Mexico. As of December 31, 2006, 57 Hilton Garden Inn hétels were under construction, of which 55

are expected to be franchise hotels and two are expected to be m

;

anaged hotels.




Doubletree

 a Doubletree hotels are our full-service hotels in the mld-markct to upscale hotel category. The
Doubletree brand also includes the Doubletree Guest Suites all-suite hotels and the moderately priced
Doubletree Club hotels. As of December 31, 2006, there were 173 Doubletree hotels, representing
+45,119 rooms, located in 39 states, the District-of Columbia, Canada and Latin'America. As.of
December 31, 2006, six Doubletree hotels were under construction, all of, whlch are expected to be
franchlse hotels, - . . ,

Embassy Suites

- Embassy Suites are our upscale, all-suite hotels that feature two-room guest suites with a separate
living room and dining/work area and a complimentary cooked-to-order breakfast. Most Embassy Suites
“hotels are built around a landscaped atrium. As of December 31, 2006, there were 185 Embassy Suites,
representing 45,172 rooms, located in 38 states, the District of Columbia, Canada, Latin America and the
Caribbean. As of December 31, 2008, cight Embassy Suites hotels were under construction, all of which are
expected to be franchise hotels.

.

Homewood Suites by Hilton

'Homewood Suites by Hilton are our upscale, extended-stay hotels that feature residential style
accommodations including business centers, swimming pools, convenience stores and limited meeting
facilities. As of December 31, 2006, there were 192 Homewood Suites, representing 21,141 rooms, located
in 41 states, the District of Columbia and Canada. As of December 31, 2006, 28 Homewood Suites hotels
were under construction, of which 26 are expected to be franchise hotels and two are expected to be
managed hotels. .

Hampton

Hampton Inn hotels are our moderately priced hotels with limited food and beverage facilities. The
Hampton brand also includes Hampton Inn & Suites hotels which offer both traditional hotel room
accommodations and apartment style suites within one property. As of December 31, 2006, there were
1,392 Hampton hotels, representing 138,487 rooms, located in 49 states, the District of Columbia, Canada,
Latin America and the Caribbean. As of December 31, 2006, 127 Hampton hotels were under
construction, all of which are expected to be franchise hotels.

Scandic

Scandic hotels are “our mid-market, full-service hotels located in Northérn Europe. As of
. December 31, 2006, there were 129 Scandic hotels, representing 22,808 rooms, located in Belgium,
" Denmark, Estonia, Finland, Germany, Italy, Lithuania, the Netherlands, Norway and Sweden. As of
December 31, 2006, one Scandic hotel was under construction, which is expected to be a leased hotel,

-

C onmd

Conrad hotels are our upscale, full-service hotels located primarily outside the Umted States. As of |
December 31, 2006 we managed, and in some cases partially owned, 15 Conrad hotels, representing
5,152 rooms, ‘located in Chicago, Illinois; Miami, Florida; Indianapolis, Indiana; and Belgium, China,
Egypt,.Indonesia, Ireland, Japan, Singapore, Thailand, Turkey and the United Kingdom. We have entered

+ into agreements.to manage new Conrad hotels in Shanghai, China and Koh Samui, Thailand,




Waldorf=Astoria Collection

In early 2006, we introduced a new brand line, the.Waldorf=Astoria Collection. This elite brand
designation debuted with New York’s legendary Waldorf=A§toria, which is wholly owned, along with
three world-class luxury resorts managed by us under-long-tetm agreements: the Grand Wailea Resort
Hotel & Spa on the island of Maui in Hawaii; the Arizona Biltmore Resort & Spa in Phoenix, Arizona;
and the La Quinta Resort & Club in La Quinta, California. Also in 2006, we commenced management of
the Qasr Al Sharq in Jeddah, Saudi Arabia, the newest member of the Waldorf=Astoria Collection. We
anticipate that the Waldorf=Astoria Collection will grow primarily through branding of existing landmark
or boutique hotels and opening newly built Waldorf= Astoria hatels in select cities. :

Hotels By Région . ‘ .
The following table sets forth the number of properties

Region/Country
North America

United Kingdom & Ireland o
Ireland................ e e R,

Continental Europe
Austria..............connn e e
Belgium........ et AU e

Bulgaria...........covevviiinen e U :

Croatia. ...oovovvereinnn. . U B

Cyprus............... e SN '

France .......... e e a e ia i

Italy ............. ) AR

Malta . . e e e e e i

Spain ......... e e

and rooms in our hotel system, excluding
timeshare properties, by region and country as'of December 31, 2006. The inclusion of hotels in regions in
the table below is consistent with the reporting of regionat information throughout this annual report.

..............

..............

................
..............
..............
..............
..............

..............

---------------

.
---------------

Hotels Rooms

56 11,648
2,416 ° 376,700
2472 388,348

5 750
70 15727
75 16477

4 1,340
8. . 1,684 .
1 245 .
1 147
2 492
1 788
9 2,660
6 4,890
2 .98

2 552
2 1,064
4 3265
1 337
1 294
6 1,180
1 272
3 1,043
2 537
8 2,607
4 24325

8




Region/Country : ' Hotels Rooms
Africa . . . -
N 15 7 1 410
CAMETOON .« e et e et e e et et e et aeaes e 1 257
Ethiopia. . ..o e P 1 379
=3 1) 1.. 293
Madagascar. .. ..o e e e 1 .+ 170
CMAULIIUS. . o e e e e 1 - < 193
MOTOCCO ..t ee e aeae e e e 1 © 269
B T ¢ - R 1 670
Republicof Seychelles ....... ..o : 1 40
South Africa...... i e P, 2 654
Total. . .o e e it e i 11 3,335
Middle East .
20 . 19 - 7,038
B 1 1 1 . 350
L0 13- T ' 1 - 147
Sandi Arabia. ... o e e e e . 4 - 2,207
. United Arab Emirates ......... e 8 1,673
Total....... et e e e e iee e . 33 . 11415
Asia Pacific
AUSITAlIA L. o i e e e 7 2,507
L ¢ 3 - A AU 5 2,537
Guam. . 1 682
India. o e e 8
3T [ T RO 1 298
20 8 3,876
4 (= 1SN 4 1,564
Malaysia ... ... e e R o4 7 1478
Maldives & .. .. it e 1 - 150
NewZealand ........coviiiiiiiinnnens, e e 2 197
Philippines .:...5% .. ooiiia s 1 246
Republicof Fiji ....ovin e i 1 218
N 118z o4 ) (- 2 931
S Lanka.......oit it i e e e e e e e 2 552
Thailand .. ...t e e e e 4 1,909
Vietnam. ..... e e e e 1 269
Total.ooveeninnnnnn.. S 52. 18823
Latin America & Caribbean o
Argentina ............... e e RN 1 418
Bahamas ......... P OO O, ‘ 1 291
Barbados................ S 1 350
Brazil ... .o ey 2 846
Colombia....................o.0 eeieans b e 2 384
CostaRica................ e R e 1 . 100
CUracas. ..o vttt e e e e e 1 196
~Dominican Republic. ..ot e 2 351
Ecuador. . . ... i e e -3 689

1,400




| Region/Country Hotels Rooms .
- E1Salvador .. .. ..ot it e i N 1 . 204
| Honduras ...ttt ieeie e edeeeceeeeas 1 120
Jamadca .. ... e e 1 303
MeXiCO. .. i e e e e e 17 3,516
Nicaragua ......... i e 1 104
B2 1 ! E e 1 110
' Puerto RiCO. .ot i e 5 1,739
"Trinidad & Tobago .. .....oooo e 2 578
R P 4 1,439
Total........... EE T 47 11,738
Nordic )
Denmark............ooiiiiit, T e 20 3455
Estonia. e 3 206
Finland. ..o e e e e e e e e 21 . 4,056
Lithvania....................... S RO 1 - 60
NOIWay .. i e 15 - 2,487
Sweden ............ il et 67 13,013
Total. ..o e e s 1279 23277
Total Hotel Properties (78 countries and territories).....|..........:... 2,901 497,738
North America
As of Decémber 31, 2006, there were 2472 properties,. representing 388,348 rooms, in our hotel

joint venture, 205 managed and 2,189 franchised hotels.

United K'ingdom and Ireland

located in the U.K. and Ireland, consisting of 70 Hiltons, three Conrads and two other
hotels. -

Continental Europe

hotels.

Africa

of one owned, three leased, six managed and one franchised hotel.

system located in the United States and Canada. These propertics: consist of 239 Hiltons, 296 Hilton
‘Garden Inns, 172 Doubletrees, 179 Embassy Suites, 192 Homewood Suites by Hilton, 1,381 Hamptonq
three Conrads and ten other hotels. Our properties in North Almerica consist of 27 owned, five leased 46

As of December 31, 2006, there were 75 propcr‘lies, representing 16,477 rooms, in our hotel system
hotels. Qur
properties in the UK. and [reland consist of 14 owned, 32 leased, one joint venture and 28 managed

As of December 31, 2006, there were £4 propertles representing 24,325 rooms, in our hotel system
located in 19 countries in Continental Europe (exclusive of the Nordic region). These properties consist of
70 Hiltons, three Hilton Garden Inns, seven Scandics, two Conrads and two other hotels. Our properties in
Continental Europe consist of 12 owned, 33 leased three _]OII'It venture, 26 managed and ten franchised

~ As of December 31, 2006, there were 11 propertics, representmg 3,335 rooms, in our hotel system
locatéd in ten countries in Africa, each of which is a Hilton branded hotel. Qur properties in Africa consist




Middle East . : , ' : ‘ -

As of December 31, 2006, there were 33 properucs consisting of 11,415 rooms, in our hotel system
located in five countries in the Middle East cons1stmg of 30 Hiltons, two Conrads and one other hotel.
- Our properties in the Middle East consist of two leased, one joint venture and 30 managed hotels.

Asia Pacific

As of December 31, 2006, there were 52 properties, representing 18,823 rooms, in our hotel system
located in 16 countries and territories in the Asia Pacific region, consisting of 47 Hiltons and five Conrad
hotels. Qur properties in the Asia Pacific reglon consist of one dwned, five Ieased two joint venture, 31
managed and 13 franchised hotels.

Latin America '& Caribbean

As of December 31, 2006, there were 47 properties, representing 11,738 rooms, in our hotel system
located in 18 countries and territories in Latin America and the Caribbean, consisting of 26 Hiltons, three
. Hilton Garden Inns, one Doubletree, six Embassy Suites, and 11 Hampton hotels. Our properties in Latin
America and the Caribbean consist of two owned, four leased, 15 managed and 26 franchised properties.

Nordtc

As of December 31, 2006 there were 127 properties, representing 23,277 rooms, in our hotel system
located in 6 countries in the Nordic region, consisting of five Hiltons and 122 Scandic hotels. Our
properties in the Nordic region consist of three owned 119 leased, two managed and. three franchised
hotels.

Timeshare Operaiions .

We conduct our domestic timeshare operations through Hilton Grand Vacations Company and its
related entities (“HGVC™), which we wholly own. As of December 31, 2006, HGVC operated 34 timeshare
resorts, consisting of 3,740 rooms, including 21 resorts in Florida, four in Hawaii, three in Nevada and one
in each of Colorado and New York. We also operate three timeshare resorts in the United Kingdom and
one in Egypt which we acquired in the HI Acquisition. HGVC operates HGVClub and Hilton Club,
points-based reservation and exchange systems. w1th 34 affiliated timeshare resorts.

Development
Hotel Properties

We intend to grow our hotel system through franchising and the addition of mamgernem contracts.
We will also continue to invest in capital 1mpr0vements and select projects at our owned hotels. In
addition, we may seek to acquire ownership interests in hotel properties on a strategic and selective basis,
either directly or through investments in joint ventures. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Development and Capital Spending” under Part Hl—ltem 7.

During 2006, in addition to the properties addéd to our system in the HI Acquisition, we added a total
of 223 properties, primarily franchises, . with approximately 36,000 rooms to our system. A total of 74
properties, primarily franchises, with approximately 12,000 rooms were removed from our system in 2006.

Total hotel property additions to our system in 2006 included 204 franchise properties, 17 managed
properties owned by third parties and two leased properties. These additions included 32 properties which,
due in part to the market share leadership of our brands, were converted to our family of brands in 2006.
The 32 conversions included 16 Doubletrees, eight Hiltons, five Hamptons and three Hilton Garden Inns.




Included in the property additions in 2006 are long-term management agreements we acquired for the
following properties: the Grand Wailea Resort Hotel & Spa on|the island of Maui in Hawaii; the Arizona
Biltmore Resort & Spa in Phoenix, Arizona; and the La Quinta Resort & Club in La Quinta, California.
Also in 2006, we commenced management of the Qasr El Sharqg ﬁin Jeddah, Saudi Arabia. These, properties .
are included in our new, elite brand designation, the Waldorf=Astoria Collection. See “Operations—
Hotel Brands—Waldorf=Astoria Collection” above. In 2006, we also acquired a long-term management
agreement for the Hilton Anatole in Dallas, Texas.

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we ‘announced plans to form a joint venture with DLF Limited to
develop hotel properties and serviced apartments in India. The joint venture company plans to develop
and own 50 to 75 mid-scale and extended-stay hotels over the|next seven years. We also announced an
alliance with Deutsche Asset Management and HQ Asia Pacific in- which they will develop an initial
25 Hilton Garden Inns in Beijing, Shanghai and Tianjin, China, which are expected to be franchised hotels.

In 2007, we expect to add approximately 255 hotels and 35,000 rooms to our hotel system. We expect
virtually all of this growth to be through franchise and managemént agreements.

Our current development pipeline is our largest to date, with more than 775 hotels, primarily
franchises, with 110,000 rooms at December 31, 2006. Appraximately 90 percent of the hotels in the -
current development pipeline are in the Americas (U.S., Canada, Mexico and South America), though
international development is expected to comprise an increasingly Jarger percentage of our development
pipeline within the next.few years. The consummation of transactions in our development pipeline is
subject to various conditions and uncertainties.

Our ability to grow the number of managed and franchised hotels is affected by the factors set forth
under Item 1A “Risk Factors,” including but not limited to intdrnational, national and regional economic
conditions; the effects of actual and threatened terrorist attacks and international conflicts; acts of God,
such as, natural disasters; credit availability; relatlonshnps with franchisees and property owners; and
competmon from other hotel brands. .

Timeshare Propenies

We have recently opened or are currently developing the fnllowing timeshare projects:

- ® We are continuing to develop a 1,582-ur_ijt timeshare resort located. at the north end of the Las
Vegas Strip in Las Vegas, Nevada. Phase two of this pron:ct, consisting of 431 units, opened in 2006.
Approximately 45 percent of the planned four-tower project has been completed.

e We are continuing to develop a timeshare resort at Tuscany Village on International Drive in
Orlando, Florida, with seven phases and a total of 440 UIthS We have opened the first six phases of
this project, consisting of 376 units, including 70 units opened in January 2007. The final phase of
this project, consisting of 64 units, is scheduled for completion in sprmg 2008. Also in Orlando, we
have added 48 units to our existing property adjacent to Sea World. In 2007, we began construction
of our new timeshare project at Ruby Lake in Orlando. Phase I of the Ruby Lake project is
expected to contain 141 units and is schéduled for completion in 2009. ’

e In 2006, we completed the remaining 98 units of a 120-unit timeshare resort called Kohala Coast
Vacation Suites in Waikoloa, Hawaii, near the Hilton V\L'alkoloa Village. We are also developing a
new timeshare project in Waikoloa called Kings Land, the first phase of which is expected to consist
of 198 units and is scheduled for completion in 2010.

* In 2006, we began construction of the Waikikian Tower, a new timeshare project in Honolulu,
Hawaii, adjacent to the Hilton Hawaiian Village. The Waikikian Tower is expected to contain 331
units upon completion which is scheduled for late 2008. -
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* In 2006, we announced the development of a new timeshare project in New York City on West. 57
Street. The 57" Street Tower is expected to contain 161 units and is scheduled for completion in
early 2009 ) . _ . :

e 4o -, B |

. N )

Property Dlsposmons . o, o

In 2006, we sold the followmg assets.we acqulred as part of the HI Acqulsmon the Hxlton London
Metropole, the Hilton Birmingham Metropole and the Wembley hotel, all in the United Kingdom; the
Hilton Toronto Airport, the Hilton Toronto Downtown, the Hilton Quebec City, the Hilton Montreal
Airport and the Hilton Saint John, all in Canada; the stand alone LivingWell health clubs; and the
leasehold for the Drake Hotel in Chicago, Illinois. We have retained multi-year management agreements

on all of these dlsposmons except for LivingWell.

In 2006, we sold the following wholly owned domestic hotel properties: the. Pomte Hilton Tapatlo
Cliffs in Arizona; the Hilton Minneapolis in Minnesota; and the Hilton Pittsburgh in Pennsylvania. Also
during 2006, we sold our minority interest in the joint ventures owning the following hotels: the Hilton
Times Square in New York; the Embassy Suites San Diego-La Jolla in California; and the Embassy Suites
Battery Park in' New York. We retained long-term management agreements for the Pointe Hilton Tapatio
Cliffs, the Hilton Minneapolis and the Embassy Suites San Diego-La Jolla, and long-term franchise
agreements for the Hilton Pittsburgh, the Hilton Times Square and the Embassy Suites Battery Park.

For additional information, see “Note 5: Acquisitions and Dispositions” to the consolidated financial
statemients under Part II—Item 8.

Developmelit Financing

We have established franchise financing programs with third party lenders to support the growth of
our brands. As of December 31, 2006, we have provided guarantees of $16 million on loans outstanding
under these programs. In addition, we have guaranteed $27 million of debt and other obligations of
unconsolidated affiliates and third parties, bringing our total guarantees to approximately $43 million. Our
outstanding guarantees have terms ranging from one to 14 years. We also have commitments under letters
of credit totaling $110 million as of December 31, 2006. We believe it is unlikely that material payments
will be required under these guarantees or letters of credit, See “Note 18: Commitments and
Contingencies” to the consolidated financial statements under Part II--Item 8.

Territorial Restrictions

Prior to the HI Acquisition, we were subject to certain restrictions on our right to operate hotels
outside the U.S. identified as “Hilton” hotels. As a result of the HI Acquisition, we now own the right to
develop each of our brands on a worldwide basis. See “General Information—Acquisition of Hilton
International” above, '

We have also entered into certain management and franchise agreements that contain provisions
which may restrict our right to own, manage or franchise additional hotels in specified geographic areas.
Potential Acquisitions

We continue to evaluate acquisition opportunities and may, from time to time, negotiate to engage in
a business combination transaction or other acquisition. However, there is no assurance that we will
engage in any such transactions,
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Property Transactions

We will continue to review our owned hotel portfolio
opportunities and we may seek to sell certain assets, including
. our intention to be opportunistic when evaluating potential as;
hotel properties to the extent we can obtain premium prices. W

for potential repositioning or rebranding
assets acquired in the HI Acquisition. It is
Set sales and we will look to sell particular
c are currently marketing for sale certain of

our.owned and leased hotels, including ten hotels in continental Europe, the Hilton Caledonian in
Scotland and six properties in the U.S. We are also marketing for sale the Scandic brand of hotels.

Seasonality

The hospitality industry is seasonal in nature. However,

the per'iods during which our properties

experience higher or lower levels of demand vary from property to property and depend principally upon
location. Based upon historical results, we generally expect dur revenue to be lower in the first fiscal

quarter of each year than in each of the three subsequent quart

¥

s
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Statistical Information Co : .

The following table sets forth céq'taiif éystem-ﬁvide information for our prof)erties with respect to the
number of properties and rooms as of December 31, 2005 and 2006:

' 2005 Number of 2006 Number of Change in Number of
. Properties Rooms Properties Rooms Properties Rooms
Hilton ' ’ ’ :
Owned............. J T 57 32,369 47 26,347 {10y  (6,022)
Leased, . v e e e e s 79 23,460 80 23,798 1 338
JOIMEVEOIUIE. o vttt e e o e e et e eiat i 16 6,844 14 6,156 2) (688)
Managed. . ... i i e e 137 47,709 152 56,633 15 8,924
Franchised. . .. ..ottt i 193 54,784 205 59,671 12 - 4887
’ ' ) 482 165,166 498 172,605 16 7,439
Hilton Garden Inn
Owned. . ... e e s I 162 1 162 —_ —_
Joint Venture. .. ... .. .ottt i i 1 128 1 128 - — . -
Managed. . ... oo e it e 7 886 7 886 —_ —
Franchised. .. ............ e e e e e, 250 34,347 293 40,493 43 6,146
. : 259 35,523 302 41,669 43 ,6,146
Doubletree
[0 3 1,349 3 1,349 — -—
cLeased. ..ot e 5 1,746 4 1,554 () {192)
JoINt Venture, . ..o ve it e 14 -4,306 12 3,761 (2) (545)
Managed. ... ...... e e 30 8,060 27 1,487 3) '(573)
Franchised. . . ... ... ... i i i PR 108 26,707 127 30,968 19 4261
- 160 42,168 173 45,119 13 . 2951
Embassy Suites ’
OwWned. .. e e e e 3 663 ' 3 664 — 1
Joint Venture. . . ..... e e 25 6,586 23 5,788 ) (798)
Managed. . ... .. e e 56 14,832 56 14,918 — 4]
Franchised. . ..o v vttt i n et e it en e o 93 22,348 103 23,802 5 1,454
182 44,429 185 45,172 3 743
Homewood Suites by Hitton )
Owned. . .......... i a e PN . 1 140 1 140. —_ —
Managed. . ... ... .. ey . 41 4,706 41 4,706 —_ —
FranchiSed. . . .. oottt e e eeae e e 122 13,287 150 16,205 28 3,008
164 18,133 192 21,141 28 3,008
Hampton . .
L0 1 133 1 133 ° —_ —_
Managed. ... i i e 34 4,453 34 4,447 — (6)
Franchised. . ... ... . it ey o 1,301 129,535 1,357 133,907 56 4,372
1,336 134,121 1,392 138,487 . 56 4,366
Scandic : .
Ouned, . ... e 1 325 3 528 2 203
Leased. ...t e e 121 21,405 118 21,182 3) (223)
Managed. . ... .o it i i e . 3 429 3 429 —_— —
Franchised. .. ...... ... . i it s 715 . 5 669 — {46)
130 22874 129 22808 e (66
Conrad :
JOIML VEnIUTE, . . oottt e i e i i 3 1,395 3 1,399 —_ 4
Managed. ... . ... .. . e 12 3600 12 3,753 — 93
15 5,055 15 5,152 — 97
Other . .
Owned. . ... e 2 630 1 3B n (306)
Leased. oot iin i i, 2 666 1 129 [¢)] (537)
Managed . . ... .. i e 6 1,311 ' 11 4277 5 2,966
Franchised. . ... .. .. . i i i i 5 2,434 2 855 (4) (L579)
16 5,041 15 5,585 i 544
Timeshare . ..... e e e e e e 40 4272 34 3,740 T (6) (532)
Total ‘ i
OWOED. .+ e e et e e e 69 35,771 60 29,647 {9)  (6,124)
Leased. o .. e e s 207 47,277 203 46,663 ) {614)
JOIMEVENIULE. . oottt e i ie e i 59 19,259 53 17,232 €y (2027
Managed . ..v. ...l S 26" 86,046 43 97,536 17 11,490
Franchised. . .............. e . 2,083+ 284,157 . 2,242 306,660 159 22,503
THMESHATE « & 4 o vt vt s s b e 40 4272 34 7 3740 {6 (532)
TOTAL PROPERTIES . . ... e e 2,784 476,782 2,935 501,478 - 151 ' 24,696
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For purposes of the table above, “owned” properties include those in which we have a majority or
controlling financial interest and “joint venture” properties are those in which we have a minority or
non-controlling financial interest. Statistics are' presented pro forma as if the HI Acquisition had occurred
January 1, 2005. For additional information, see “Hotel Properties” above. ’ .

The following table sets forth certain system-wide information. for our hotels with respect to
occupancy rates, average room rates and RevFAR for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006:

, 2005(1) 2006{1) Change
Hilton . : ’
Occupancy . .............. I 71.8% 72.8% 1.0pts
Average Rate . . ... ... it e $138.55 $149.86 8.2%
RevP AR . .. i i i i e e e e $ 99.50 $109.11 . 9.7%
Hilton Garden Inn : ]
Occupancy . ... i e S 70.0% 71.4% i.4pts
AverageRate ............... S P $103.89 $111.34 7.2%
RevPAR. . ... .o e T $ 7270 % 79.55 9.4%
Doubletree .
Occupancy ......... O 70.4% 71.6% 1.2pts
AVETBZE RAIE . . ..o\ sttt e $11258  $122.32 8.7%
'‘RevPAR.............. PSS Lo $ 7930 $ 87.60 10.5%
Embassy Suites ) .
OCCUDANICY « .« . o ettt ettt e e e ettt e b . 73.8% 74.9% L.ipts
AVEIBEE RALE . . v vttt s e e $129.93  $140.18 7.9%
REVPAR. ...\ ot eee e oo $ 9585 $105.05 9.6%
Homewood Suites by Hilton : ) .
L0 LT T Ty PO P 75.2% 75.8% 0.6pts
AverageRate. .. ........................ Y $101.31  $108.31 6.9%
RevPAR . .. e e s $ 7619 § 82.14 7.8%
Hampton . ) ’ :
Lo T D 71.6% 72.5% 0.9pts
Average Rate. . ... i i et $ 8780 § 94.69 7.8%
RevPAR. ... i O P $ 6287 § 68.66 9.2% .
Scandic ‘ !
CCCUPANCY + v v v e e aaaiieeeanns N SO P 64.0% 65.1% L1pts
AVerage Rale . . ... ..ot b $104.86 $109.92 ‘4.8%'
RevP A R . . e e e s $ 6711  § 71.58 6.7%
Conrad
L e T Ty 70.4% 69.6% (0.8)pts
AVETage Rale . ... e b $153.35 §$173.75 13.3%
RevP AR . . e e i b $10790  $12094 12.1%
Other .
L0 1T T o T 75.2% 79.5% 4.3pts
AVETAEE RALE . . ot L. $132.99  $14513 - 91%
REVPAR .. ...ttt e L. $ 9998  $11536 15.4%
Total
OCCUPANCY - o oo e et et e et e sl 71.4% 72.5% Llpts
AVEIAEE RalE . .. it e $11543  §124.58 7.9%
RevPAR. ... ... . ........ $ 8246 § 90.27 9.5%
(1) Statistics are presented pro forma as if the HI Acquisition had occurred January 1, 2005. Includes
hotels in our system as of December 31, 2006 which were in{our hotel system or the hotel system of HI
since January 1, 2005. Comparable hotels exclude data for|HI franchise hotels and our owned hotels
in New Orleans due to the interruption in operations as a rgsult of Hurricane Katrina.
For additional information regarding our hotel brands, see {Hotel Brands” above.
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The following table sets forth certain system-wide statistical information for our hotels by geographic
region as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006: . ’ .

v 3

Regions . , Occupancy Average Rate RevPAR

INOTE AIEFICA o ettt e oot e et e e e iaiennes - 728% $120 56 $ 871.77
United Kingdom & Ircland ....................... e 77.1 169.92 -130.98
Continental Eumpe ......... I ' 69.0"" - 161.27 111.29
Africa........... e e e 4 71.3 133.52 95.16
Middle East............ocooviiininnen. e e CT2T 11584 . 8424
Asia Pacific ... . .. e U DU & A 132.65 102.57
Latin America & Caribbean. ......... i S SOOI - 714 128.03 91.47
NOTAIC « ettt e e e et 653 114.17 74.57

Total.....ocooiiiiiiii, e e 725 12458 90.27

In the table above, statistics are presented pro forma as if the HI Acquisition occurred January 1,
2005. This table includes hotels in our system as of December 31, 2006 which were in our hotel system or in
the hotel system of HI since January 1, 2005. Comparable hotels exclude data for HI franchise hotels and
our owned hotels in New Orleans due to the interruption in operations as a result of Hurricane Katrina.
For additional information regarding our number of properties, number of available rooms and statlstlcal
information, see “Five Year Summary” under Part 11—Item 8.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Casino Wmdsor ' '

We own a 50% equity interest in Windsor Casino Limited, which operates the 400-room Casino
Windsor in Windsor, Ontario, Canada for the Ontario provincial government under a management
contract that expires in 2012, This hotel casino features a 75,000 square foot casino and entertainment and
meeting facilities.” See “Addmonal Information—Regulatlon and Licensing—Ontario, Gaming Laws”
below. :

Design and Furmshmg Services

Hllton Supply Management, Inc., our wholly owned subsidiary, provides design and furnlshlng services.
to our hotels and to hotels owned and operated by others. These services include the purchase and
distribution of furniture, furnishings, equipment, food, beverage and operating supplies. The volume of
this operation depends primarily on the number of new hotels we operate or franchise and on refurbishing
and remodeling of our existing hotels. _

Reservation System

Hilton Reservations Worldwide, LLC (“HRW?”) oversees and operates a computerized, worldwide
reservation system for hotels owned, operated or franchised by us, our affiliates and others. Prior to the
HI Acquisition,: Hilton and Hilton Group plc each owned a 50% interest in HRW. As a result of the
HI Acquisition, HRW is now wholly owned by us. The domestic HRW reservation agents utilize an
automated system that enables them to automatically cross-sell among all of our hotel brands which has
benefited, and which we expect will continue to benefit, our hotel brands.

1
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HHonors

Hilton HHonors Worldwide, LLC (“HHW”) operates our guest loyalty program (“HHonors”). Prior
to the HI Acquisition, Hilton and Hilton Group plc each owned a 50% interest in HHW. As a result of the
HI Acquisition, HHW is now wholly owned by us. The HHonor:s program is operated for the benefit of our
family of brands-worldwide. Members of the HHonors program earn points based on their spending at
most of the hotel properties operated and franchised by us. HHonors accumulates and tracks points on the
member’s behalf and fulfills awards upon request. Points can l{)e redeemed for hotel stays at participating
properties and for a variety of other awards such as airline fickets_, cruises and car rentals. We expect
HHonors to continue to have a positive impact on_our brands. See “Note 2: Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies—Hilton HHonors” to the consolidated financial statements under Part II—Item 8.

P4

Technology and Distribution

We operate the Hilton worldwide internet website (www.hiltonworldwide.com) and our various hotel
-brand websites which provide cost effective customer-serviqe, including online hotel reservations and
HHonors enrollment. We also provide various business, technology and information services for our hotel
guests, including high speed internet access at many of ‘our hotels system-wide and self-service check-in
kiosks at certain of our owned or managed hotels. -

We operate our proprietary OnQ system, which is a single technology platform that links our brands
and hotels to enhance customer service and loyalty, as well as to maximize operational efficiencies. The
OnQ system has been installed at virtually all of the hotels in our domestic hotel system. We have
commenced the installation of the OnQ system in the hotels we acquired in the HI Acquisition. We also
utilize an integrated strategy related to electronic and on]ine% distribution of rooms in our systems. The
strategy provides for brand standards that permit each hotel to establish its own room rates, but requires
the hotel to offer such rates consistently across all desigpated distribution channels, including our
proprietary websites, HRW call centers, the Global Distribution System used by travel agents, and through
hotels directly. In addition, we have implemented enhancements to our major brand websites as part of the
strategy.

“Qur Best Rates. Guaranteed.” is our program which| offers a price-matching guarantee that is
designed to encourage customers to book their reservations through the above referenced distribution
channels. We believe that this program, along with enhancements to our branded websites, has contributed
to significantly increased numbers of transactions on our proprietary websites.

Trademarks

The following trademarks used herein are owned by us and are either registered or have been filed for
registration as trademarks in the United States and/or in certain foreign countries: Conrad®, -Double
Dip®, Doubletree®, Doubletree Club Hotel®, Doubletree Guest Suites®, Doubletree by Hilton™,
Embassy Suites Hotels®, Embassy Suites by Hilton™, Fi‘hn& Porter®, Garden Inn®, Hampton®,
Hampton Inn®, Hampton Inn & Suites®, Hampton by Hilton™, Hawaiian Village®, HGVClub®,
HHonors®, Hilton®, Hilton Garden Inn®, Hilton Grand Vacations Club®, Hilton Hawaiian Village®,
Hilton Suites®, Homewood Suites by Hilton®, LivingWell®] OnQ™, Points & Miles®, Scandic®, Senior
HHonors®, Waldorf=Astoria® and Waldorf=Astoria Collection®. We consider all of these trademarks,
and the associated name recognition, to be valuable to our business. See “Note 2: Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies—Brands” to the consolidated financial statements under Part II—Item 8.
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Marketing

Our hotel propetties offer multiple product lines to a broad range of customers in many geographic
markets worldwide. Our properties include full-service and’limited service hotels in urban airport, resort
and suburban locations, as well as timeshare resorts. . A

- Qur metropohtan a_nd airport properties primarily serve the convention and meeting market and the
business traveler market (business persons traveling as individuals or in small groups). Our resort
properties primarily serve the tour and leisure market (tourists traveling either as individuals or in groups)
and the convention and meeting market. Our suburban properties primarily serve the leisure and business
traveler markets. As indicated in “Risk Factors” under Item 1A, these sources of business are sensitive to
general economic and other conditions. :

We are a sponsor of the U.S. Olympic Team through 2008, which entitles our family of brands to use
the official hotel sponsor designation-and Olympic logo in advertising and marketing materials.

Competltlon

We scek to maintain the quahty ‘of our lodging business whlle expandlng both domestlcally and
internationally, primarily through franchising and the addition of management contracts. We intend to
improve our business by leveraging our strong brand names, maximizing operating efficiencies, utilizing
cost containment programs and technology, and expanding and enhancing propertles We may also acquire
or develop properties as approprlate either directly or through investments in jOll‘lt ventures.

- We belleve that our position as a multi-branded owner, ,operator, manager and franchisor of hotels
makes us one of the largest and most geographically diverse lodging companies in the world. Competition
in the industry.is based primarily on the level of service, quality of accommodations, convenience of
locations and room rates. Competition from other hotels, motels ‘and inns, including facilities owned by
local interests and facilities owned by national and international chains, is vigorous in all areas in which we
-operate or franchise our facilities. Our hotels also generally compete with facilities offering similar services
in cities and other locations where our hotels are not present, If hotel capacaty is expanded by others in a
city where our branded hotels are located, competition will increase. Our management agreements are
generally for long-term periods, but most allow the hotel owner to termmate the arrangement if certain
financial or performance standards are not met. Competltlon in the timeshare business is based primarily
on the quality and locat:on of timeshare ‘tesorts, the pricing of timeshare intervals and the availability of
program benefits, such as exchange programs. We believe that our focus on core business strategies,
combined with our financial strength diverse market presence, strong brands and strategically located
properties, will enable us to remain competitive. For- additional mformatlon see ‘Risk Factors” under
Item 1A,

¢

Environmental Matters
We are sub]ect to various Federal, state, local and foreign laws ordinances and regu]atlons that:

(i) govern activities or operations that may have adverse env1ronmental effects, such as dlscharges to -
air and water, as well as handling and disposal practices for solid and hazardous or toxic wastes;
or

. (ii} may impose liability for the costs of cleaning up, and certain damages resulting from, sites of past
) spills, disposals or other releases of hazardous.or toxic substances or wastes (together, -
“Environmental Laws™).
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- Environmental Laws could make us liable for costs of removing or cleaning up hazardous or toxic
substances on, under or in property we currently own or operaite or-that we previously owned or operated.
Those laws could impose liability without regard to whether, we knew of, or were responsible for, the
presence of 'hazardous or toxic substances or waste. We endeavor to maintain compliance with
Environmental Laws but, from time to time, our operata)ns may have resulted or may result in
noncompliance or liability for cleanup pursuant to Environmental Laws. In that regard, as of December 31,
2006, we had been notified of contamination resulting from past disposals of waste at eight sites to which
hazardous or non-hazardous waste may have been sent from our fac:llltles in the past. Based on
1nf0rmat10n reviewed by and available'to us, including: ‘ .

(i) uncertamty whether our facilities in fact shipped any waste to such sites;
(ii) the number of potentially responsible parties at such Jltes, and

(iii) where available, the volume and type of waste sent to such sites;

we believe that any liability arising from such disposals under ‘Environmental Laws would not have a
material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations. However, there can be no
assurance that this will be the case. B BT . ’ -

Regulation and Licensing

Ontario Gaming Laws. Ontario, Canada has laws and regulations governing the conduct of casino
gaming. Ontario law requirés that the operator of a casino must be found suitable and be registered. A
registration once issued remains in force uniil revoked. Ontario law defines the grounds for registration; as
well as revocation or- suspension of such registration. The ‘Ontario: authorities have conducted an
investigation and have found us and the other shareholder of Windsor Casino Limited suitable in
connection with the Ontario reglstratlon of Windsor Casing Limited. See “Additional Information—
Casino Windsor” above. * : : . . S .

il

Other Lavys and Regulations.” We are subject to the laws and regulations of 78 countries and
territories. The hotels and timeshare resorts we operate are subject to extensive state, local and national
regulations and ona perlodlc basis, must obtain various licenses and permits, mcludmg those required to
sell alcoholic beverages. National and state laws and regylations also require certain registration,
disclosure statements and other practlces with respect to the fr nchlsmg of hotels. We believe that we have
obtained all required licenses and permits and our businesses afe conducted in substantial compliance w1th R
applicable laws. . e

Employees S

At December 31, 2006, we had approximately 105,000 employees, of whom approximately 28,000 were
covered by various collective bargaining agreements providing, generally, for basic pay rates, working
hours, other conditions of employment and orderly settlement of labor disputes. We believe that the
aggregate compensation benefits and working conditions afforded our employees compare favorably with
- those received by employees in the hotel industry generally. See| “Risk Factors” under Item 1A.

+
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Forward-Looking Statements bon T _ -

Forward-looking statements in this report, including without limitation, those set forth under the
captions Item 1 “—Business—Hotcl Brands,” “—Operations—Development,” “—Development
Financing,” “—Territorial Restrictions,” “—Potential Acquisitions,” "—Property Transactions” and “-—
Seasonality” and “Additional Information—Reservation ‘System,” “—HHonors,” “—Competition,” “—
Environmental Matters” and “—Regulation and Licensing,” Item 2 “—Properties,” Item 3 “—Legal
Proceedings” and Item 7 “—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,” and other statements relating to our plans, strategies, ‘objectives, expectations, intentions and
adequacy of resources, are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Sccurities ngauon
Reform Act of 1995. The words “believes,” “al’lllClleCS " “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “estimates,”

“projects,” “will,” “should,” “continues” and similar expressions arc intended to identify forward-looking
statements. These forward-looking statements reflect our current views with respect to future cvents and
financial performance and are subject to risks and uncertainties, including those identificd under Item 1A

“—Risk Factors” below and under “Operations—Territorial Restrictions” and “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Any of these risks and uncertaintics
could cause actual results to differ materially from historical results or those anticipated. We undertake no
obligation to publicly update or revise any forward- lookmg statements to reflect current or future events or
circumstances except as required by ]aw

ELIF 44

Available Information

Our internet website is located at www.hiltonworldwide.com. We make available free of charge
through this website our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as soon as rcasonably practicable after we clectronically file such material
with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. Our internet website also contains our
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for officers, employees and directors, including our Chief Executive
Officer and senior finance officers (the “Code of Ethics™), our Corporate Governance Guidelines,
Charters for our Audit, Compensation and Corporatc Governance and Nominating Committees and
information regarding communications with our Board of Directors. See “hiltonworldwide.com,” click on
“Investor Relations,” then “Corporate Governance.” Sce also “Directors, Execcutive Officers and
Corporate Governance” under Part IIl—Item 10. The information made available through our website is
not incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K.

We will provide without charge to any person, on the written or orat request of such person, a copy of
our annual report on Form 10-K, Code of Ethics, Corporate Governance Guidelines and Charters for our
Audit, Compensation and Corporate Governance and Nominating Committces. Requests should be
directed to our Corporate Secretary, Hilton Hotels Corporation, 9336 Civic Center Drive, Beverly Hills,
California 90210 (telephone number (310) 278-4321).. -

v

.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant ' ' <

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our executive officers.

Name

1

Posmons with the Company . Age

Stephen F. Bollcnbach

Matthew J. Hart .. .........

Ian"R‘. Carter..............

Tim Harvey ......

Thomas L. Keltner.........

Madeleine A. Kleiner o

Robert M. La Forgia.......

.Co- Chalrman of the Board and| Chief Executive Officer since 64
May 2004, and prior thereto, P].leadcnt and Chief Executive '
Officer )
President and Chief Operatmg Officer since May 2004, and prior 54
thereto, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer _ -
Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer—Hilton 45
International Co. (a subsidiary|of Hilton Hotels Corporation)

since March 2006, Chief Executive Officer—Hilton International

Co. (a subsidiary of Hilton Graup plc) from January 2005 until.

. March 2006, and prior thereto, Prcsident—Europe,'Middle East
and Asia Pacific, Black & Decker Corporation

Executlve Vice Pre&dent——Glibal Dlstnbutlon Servicesand 48
Chief Informanon Officer sin January 2007 Executive Vice

President and Chief Informatibn Officer from January 2006 until
January 20077, and prior theretb Senior Vice President and Chief
Information Officer ] .
Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer—Americas 60
and Global Brands, since January 2007, and prior thereto,

Executive Vice President and k’rc:SIdent—Brand Performance

and Development Group

Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate 55
Secretary :

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since : 48

January 2006, Sénior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

from May 2004 until January ﬁ006, and prior thereto, Senior Vice
President and Controller - R

Unless otherwise noted in the table, all positions and oflfices indicated have been continuocusly held
since January 2002. The executive officers are responsible for all major policy making functions and all
other corporate and divisional officers are responsible to, an% are under the supervision of, the executive
officers. None of the exccutive officers listed above are relatec.

~Messrs. Bollenbach, and Hart also serve as directors of ‘Hilton. Additional information for our
directors will be included under “Election of Directors” in er definitive proxy statement to be used in
connection with our annual meeting of stockholders scheduled to be held on May 24, 2007 (the “Proxy
Statement”), and this information is incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K. See Cover Page—

“Documents Incorporated by Reference.”
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

We are subject to all of the operating risks common in the lodging and timeshare industries and our results
may be adversely impacted if any of these risks materialize. Our results are significantly affected by
occupancy and'room rates achieved by our hotels, our ability to manage costs, foreign currency exchange
rate movements related to our international operations, our relative mix of owned, leased, managed and
franchised hotels, supply and demand changes for hotel rooms and timeshare intervals in our markets, the
quantity and pricing of timieshare iriterval sales and changes in the number of available hotel rooms and
timeshare intervals through acquisition,” development and disposition. Unfavorable changes in these
factors, as well as the occurrence of other events described below, could negatively impact hotel room
demand and pricing which, in turn, could limit our ability to pass through operating cost increases in the
form of hlgher room rates. Our ability to manage costs could be adversely ampacted by 51gn1f|cant increases
in- operating -expenses, such as wages and other labor costs, healthcare, insurance, propcrty taxes and
energy, as well as increases in construction costs, resulting in lower operating margins. In addition,
economic factors beyond our‘control in the U.S. and internationally may create challenges for the lodging
mdustry and us in 2007 and beyond. A downturn in economic conditions could impact the demand for
hotel rooms and puit pressure on room rates. Increases in transportatlon and fuel costs, the financial
condition of the airline industry and its impact on air travel and sustained recessionary periods in the U.S.
and mternatlonally could also unfavorably impact future results.

Certam of our employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements and labor dtsputes may disrupt our
operations. Employees at certain of our owned and managed hotels are covered by collective bargaining
agreements. In July 2006, we announced a five-year agreement with UNITE HERE, the union
representing a majority of our unionized employees, termed a “partnership for future growth” which
includes agreement by the parties to work together toward labor peace in cities with collective bargaining.
Since the announcement, collective.bargaining agreements have been reached and ratified in key markets
including New York, Chicago, Puerto Rico, San Francisco, Toronto and Honolulu, At this time, we cannot
predict when or whether new agreements will be reached in other markets in which we have employees
covered by collective bargaining agreements, and what the impact of prolonged negotiations could be,
Labor disputes in markets in which we have employees covered by collective bargaining agreements could
disrupt our operations by causing the dwersnon of business to other hotels, thereby impacting our financial
results negatively. .

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from aperations of our owned hotels and events in the markets
where these properties are located could adversely affect our overall financial results. We derived
approximately 31% of our revenue in 2006 from the operations of our owned hotels. A significant portion
of this revenue was derived from our large convention hotels .located in major U.S.. cities. See
“Operations—Hotel Properties—Owned Hotels” under Item 1. In addition, we acquired 39 owned
properties in the HI Acquisition. Although we sold a number of owned properties since the HI Acquisition
and are continuing to market certain properties for sale, soft economic conditions and reduced business
travel in any of the markets where we currently own properties could adversely affect our results from
these properties and, therefore, our overall financial results. Our owned properties are also subject to risks
that generally relate to investments in commercial real estate, including governmental regulations; real
estate, insurance, zoning, tax and eminent domain laws; the ongoing need for capital improvements to
maintain or upgrade properties; fluctuations in real estate values; and the relative illiquidity of real estate
compared to other investments. If our owned properties do not generate sufficient revenue to meet
operating expenses, including debt service and capital requirements, our financial results will be adversely
affected. .
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We face challenges in integrating the operations of HI, as well as risks related 1o owning and operating
real estate and hotels in international locations. We may experience difficulties in completing the
integration of HI’s operations, including combining technology and distribution activities, consolidating
regional infrastructure, integrating personnel with disparate business backgrounds and corporate cultures
and managing relationships with hotel owners, lessors and other business partners on a worldwide basis. As
a result of the HI Acquisition, we are subject to varying degrees of risk relating to international real estate
generally, including risks related to changes in local, political, [economic and market conditions, interest
rates, zoning laws, currency exchange rate fluctuations, compliance with environmental laws, costs and

terms of financing and the potential for uninsured casualty a
properties we acquired in the HI Acquisition are subject 1o long
the lessor. If these properties do not generate sufficient revenu
the lessors, which could adversely impact our financial results.
liabilities related to the business acquired in the HI Acquisition
with respect to such matters. As a result of the HI Acquisition,

>

nd other losses. A number of the leased
term contracts requiring fixed payments to
¢, we may be required to fund shortfalls to
We have assumed certain obligations and
and have limited rights of indemnification
we are subject to the laws and regulations

of 78 countries and territories, which exposes us to risk
environmental, zoning, employment, repatriation of money, liq

relating to changes in franchise, tax,
or license and other laws in the countries

in which we operate. As a U.S. company operating globally, we may be subject to inconsistent
requirements resulting from conflicts between U.S. laws and the laws of the countries in which we operate.
If taxation authorities in the countries in which we operate interpret.our tax position in a manner that is
materially different than our assumptions, our tax liabilitigs could increase which could materially
adversely impact our financial results. Some international jurisdictions restrict the repatriation of non-U.S.
earnings. Various international jurisdictions also have laws li ’iting the ability of non-U.S. entities to pay
dividends and remit earnings to affiliated companies unless specified conditions have been met. Sales in
international jurisdictions typically are made in local currenciés, which subject us to risks associated with
currency fluctuations. Currency devaluations and unfavorable !changés' in international monetary and tax
policies could have a material adverse effect on our profitability and financing plans, as could other
changes in the international regulatory climate and international economic conditions. In addition, the
U.S. government prohibits U.S. companics from operating| in certain countries that are subject-to
economic sanctions or are ¢n the terrorist countries list. We will not-do business in such countries, unless
we develop or acquire a non-U.S. affiliate that is capable of r{lanaging hotels or we obtain authorization
from the U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign Assets Control to do so. Some investors would be
prohibited by state law or self-imposed policies from investing in our securities if we were to do business in
such countries. '

- We are more highly leveraged as a result of the HI Acqui
dispositions of certain of our owned hotels acquired in the HI Acq
could be impacted. We have sold certain hotel properties w

sition. 'If we are unable to complete planned
uisition, our ability to rediice our indebtedness
¢ acquired in-the HI Acquisition 'and are

continuing to market additional properties for sale. See “Note 5: Acquisitions and Dispositions” to the

consolidated financial statements under. Part II—Item 8. We

are required to use the net proceeds from

such dispositions to repay amounts outstanding under our credit facilitics which were incurred to finance
the HI Acquisition. If we are unable to complete such dispositions on commercially reasonable terms
within anticipated timeframes, our ability to reduce our outstahding borrowings may be adversely affected,
which could negatively impact our cost of borrowings, .our financial results and our ability to raise new
capital to finance future growth. Qur senior debt is currently rated Bal by Moody’s Investor Services and
BB by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group. A downgrade by alny rating agency of our credit rating could
adversely impact the cost and availability of capitai to us. Our higher level of debt and resulting interest
expense may place us at a competitive disadvantage to competitors with lower amounts of indebtedness
and/or higher credit ratings.
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If we have disputes with the owners of hotels we manage, we could be subject to litigation. For our
managed hotels, we have the responsibility to manage each hotel at.a level consistent with the standard
required for its brand-in the relevant management agreement. Such provisions vary in scope and may be
subject to differing interpretations. In the ordinary course of business, we encounter disagreements with
the owners of our managed hotels as to whether the duties in our management agreements have been
satisfied. To the extent that such conflicts arise, we seek to resolve them by negotiation with the relevant

“parties. In the event that such resolution cannot be achieved, litigation may result.in damages or other
remedies against us. Such remedies could include termination of the right to manage the relevant property.
We may not be able to negotiate successfully or otherwise resolve such conflicts'in each instance. '

In competing for management, franchise and timeshare agreements and leases, we may make loans or
provide guaranteeés to third parties and could experience losses under these loans or guarantee arrangements.
The terms of our management, franchise and timeshare agrecments and leases are influenced by contract
terms offered by our competitors at the time such agreements are entered into. Accordingly, we may not
enter into contracts or renew contracts in the future on terms that are as favorable to us as those under
existing agreements. In connection with entering into these contracts, we may become obligated to make
loans to or guarantee the obligations of third parties or guarantee minimum income to third parties. Most
of our guarantees allow us to terminate the agreement rather than fund shortfalls if specified performance
levels are not achieved. However, under certain agreements we are required to fund- performance
shortfalls. Weak performance, particularly as a result of a soft economy, as well as the financial condition

" of third party owners and franchisees, could give rise to losses under our loans and guarantees. Changes in
legislation or regulatory changes may be implemented that have the effect of favoring franchisees relative
to brand owners.

The growth of internet reservation channels could harm our profitability. Some of our hotel rooms are
booked through internet travel intermediaries. If these bookings increase, these intermediaries may be
able to obtain higher commissions or other significant contract concessions from us. We believe that the
aim of such intermediaries is to have consumers develop loyalties to their reservation systems rather than
to our lodging brands. Although we expect most of our business to continue to be derived from traditional
channels and our proprietary branded internet websites, if the amount of sales made through internet

intermediaries increases significantly, our ability to control the supply, presentation and price of our room

inventory and our profitability may be harmed.

We are a party to joint venture arrangements and investing through Jomt ventures decreases our ability to
manage risk. 'We have from time to time invested, and expect to continue to invest, as a co-venturer Joint
venturers often have shared control over the operation of the joint venture assets. Therefore, joint venture
investments may involve risks such as the possibility that the co-venturer in an investment might become
bankrupt, or have economic or business interests or goals that are inconsistent with our business interests
or goals, or be in a position to take action contrary to our instructions or requests or contrary to our
policies or objectives. Consequently, actions by a co-venturer might subject hotels owned by the joint
venture to additional risk. Additionally, we may be unable to take action without the approval of our joint
venture partners, or our joint venture partners could take actions bmdmg on the joint venture without our
consent,

Our hotel and timeshare businésses are subject to risks related to the availability of capital. Owners of our
hotel and timeshare properties, including us, are required to spend money to construct, refurbish and
maintain properties. This creates an ongoing need for cash which, if not generated by ongoing operations
or otherwise obtained, is subject to the availability of credit in capital markets. The ability of our owners to
spend money necessary to maintain the brand standards of our properties is significantly impacted by the
cost and availability of capital, over which we have little control.
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Our timeshare business is subject to extensive regulation and {f we fail-to comply with such regulation our
timeshare business could suffer. . We develop, manage, market and sell timeshare intervals, which generally
entitle the buyer to occupy a fully-furnished unit for a onetweek ‘period on ecither an annual. or an
alternative-year basis, We also .provide financing to purchasers of timeshare intervals. Certain of.these
activities are subject to extensive state regulation in both the state in which the property is located and the
states in which the property is marketed and sold, as well a Federal regulation of certain marketing
practices. In addition, the laws of most states in which we sell timeshare intervals grant the purchaser a
unilateral right to rescind the purchase contract within a statutory rescission period. If we fail to be in
compliance with applicable Federal, state, and local laws and regulations to which timeshare properties,
marketing, sales and operations are subject, including Federal telemarketing regulations, or a
determination by a regulatory authority that we were not in compliance, our timeshare business could
suffer. ' ' ' '

Reported profits from our timeshare business may be negatively impacted by deferrals required under
percentage-of-completion accounting. During periods of cons{ruction, profits from timeshare sales are
recognized under the percentage-of-completion accounting method. As we are currently constructing
several new timeshare projects, we anticipate that this requjred accounting will negatively impact the
reported profits from our timeshare business in 2007, We expect the impact of percentage-of-completion
accounting on 2007 results to reverse in 2008. See “Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—
New Accounting Standards” to the consolidated financial statements under Part [I—Item 8.

Our properties are subject to risks ;'elating to acts of God, terrorist activity and war and any such event could
materially adversely dffect our operating results. Our financial and operating performance may be adversely
affected by acts of God, such as natural disasters, particular]ﬂ in locations where we own and/or operate
significant properties. Some types of losses, such as those from earthquake, hurricane, terrorism and
environmental hazards, may be either uninsurable or too expénsive to justify insuring against. Should an
uninsured loss or a loss in excess of insured limits occur, we tould lose all or a portion of the capital we
have invested in a property, as well as the anticipated future revenue from the property. In that event, we
might nevertheless remain obligated for any mortgage debt or other financial obligations related to the
property. Similarly, war (including the potential for war) and tTrrorist activity (including threats of terrorist
activity), epidemics (such as SARS and bird flu), travel-relatedaccidents, as well as geopolitical uncertainty
and international conflict, which impact domestic and international travel, have caused in the past, and
may cause in the future, our results to differ materially from anticipated results. Terrorism incidents such
as the events of September 11, 2001 and wars such as the Iraq war significantly impact international travel
and, consequently, global demand for hotel rooms. In addition, inadequate preparedness, contingency
planning or recovery capability in relation to a major incident| or crisis may prevent operational continuity
and consequently impact the value of the brand or the reputation of our business.

We may incur losses as a result of class actions or other lawsuits which have recently targeted hospitality
companies. Our financial results may be adversely impaclted by legal or governmental- proceedings
brought by or on behalf of our employees or.customers. In regent years, a number of hospitality companies
have been subject to lawsuits, including class action lawsuits alleging violations of federal and state law
regarding workplace and employment matters, discrimination and similar matters. A number of these
lawsuits have resulted in‘the payment of substantial damages by the defendants. Similar lawsuits have been
and may be instituted against us from time to time, and we may incur substantial damages and expenses
resulting from lawsuits of this type, which could have a material adverse effect on our business. '
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If we fail to comply with privacy regulations, we could be subject to fines or other restrictions on éur business.
We collect and maintain information relating to our guests for vanous business purposes, including
maintaining guest preferences to enhance our customer service "and for marketing and promotion
purposes. The collection and use of personal data are governed by privacy laws and regulations enacted in
the U.S. and other international jurisdictions in which we operate. Privacy regulation is an evolving area in
which different jurisdictions may subject us to inconsistent compliance requirements. Compliance with
applicable privacy regulations may increase our operating costs and/or adversely impact our ability to
service our guests and market our products, properties and services to -our guests. In addition, non-
compliance with applicable privacy regulations by us (or in some-circumstances non-compliance by third
parties engaged by us) could result in fines or restrictions on our use or transfer of data.

We rely on our proprietary systems and any failures in such systems could negatively affect our business.
We invest in sophisticated technology and systems for property management, procurcment, reservations °
and the operation of our HHonors customer loyalty program. If our systems fail to operate as anticipated,
or we fail to replace our systems with new systems introduced by our competitors, our business could
suffer. In addition, we are combining the systems used by the hotels acquired in the HI Acquisition with
ours, and'if we experience difficulties in merging these systems, it could disrupt our operations. '

In addition, see the cautionary factors set forth under Item 1 “Busmess———Addltmnal Informatlon—-
Competition™ and “ Enwronmental Matters

Item 1B, Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Propeﬁies

We consider our hotels to be leading establishments with respect to desirability of location, size,
facilities, physical condition, quality and the variety of services offered in most-of the areas in which they
are located. Obsolescence arising from age and condition of facilities is a factor in; the hotel industry.
Accordingly, we spend, and intend to continue to spend, substantial funds to maintain the condition of our

owned facilities in order to remain competltwe )

. Hotels and timeshare propert:es owned, leased, managed and franchlsed by us are briefly described
under Item 1-and, in particular, under the caption “Operations,” and are incorporated by reference herein.
In addition, new properties presently under construction that we will operate are briefly described under
“Operations—Development” under Item 1.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
- The description of legal proceedings in- “Note 18: Commitments and Contingencies” to the
consolidated financial statements included under Part II—Item 8 is incorporaied by reference herein.

i o . . ,
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.,
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- PARTII

Item 8. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Smckholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

Qur Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchangc and i§ traded under the symbot
“HLT.” As,of December 31, 2006, we had approximately 11,500 stockholders of record, although we
believe that there are a significantly larger number of beneficial holders of our. Common Stock. The high
and low reported sales prices per share of our, Common St¢ck and dividends declared per share of
Common Stock are set forth in the following table for the periods indicated:

Dividend

High  low Per Share
2005 : S : E -
Ist Quarter .......... e e e e e e ... 23.36 - 20.93 02
2nd QUATTET ..ottt i et 25.06 21.37 02
3rd Quarter. .. ..... [, e .o, 2581 21.10 .04
4th Quarter............ T ... 2435 18.78 .04
2006 — s ' _
1SEQUATTET ..ot e aieaieanaans e, s 6 2605 .. 2276 04
2nd Quarter ..... P .. 29.22 25.06 04 -
3rd Quarter. . .... e e e 28.53 23.19 04
WO VT T 35.79 27.16 Y.}
2007 _ '
1st Quarter (through February 23,2007)................ eee 37.82 33.27 04

nghts Agreement

On November 29, 1999 we adopted a preferred share purchase rlghtq plan (the “nghts Plan”) and
declared a dividend dlstnbunon of one prcferrcd share purchase right (a ‘Right”) on each outstanding
share of our Common Stock. We have entered into a rights agreement, dated as of November 29, 1999,
which was amended as of February 15, 2001 to provide for the substitution of The Bank of New York as
Rights Agent (as amendéd, the “Rights Agreement”). The Rights are transferred only with the Common
Stock, unless and until they become exercisable. The' Rights will expire ‘on November 29, 2009, %ubject to
our right to extend, unless earlier redeémed or exchanged by us or terminated. : :

defined below):

() acquireé beneficial ownership of 20 percent or more of the Common Stock (such person or
group, an “Acquiring Person”); or

Gencrally, the Rights become exercisable only if a pcrsoln or group (other than Hilton Intercsts, as

(ii} announccs a tender offer, the consummation of which would reSUIt in ownershlp by a person or
group of 20 percent or more of the Common Stock.

. When exercisable, each Right entitles a shareholder to purchase from us one one-hundredth of a
share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock at an exercise price of $80, subject to adjustment
(the “Purchase Price”).
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After a person becomes an Acquiring Person, each holder of a Right (other than Rights owned by the
Acquiring Person) will have the right to receive, upon exercise of such Right, a number of shares of
Common Stock having a market value equal to two times the then current Purchase Price of the Right.
After a person becomes an Acquiring Person, if we engage in certain mergers or transfers of asscts, each
holder of a Right (other than Rights owned by the Acquiring Person) will have the right to receive upon
exercise, at the Right’s exercise price, a number of the acquiring company’s common shares having a
market value of twnce the Right’s Purchase Price.

Once a person becomes an Acquiring Person, but prlor ‘to their acqmsntlon of 50 pcrcent or more of
the outstanding Common Stock, our Board of Directors may cause us to exchange the Rights (other than
Rights owned by an Acqumng Person), in whole or in part, for shares of Common Stock at an exchange
ratio based on the value of the Common Stock at that time, subject to adjustment.

Prior to a person or group becoming an Acquiring Person, the Rights are redcemable for $.001 per
Right at the option of our Board of Directors.

“Hilton Interests” refer to Barron Hilton and the Conrad N. Hilton Fund and the shares of Common
Stock beneficially owned by them. !

The Rights Agreement, as amended, has been filed as Exhibits 4.8 and 4.9 to this Form 10-K, and the
foregoing summary is qualified in its entirety by reference thereto.
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Performance Graph

The graph below shows the cumulative total stockholder return for the five years ended December 31,
2006, assuming the investment of $100 on December 31, 2001 (and the reinvestment of dividends and
common stock equivalents) in each of our Common Stock, the S&P 500 Stock Index and the S&P 500
Hotels, Resorts and Crume Lines Index,

Companson of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return of the Company, S&P 500 Stock Index
and S&P 500 Hotels, Resorts and Cn'nse Lines Index .
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Hilton Hotels Corporation.................. $100.00 11713 15876 211.65 22559 32843
S&P 500 Stock Index............ e SN $100.00 73.90 100.25 111.15 116.61 135.03
S&P 500 Hotels, Resorts & Cruise Lines Index  $100.00 8956 136.22 - 198.37 20140 230.83
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data as of and for the years ended December 31, 2002 through 2006
has been derived from,our consolidated financial statements. The following data should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements, the related notes thereto contained under Item 8
and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fmancxal Condition and Results of Operations” under
Item 7.

"' Year Ended December 31, ' )
2002 2003 2004 2005 - 2006

(in millions, except per share amounts)

Results of Operations

Revenue.........coovuviune. L. e ~$3816 3,819 4,146 4,437 8,162
Netincome ............ e e e e, 198 164 238 460 572
Net income per share—Basic........... e 53 43 62 1,20 1.49
Net income per share—Diluted........ IRTRRRRRRISTIRIIS 53 43 60 113 1.39
Other Financial Data: .

Dividends per common share. ...........ooiiviineiinanns $ .08 .08 .08 A2 16
Balance Sheet Data: i . :
Total ASSELS v v vvvvvverriinrinrannanns e $8,348 B,183. 8,242 8,743 16481
Longtermdebt. ... .. i s 4565 4,139 3,647 3,619 6,968

Long-term debt includes current maturities and excludes non-recourse debt and capital lease
obligations of non-controlled entities. .

On February 23, 2006, we acquired Hilton International in a business combination accounted for as a
purchase. Accordingly, our consolidated financial results include the results of Hilton International from
the date of acquisition. See “Note 3: Purchase of Hilton International” to the consclidated financial
statements under Item 8.

2
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Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition anid Results.of Operations

OVERVIEW

v

We are engaged in the ownership, management and development of hotels, resorts and timeshare
properties and the franchising of lodging properties. At December 31, 2006, our system contained 2,935
propertics totaling approximately 501,000 rooms in 78 countries and territories. Our brands include Hilton,
Hilton Garden Inn, Doubletree, Embassy Suites, Homewood Suites by Hilton, Hampton, Scandic, Conrad
and the Waldorf=Astoria Collection. In addition, we dcvelép and operate timeshare resorts through
Hilton Grand Vacations Company and its related entities. Wejare also engaged in various other activities
related or incidental to the operation of hotels.

The number of properties and rooms at December 31, ZOOT by brand and by type are as follows:

Brand ' Properties Rooms Type ‘ " " Properties Rooms
Hilton...........coovvvvvviins, 498 172,605 Owned(1).......... 60 29,647
Hilton Garden Inn.............. 302 41,669 leased ........... 203 46,663
Doubletree .................... 173 45,119 Joint Venture . . ... 53 17,232

- Embassy Suites............. e 185 45,172 316 03,542
‘Homewood Suites by Hilton ..... 192 21,141 ) : .
Hampton.................... .- 1,392 138487 Managed......... 343 07,536
Scandic. ..ot 129 22,808 . FHranchised........ 2,242 306,660
Conrad.........coovvninn..., 15 5152 | 2,585 404,196
Other .................... T 15 5,585 -

_Timeshare ..................... 34 3,740 Tmeshare........ ' 34 . 3,740
Total........... e 2935 501,478 Total............. 2935 501478

(1) Includes majority owned and controlled hotels.

QOur operations consist of three reportable segments which are based on similar products or services:
Hotel Ownership, Managing and Franchising, and Timeshate. The Hotel Ownership segment derives
earnings from owned, majority owned and leased hotgl properties and equity earnings from
unconsolidated affiliates (primarily hotel and other real estate joint ventures). The Managing and
Franchising segment provides services including hotel manageqlent and licensing of our family of brands to
franchisees. This segment generates its revenue from fees charged to hotel owners. As a manager of hotels,
we are typically responsible for supervising or operating thHe hotel in exchange for fees based on a
percentage of the hotel’s gross revenue, operating profits, cash flow, or a combination thereof. We charge
franchise fees, depending on the brand, of up to five percent of rooms revenue in exchange for the use of
one of our brand names. The Timeshare segment consists o% multi-unit timeshare resorts. This segment

sells and finances timeshare intervals and operates timeshare resorts.

Our results are significantly affected bv occupancy and room rates achieved by our hotels, our ability
to manage costs, foreign currency exchange rate movements related to our international operations, our
relative mix of owned, leased, managed and franchised hotels, the quantity and pricing of timeshare
interval sales and changes in the number of available hotel rooms and timeshare intervals through
acquisition, development and disposition. Fesults are also impacted by economic conditions and capacity.
Unfavorable changes in these factors could negatively impact hotel room demand and pricing which, in
turn, could limit our ability to pass through operating cost increases in the form of higher room rates.
Additionally, our ability to manage costs could be adversely impacted by significant increases in operating
expenses, resulting in lower operating margins. See “Risk Fellctors” under Item 1A for a description of
these and other conditions that could adversely affect our results of operations.
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The hospitality industry is seasonal in nature. However, the periods during which our properties
experience higher or lower levels of demand vary from property to property and depend principally upon
location. Based upon historical results, we generally expect our revenue to be lower in the first flscal
quarter of each year than in each of the three subsequent quarters.

/

We anticipate thata favorable economic environment will continue to benefit the lodging industry and
us in 2007. A continuation of strong hotel demand among business, group and leisure travelers, combined
with limited full-service hotel supply growth, should enable us to charge higher room rates. We also
anticipate growth in our management and franchise fee business as the number of hotels in our system
continues to increase. Increases in construction costs could result in downward pressure on the margins
achieved by our timeshare business. Reported revenue and expenses from our timeshare business are also
expected to be negatively impacted by deferrals required under percentage-of-completion accounting as we
begin construction of new timeshare projects. We will continue to focus on managing our costs, achieving
revenue per available room (“RevPAR™) premiums in the markets where we operate, ' increasing
occupancy, adding new units to our family of brands, leveraging technology and delivering outstanding
customer service. We believe that our focus on these objectives, combined with our financ1al strength,
diverse market presence, strong brands, strategically located properties and ability to grow our brands
mternationally will enable us to remain competitive.

In July 2006, we announced .a five-year agreement with UNITE HERE the union representing a
majority of our unionized employees, termed a “partnership for future growth” which includes agreement
by the parties to work together toward labor peace- in cities with, collective bargaining. Since the
announcement, collective bargaining agreements have been reached and ratified-in key markets including
New York, Chicago, Puerto Rico, San Francisco, Toronto and Honolulu. A description of certain risks
relating to potential labor disputes is described in “Risk Factors” under Item 1A. At this time, we cannot
predict when or whether new agreements will be reached in other markets in which we have employees
covered by collective bargaining agreements and what the impact of prolonged negotiations could be.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The prepdratlon of financial statements in conformity w1th accounting prmc1ples generally accepted in
the Umted States (“GAAP”) requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial- statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. We
evaluate our estimates and. assumptions on an ongoing basis. We base our estimates and judgments on
historical experience and other factors we believe to be reasonable under'the circumstances, which form
the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not rcadily
apparent from other sources. R .

+

We believe the following critical accounting policies, among others, affect our more significant
estimates and assumptions used in preparing our consolidated financial statements. Actual results could
differ from our estimates and assumptions

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable are reflected net of an estimated allowance for uncollectible amounts. For timeshare
notes receivable, this estimate is based primarily on historical experience and assumptions with respect to
future payment trends. Allowances for uncollectible amounts of other notes receivable, which include
notes from managed, franchised and unconsolidated joint venture properties, are estimated based
primarily on historical trends and analysis of underlying real estate collateral. Assessment of collateral may
include estimates of future cash flow from the underlying real estate. Total notes receivable, including
timeshare, totaled $401 million and $479 million, net of allowances for uncollectible amounts of
$24 million and $35 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.
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Property and Investments

Property and equipment acquired in acquisitions that were ccounted for as purchases are recorded at
their estimated fair value as of the date acquired, less accumulated deprecmnon Other, property and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, We also maintain cost and equity method
investments in entities that own and operate hotel properties |and entities that perform: other activities
related or incidental to the operation of hotels. The assessment of long-lived assets for possible
impairment requires us to make certain judgments, including Estimates of real estate values and future
cash flow from the respective properties and investments. We review the recoverability of our long-lived
assets when events or changes in circumstances indicate that tl}e carrying amount of an asset may not be
fully recoverable. Results in 2004 and 2005 include pre-tax 1mpa1rment charges to long-lived assets of
approximately $5.million in each year to reduce the value of p'roperty and equipment and equlty method
mvcstmcnts to estlmated falr value. There were no 1mpalrment charges in 2006 :

Sales of Real Estate : . R B

We account for the sale of rcal éstite in accordance with Statement of Fmancnal Accounting
Standards (“FAS”) 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estatc ” To the extent we realize gains from the sale
of real estate and maintain significant continuing involvement in the form of a long-term management
contract, the gain is deferred and recognized in revenue over th'e term of the contract. The deferral of pre-
tax gains on such sales totaled $5 million, $236 million and $5 mllhon in 2004, 2005 and 2006 respectively.
Results in 2004, 2005 and 2006 include the recognition of pre-tax deferred gains totaling $15 million,
$23.million and $38 million, respectively. The dcferral of gam rEcogmtlon is dependent on the structure of
individual sale transactions. - ' -

. ‘. .

Intangible Assets

Our intangible assets include management and franchise [ontracts, leases, brands and goodwill. We
account for management and franchise contracts and leases in accordance with FAS 144 “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” which rec'lulres that we review our management and
franchise contracts and leases for impairment when circumstantes indicate that their carrying amourits may
not be recoverable. The values of our management and franchise contracts and leases are amortized using
the straight-line ‘'method over the life of the’ agreements. Thé assessment of managcmcnt and franchise
contracts and leases requires us to make certain Judgments if cluding estimates of future cash flow from
the respective properties. Management and franchise contracts, net, totaled $302 million and $1.18 billion
at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Leases, nctI totaled $107 million and $319 million at
December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. We' account for brands and goodwill in accordance with
FAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which rehmres that intangible "assets with indefinite
lives are not amortized, but are reviewed annually for lmpalrment The annual impairment review requires
estimates of future cash flow with respect to the brands and estimates of the fair value of our .company and
its components with respect to goodwill,
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- Self-Insurance )

We are self-insuted for various levels of general liability, workers’ compensation and employee
medical arid dental insurance coveragé at our owned locations. We purchase insurance coverage for claim
amounts which exceed our self-insured retentions. Depending on the type of insurance, these self-insured
retentions generally range from $250,000 to $500,000 per occurtence in the U.S. and approximately $2,000
to $500,000 internationally. Our self-insurance reserves totaled $146 million and $156 million -at
December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Qur insurance reserves are accrued based on estimates of the
ultimate cost of claims expected to occur during the covered period. These estimates are prepared with the
assistance of outside actuaries and consultants. Our actuaries periodically review the volume and amount
of claims activity, and based upon their findings, we adjust our insurance reserves accordingly. The
ultimate cost of claims for a covered period may differ from our original estimates.  * L

b

Comm:tments and Contmgenctes . L

i

We have issued letters. of credlt and guaranteed. certain debt and: obllgatlons of unconsolldated
affiliates and third parties totaling $153 million at December 31, 2006..Under certain circumstances, we
may be obligated to provide additional letters of credit or guarantees totaling $74 million. Assessment of
the probability that we w111 be requnred to fund under these commitments requtres us to make estimates of

the ablhty of others to meet their obhgatlons . "

We have .also provxded performance guarantees to certain owners of hotels. we operate under
management contracts. Most of these guarantees allow us to terminate the contract rather than fund
shortfalls if specified performance.levels are not achieved. In limited .cases, we are obligated to fund
performance shortfalls. At December 31, 2006, we have six contracts containing performance guarantees
with possible cash outlays totaling approximately $523 million through 2020. Funding under these
performance guarantees totaled approximately $2 million in 2006 and is expected to total approximately
$3 million in 2007. Funding under these guarantees in future periods is dependent upon the operating.
performance levels of these hotels over the remaining term of the performance guarantees In 2006 we
increased the reserve for the performance guarantee at a, managed hotel by apprommately $12 million
based on our estlmate of the guarantee payment that will be required at the end of the contract term in
2012. Although we annclpate that the future operatmg performance levels of these hotels will be largely
'achleved there can be no assurance that this will be the case. In addmon we do not ant1c1pate losmg a
s:gnlftcam number of management contracts in 2007 pursuant to these guarantees

_ Our consolidated financial statements at December31, 2005 and 2006 include liabilities of
approximately $6 mllhon and $18 million, respectlvely, for potentlal obligations under our outstanding
guarantees.

+

Cu'rrency Translation

. Assets and liabilities denominated in forengn currenc:les are translated into U.S. dollars at year—end
exchange rates and the related gains and losses, net of appllcable deferred i 1ncorne taxes, are reflected in
stockholders’ equity. Gains and losses from forelgn currency transactions are mcluded in earnmgs ‘Income
and expense accounts are translated at the average exchange rate for the period. Gains and losses from
foreign exchange rate changes related to intercompany receivables and payables of a long-term nature are
generally included in other comprehensive income. Gains and losses from foreign exchange rate movement
related to 1ntereompany receivables and payables that are not of a long -term nature are reported currently
in income. - : t : '

: 1
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Hilton HHonors ‘ _ ‘
‘Hilton HHonors is a guest loyalty program operated by Hilton HHonors Worldwide, LLC (“HHW?”),

a wholly owned and consolidated subsidiary as of December 31, 2006. At December 31,.2005, HHW was a
50% joint venture accountedfor under the equity method of accounting. As part of the acquisition of the
lodging assets of Hilton Group plc on February 23, 2006 |(the “HI Acquisition”), we acquired the

remaining 50% ownership interest. The HHonors program ij operated for the benefit- of our family of

brands worldwide. Members.of the HHonors program earn p
hotel properties- operated and franchised by us. HHW accu
behalf and fulfills awards upon request. Points can be redeem
and for a variety of other awards such as airline tickets, cruises

ints based. on their spending at most of the
ulates and tracks points ‘on. the member’s

v

nd car rentals.

}d for hotel stays at partlclpatmg propertles

HHonors is prowded as a guest loyalty progfam 10 pdrtlmpatmg "hotels, HHW charges the cost of
operating the program, including the estimated cost of award redcmptlons to participating hotels based on

members’ qualifying expenditures. These charges do not inclu
hotels record our share of.program costs when qualified me
members redeem awards at our hotels, our owned hotels recog

We ‘use outside actuaries to assist in determining the f
obligation based on statistical formulas which project future pc
historical experience, an estimate of points that will never be r¢
eventually be redeemed and the cost of reimbursing-hotels 4
redemption opportunities available to members. These estin
liability for outstanding points. Actual expenditures for awards
_ liability. The total liability recorded for outstanding points as of

.ot : ‘ I

Purchase Accounting .

F

e a markup or profit element. Our owned

bers stay at our owned hotéls. When the .
ze revenue for reward stays.

air value of the future award'redenlption
vint redemiptions ‘based on factors'including

deemed, an estimate of the points that will

ind other third parties in respect to other
nates are used to determine the required

may differ from the actuarially determined
December 31, 2006 was $421 million.

L

" In ‘connection Wlth the HI Acqulsmon we allocated the purchase price to the assets acqu1red

1nc1ud1ng goodwill- and other intangible assets, and liabilitics ad
at thé acquisition date in accordance with FAS 141 “Business
and dssumed liabilities, fair values are based on factors includin
expected future cash flows, current replacement cost, dispositio
Acquisition, marKet rate assumptions and appropriate discount
Hilton International” to our consolidated financial statements v
Revenue Recognition .

Revenue is generally recognized as services are perio
represents primarily room rentals and food and beverage salg

hotels. . Le

Management fees represent fees earned from hotels manag
with the hotel owner. Management fees include a base fee,
revenue, and an incentive fée, which is genelally based on a fixe
stated return threshold to the owner. We recognize base fees 3

T

sumed based on their respective fair values
Combmatlons * In valuing acquired assets
g, but'not iimited to, quoted market prices,
n values of certain assets acqmred in the HI.
and growth rates. See “Note 3: Purchase of
nder Itém 8 for more 1nf0rmat10n

rmed.' Owned and leased hotel revenue
s from owned, majority owned and leased

ved by us, usually under leng-term contracts
which is generally .a percentage of hotel
d or variable percent of hotel profits after a
s revenue when earned in accordance with

the terms of the contract.’In interim periods we recognize the incentive fees that would be due if the

contract were terminated at the end of the mterlm perlod

Franchise fees represent fees recelved in connection with the licensing of our brand names, usually

under long-term contracts with the hotel owner. Depending on
of up to five percent of room revenue. We recognize fee reve
“Accounting for Franchise Fee Revenue.”
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Timeshare and other income primarily consists of earnings from our tlmeshare operations. Tlmeshare
revenue is generated primarily from the sale and financing of timeshare lntervals and operating timeshare
resorts. We recognize revenue from deeded timeshare sales in accordance with FAS 66, “Accounting for
Real Estate Sales.” Sales are included in revenue when a minimum of a 10 percent down payment has
been received, certain minimum sales thresholds have been attained, the purchaser’s period to cancel for a
refund has expired and the related receivable is deemed to be collectible. We defer revenue recognition for
sales that do not meet these criteria. During periods: of construction, profits from timeshare sales’ are
recognized under the percentage-of—comp]etron method. Our Hilton City Club timeshare produdt ‘is -
accounted for as a long-term lease with a reversionary interest rather than the sale of a decded interest in
real estate. Hllton City Club sales revenue is recognized on a stralght -line basis over the term of the lease.

We incur certain relmbursab]e costs on behalf of managed hotel properties and franchisees. We
report reimbursements received from managed properties and franchisees as revenue and the costs
incurred on their behalf as expenses. These costs, which relate primarily to payroll costs at managed
properties where we are the employer, are included in other revenue and expenses from managed and
franchised properties in the consolidated statements of income. Since the reimbursements are made based
upon the costs incurred with no added margin, the presentation of these reimbursable costs has no effect
on our operating income, total or per share net income, cash flow or financial position.

i v

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with FAS 109, “Accountmg for Income Taxes.” The
objectives of accounting for income taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for
the current year and to recognize deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of
events that have been recognized in our fi nancial statements or tax returns.

.

Current and- deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for estimated taxes payable or
refundable due to temporary differences and carryforwards. All available evidence, both positive and
negative, is considered to determine whether based on the weight of that evidence, a valuation allowance
is needed for some portion or all of'a deferred tax asset. Judgment is used in c0n31der1ng the relative
|mpact of negatlve and positive evidence.

- .
B 1

Use of Esnmates

The, estimates and assumpuons related to notes recelvable long-lived assets, mtanglble assets; self—
insurance, commitments and contingencies, HHonors, purchase accounting, revenue recognition and
.income taxes are subject to change based on the factors identified above. We believe that our estimates
and assumptions are reasonable and have resulted in accurate measurement of the related accounts in our
historical financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because estimates are used, it is reasonably likely
that there will be some variability. between projected results and actual results over time. In'addition, given
the significance of these accounts to our consolidated financial position, the variability between projected
and actual results could be material to our financial position or results of operatlons

DEVELOPMENT AND CAPITAL SPEN DING

Overview

3

On February 23, 2006, we completed the acquisition of the lodging assets of Hilton Group plc for cash
consideration of approximately £3.3 billion, equivalent to approximately $5.7 billion as of the transaction
date, excluding acquisition costs. The HI Acquisition was financed with existing cash on hand and with
borrowings under our new senior credit facilities (see “Liquidity and Capital Resources—Financing” and
“Note 3: Purchase of Hilton International” to the consolidated financial statements under Item 8). As a
result of the HI Acquisition, we added approximately 400 properties and 103,000 rooms to our system.
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We also intend to grow our hotel system through franchising and the addition of management
contracts. We will also continue to invest in capital improvements and select projects at our owned hotels
and the development of timeshare properties. In addition, we may seek to acquire ownership interests in
hotel properties on a strategic and selective basis, either directly or through investments in joint ventures.

In addition to the properties added to our system in the | I Acquisition, we’ added .a total of‘2'23
properties, primarily franchises, with approximately 36,000 rooms to our system during 2006. A total of 74
properties, primarily franchises, with approximately 12,000 rooms were removed from our system in 2006.
We believe the continued strong performance of our brands hds enabled us to significantly enhance our
development pipeline versus our industry competitors, We have inore than 775 hotels, primarily franchises,
with 110,000 rooms in our development pipeline at December 31, 2006. Approximately 90 percent of the
hotels in the current development pipeline are in the Americas (U.S., Canada, Mexico and South
America), though international development is expected to comprise an increasingly larger percentage of
our development pipeline over the next few years. In 2007, we eJerct to add approximately 255 hotels and
35,000 rooms to our. hotel system. We expect virtvally all of Ithis growth to be through franchise and
management agreements. The actual opening of hotels in our development pipeline is subject to various
conditions and uncertainties. Co o

We believe our brand growth strategy continues to bqneﬁt from the significant market share
premiums most of our brands command over their respective competitive sets. With 100 representing a
brand’s fair share of the market, our domestic brands (according to Smith Travel Research) posted
RevPAR index numbers as follows for 2006: Embassy Suites) 124.7, Hampton Inn, 122.9; Homewood
Suites by Hilton, 114.3; Hilton Garden Inn, 112.4; Hilton, 105.6;]and Doubletree, 101.5. ' '

Our ability to grow the number of hofels in our system is affected by the factors referenced under Item
1A “Risk Factors,” such as international, narional and regionalleconomic conditions; the effects of actual
and threatened terrorist attacks and international conflicts; acts of God, such as natural disasters; credit
availability; relationships with franchisees and property owners; and competition from other hotel brands,

In total, we anticipate spending approximately $985 million on capital expenditures in 2007, which
includes approximately $320 million for routine improvements and technology, approximately $§315 million
for timeshare projects and approximately $350 million for hotql] renovation, hotel investment and special
projects. Routine improvements include expenditures for equipment, hotel fixtures, and, wall and floor
coverings. Expenditures required to complete our capital spending programs are expected to be financed
through available cash flow from operations and general corporate borrowings. To the extent we complete
additional asset sales in 2007, capital expenditures can be expected to decrease. Anticipated capital
expenditures are subject to change due to, among other things, changes in business operations and.
economic conditions. '

We will continue to review our owned hotel portfolio for potential repositioning or re-branding
opportunities (see “Liquidity and Capital Resources—Acquisitions and Dispositions”) and we may seek to
sell certain assets, including assets acquired in the HI Acquisition. It is our intention to be opportunistic
when evaluating potential asset sales and we will look to sell particular hotel properties to the extent we
can obtain premium prices. We are currently marketing for sdllc certain of our owned and leased hotels,
including ten hotels in continental Europe, the Hilton Caledonian in Scotland and six properties in the
U.S. We are also marketing for sale the Scandic brand of hotels. As discussed in “Note 5: Acquisitions and
Dispositions” to the consolidated financial statements under Item 8, until the necessary approvals have
been received and substantive conditions to the buyer’s obligation to perform have been satisfied, we do
not consider a sale to be probable. When we sell a hotel property, it is generally our preference to retain a
management or franchise agreement; however, we may sell hotels without retaining our brand.
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Hotel Ownership

Capital expenditures during 2006 excluding timeshare projects totaled $613 million, consisting
primarily of routine improvements and renovation projects at our owned and leased hotels. The 2006
expenditures include approximately $92 million for renovations at the Waldorf= Astoria, Hilton New York
and Hilton Hawaiian Village. Renovation projects are expected to continue at these three properties in
2007. We continue to place a prlorlty on making approprlate capital expendltures to maintain and upgrade
our owned assets. :

.

Managing and F ranchisihg

Total property additions to our system in 2006 included 204 franchise properties, 17 managed
properties owned by third parties and two leased properties. These additions included 32 propertles which,
due in part to the market share leadership of our brands, were converted to our famlly of brands in 2006.
The 32 conversions included 16 Doubletrees, eight Hiltons, five Hamptons and three Hilton Garden Inns.

In early 2006, we introduced a new brand line, the Waldorf=Astoria Collection. This elite. brand
designation debuted with New York’s legendary Waldorf= Astoria, along with three world-class luxury
resorts managed by us: the Grand Wailea Resort Hotel & Spa on the island of Maui in Hawaii; the
Arizona Biltmore Resort & Spa in Phoenix; and the La Quinta Resort & Club in La Quinta, California.
Also in 2006, we commenced management of the Qasr Al Sharq in Jeddah, Saudi Arabia. We anticipate
that the Waldorf=Astoria Collection will continue to grow primarily through branding of existing
landmark or boutique hotels and opening newly built properties in select cities.

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we announced plans to form a jomt venture with real estate developer
DLF Limited to develop hotel properties and serviced apartments in India. The joint-venture company
plans to develop and own 50 to 75 mid-scale and extended- -stay hotels over the next seven years. We also
announced an alliance with Deutsche Asset Management and HQ Asia Pacific in which they will develop
an initial 25 Hilton Garden Inns in Beljmg, Shanghal and Tlan]m China, which are expected to be
franchised hotels.

Timeshare

) We are currently developing new timeshare projects in Las Vegas, Nevada, Orlando, Florida,

New York, New York, Honolulu and Waikoloa, Hawaii. The Waikoloa (Kohala Coast Vacation Suites)
project opened its remaining 98 units in 2006; this project contains 120 units in total. At our International
Drive property in Orlando (Tuscany Village), the first six phases totaling 376 units are open, including
70 units opened in January 2007. Construction has begun on the final 64 units, which are scheduled to
open in spring 2008. Also in Orlando, we added 48 units in 2006 to our existing property adjacent to Sea
World. The second phase of our property on the Las Vegas Strip, which consists of 431 units, was
completed in 2006. Appr0x1mately 45 percent of the planned four-tower, 1,582-unit project has been
completed.

In 2006, we began construction of a hew timeshare project in Honolulu, Hawaii at the Hilton
Hawaiian Village. Upon completion scheduled for late 2008, the Waikikian Tower is expected to contain
331 units. We also began development of a new project in Waikoloa, Hawaii (“Kings Land”). Phase I of
the ngs Land development is expected to contain 198 units and is scheduled for completion in 2010, In
September 2006, we announced our development of a new timeshare project in New York, New York on
West 57" Street. Upon completion in early 2009, the 57 Street Tower is expected to contain 161 units. In
2007, we began construction of our new timeshare project at Ruby Lake in Orlando. Phase I of the Ruby
Lake project is expected to contain 141 units and is scheduled for completion in 2609.

As we are currently constructing several new timeshare projects, our timeshare business is.expected to
be negatively impacted from a reporting standpoint, by percentage-of-completion accounting associated
with new projects in 2007. We expect the impact of percentage-of-completion accounting on 2007 results 10
reverse in 2008.
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! Capital expenditures associated with our timeshare operations during 2006 totaled $261 million.
Timeshare capital expenditures are expected to increase to approximately $315 million in 2007 as we
continue to invest in the development of new product in Las Végas, Orlando, Hawaii and New York. The
capital expenditures associated with our non-lease timeshare products are reflected as inventory until the
timeshare intervals are sold. We also provide financing to the [buyers of our timeshare intervals. During
2006, we issued approximately $335 million of loans related to(timeshare financings. Principal collections -
on timeshare notes during the same period were approximately $226 million.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Overview

Net cash prov:ded by operating activities totaled $548 mllllon $486 miilion and $652 million for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, réspectively. The net increase in 2006 relates primarily to
improved operating results and operatmg cash flow as a result of the HI Acquisition, partially offset by net
cash-used for timeshare construction in excess of timeshare sales and increased restricted cash balances.
The net decrease in*2005 compared to 2004 relates primarily to net cash used by timeshare construction in
excess of timeshare sales and a reduction in deferred income taxes resultmg from the sale of assets in 2005.
‘These decreases were partially offset by i Impr oved operating results.

Net cash provided by operating activities in 2004 and 2005 each benefited from a reduction in the
valuation allowance for capital loss tax carryforwards which reduced the provision for income taxes (See
“Liquidity and Capital Resources—Acquisitions and DlSpOSlthHS below, and “Note 13: Income Taxes” to
the consolidated financial statements under Item 8). Our ablllty to utilize capital loss tax carryforwards to

. reduce our provision for income taxes is dependent on the avaﬂablllty of capital loss tax carryforwards and
the existence of transactions that enable these capital loss carry‘fonwarcls to be utilized. Therefore, it should
not be assumed that such benefits will be available to us in the future.

I

‘ Net cash used in investing activities totaled $4.598 billion|in 2006 and net cash provided by investing
activities totaled $620 million in 2005. The et cash used in lnv sting activities in 2006 was primarily due to

‘ the HI Acquisition (see “Note 3: Purchase of Hilton International” to the consolidated financial
statements under Item 8), the acquisition of management contracts and higher capital expenditures. These -

j increases in cash used in investing activities were partially offsqt by an increase in proceeds from asset sales

‘ in 2006 over the prior year and an increase in payments received on notes and other. Net cash used in
investing activities totaled $132 million in 2004 and net cash provided by investing activities totaled $620
‘million in 2005. The increase in net cash provided by investing activities was primarily due to an increase in
net proceeds from asset dispositions in 2005 compared to the|prior year, partially offset by higher capital
expenditures. ' : o '

Net cash used in financing activities totaled $255 million{in 2005 and net cash provided by financing
activities totaled $2.918 billion in 2006. The net change between periods is primarily due to the new senior
credit facilities used to partlally fund the HI Acquisition, net of repayments, and share repurchases in the
prior year. Net cash used in financing activities totaled $122° million in 2004 compared to $255 million in
2005. The increase in 2005 reflects increased share repurchases and lower proceeds from the issuance of
common stock, reflecting a lower volume of stock option exercises, partially offset by a lower level of debt
repayments in the 2005 period. ' '

Our ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the years ended|{December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 was 2.2x,
3.1x and 2.3x, respectively. ¢
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Cash and equivalents totaled $138 miliion at December 31, 2006, a decrease of $1.016 billion from
December 31, 2005. The decrease in cash and equivalents is due primarily to cash being used to partially
fund the HI Acquisition. Restricted cash totaled $293 million, an increase of $111 million from the prior
year resulting primarily from an increase in cash reserves related to our collateralized borrowings and the
addition of three consolidated non-controlled entities as part of the HI Acquisition. Restricted cash
includes cash related to certain consolidated hotels, the use of which is restricted for hotel purposes under
the terms of collateralized borrowings; refundable deposits on the sale of timeshare intervals; and cash
balances held by consolidated non-controlled entities. We believe that our operating cash flow, available
borrowmgs under our revolving credit facilities and our ability to obtain additional financing through
various financial markets are sufficient to meet our liquidity needs:(see “Liquidity and Capital
Resources—Financing”). However, any projections of future financial needs and sources of working
capital are subject to uncertainty. See “Results of Operations” below and “Additional Information—
Forward-Looking Statements” under Item 1 and “Risk Factors” under Item 1A for further discussion of
conditions that could adversely. affect our estimates of future financial needs and sources-of working
capltal

Financing

In connection with the HI Acquisition in.February 2006 (sec “Note 3: Purchase of Hilton
International” to the consolidated financial statements under Item 8), we entered into new senior credit
facilities in an initial aggregate principal U.S. dollar equivalent of .approximately $5.75 billion with a
syndicate of financial institutions. These facilities replaced our $1 billion revolving credit facility and are
'secured by a pledge of the capital stock of certain of our wholly owned subsidiaries. The senior credit
facilities consist of the following:

+ U.S. Dotlar Denominated Revolver—S year, $3. 25 blIllon avallable in U.S. dollars Britlsh Pounds,
Euros and Swedish Kronor or other currencies acceptable to the administrative agent Interest is at
a variable rate depending upon our leverage ratio and senior debt ratings, with initial borrowings at
applicable London Interbank Offerec[ Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 150 basis points (which includes a 25
basis point annual facility fee). The capacity under our revolver was also used to support certain
outstanding letters of credit. Total revolving debt capacity of apprommately $1. 42 billion was
available to us at December 31, 2006. .

« Foreign Currency Denominated Term Loan A—S5 year, approximate equivalent of $2.32 billion at
December 31, 2006, denominated in £675 million, €675 million and Australian $140 million.
Interest is at a variable rate depending upon our leverage ratio and senior debt ratings, with initial
‘borrowings at applicable LIBOR plus 150 basis points.

e US. Dollar Denominated Term Loan B—7 yeai‘, $500 million term loan available only in U.S.
dollars. Interest at LIBOR plus 137.5 basis points.

We also have the option to increase the credit facilities by $500 million. At December 31, 2006, we
have an aggregate prmc1pal U S. dollar equivalent of approximately $3.219 billion outstanding under these
facilities.

Subsequent to our announcement in December 2005 of our agreement to acquire the lodging assets of
Hilton Group plc, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group lowered our senior debt rating from BBB- to BB. In
addition, Moody’s Investor Services lowered our senior debt rating from Baa3 to Ba2. These downgrades
are reflected in the interest rates and facility fee of our $5.75 billion ‘senior credit facilities. On
February 26, 2007, Moody’s Investor Services upgraded our senior debt rating to Bal.
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‘Under the terms of the senior credit facilities, proceed
properties acquired as part of the HI Acquisition are required
credit facilities. In addition, we expect that excess cash flow, if
balances.. - o

_In October 1997, we filed a shelf registration statement wit
registering up to $2.5 billion in debt or equity securities. At De
the shelf totaled $825 million. The terims of any additional
determined by market conditions at the time of issuance.

5, if any, from’the sale of certain owned
to be used for the repayment of our senior
Lmy, will be used to repay outstanding debt

h the Securities and Exchange Commission
cember 31, 2006, available financing under
securities offered under the shelf will be

Provisions under various loan agreements require us to comply with certain covenants which include

limiting the amount of our outstanding indebtedness. Our revo
financial covenants: a leverage ratio and cdebt service cover
financial covenants as of December 31, 2006.

Iving credit facilities contain two significant
ge ratio. We are in compliance with our

Provisions of the financing agreement related to our 7.95% collateralized borrowings due 2_010

require that certain cash reserves be maintained and also restrict the transfer of excess cash generated by
the related properties to us if net cash flow falls below a spe:cified level (the cash trap). The cash trap
became effective in 2003 due to reduced cash flow from the collateralized properties, primarily the Hilton
San Francisco. As of December 31, 2006, cash restricted under the terms of the collateralized borrowings,

including required reserves and the cash trap, totaled $214 mi

lion.. The impact of the cash trap, which is

expected to remain in effect throughout 2007, is not expected ta have a material impact on our liquidity.

As of Décember 31, 2006, abproximateiy 53% of our long
rate swaps and excluding non-recourse debt and capital lease

-term debt, including the impact of interest.
obligations of non-controlled entities, was

floating rate debt. Our total debt, excluding non-recourse debt and capital lease obligations, has a
weighted-average life of approximately 6.1 years and a weighted-average interest rate of approximately
6.6%. : C

The following table summarizes our significant contrac
including long-term debt and operating lease commitments:

ual obligations as of December 31, 2006,

Payments Due by Period ’

) - Less than 1-3 4-5 After
Coatractual Obligations {in millions} Total lyear ' vears years § vears
Long-termdebt ................. ... $ 7468 322 1,447 3,810 1,689
Operating leases. ............. ... 4,159 294 564 526 2,775
- Less: Non-recourse debt and capital

- lease obligations of non-controlied T '
ENtities . ... e {500) (110) (25) (26) (339
Total contractual obligations......... - $11,127 706 1,986 4,310 4,125

Both total debt and operating lease commitments increased from December 31, 2005 as a result of the
HI Acquisition (see “Note 3: Purchase of Hilton Intemationz%ll” and “Note 11: Long-Term Debt” to the
consolidated financial statements under Ttem 8 for further information). Our total debt includes debt and
capital lease obligations related to variable interest entities cinsolidated under FIN 46(R) that are non-
recourse to us. These balances, totaling $500 million, have been deducted in arriving at the total
contractual obligations as of December 31, 2006. These amounts are reflected on our consolidated balance
sheets as non-recourse debt and capital lease obligations of non-controlled entities. '
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Development Financing and Other Commercial Commitments

We have issued guarantees in connection with development financing programs in order {o support
the growth of our brands. The following table summarizes our development financing and other
commercial commitments as of December 31, 2006: ‘

Amount of Commitment Expiration

Per Period
[ Less than 1-3 4-5 After
Commercial Commitments (in millions) ) Total 1 year years - Vears 5 years
Lettersof credit ...........ovvuu .l $110 110 — —_ —
Guarantees .................... e 43 4 19 — 20
4 19 = 2

Total commercial commltments ....... $153 11

See “Note 18: Commitments and Contingencies” to the consolidated financial statements under Item
8 for further dlscusenon of our development financing and other commercial commitments.

Acquisitions and Dispositions

In February 2006, we completed the acquisition of the lodging assets of Hilton Group plc (see
“Note 3: Purchase of Hilton International” to the consolidated financial statements under Item 8).
Additionally, during 2006, we acquired four long-term management contracts and sold 11 wholly owned
hotels, three joint venture interests, one leased hotel and the LivingWell health clubs (see “Note .5:
Acquisitions and Dispositions” to the consolidated financial statements under Item 8).

Stockhoiders’lEquity

In the 2005 third quarter, our Board of Directors apbrovcd an increase to our corﬁmon stock dividend
of $.02 per share to $.04 per share. Annual dividends paid on common shares were $.08, $.12 and $.16 per
share in 2004, 2005 and 2006 respectivcly. - . !

In 2004, we repurchased approximately 2.3 mllllon shares of our common stock at a total cost of
approximately $48 million. During 2005, we repurchaqed approximately 12.3 million shares of our common
stock at a total cost of approximately $271 million. No shares were repurchased in 2006. The timing of
stock purchases is made-at the discretion of management. As of December 31, 2006, approximately 44.7
million shares remained authorized for repurchase. :

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS . S .

We have outstanding guarantees issued in connection with our development financing programe and
other guarantees of debt and other obligations of unconsohdated affiliates and third parties, as well as
commitments under letters of credit. See “Note 18: Commltmcnts and Contmgencaes to the consolidated
financial statéments under Item 8. We maintain investments in unconsolidated affiliates, including hotel
joint ventures as well as other entities that support the operations of our hotel properties. We do not have
investments in or obligations with respect to unconsolidated special purpose entities.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS _

The following discussion prcsem"s an analysis of our results of operations for the three years ended
December 31, 2006. Our operations consist of three reportable segments which are based on similar
products or services: Hotel Ownership, Managing and Franchising, and Tlmcshare
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FISCAL 2006 COMPARED WITH FISCAL 2005 - - : C ST T

.

Overview : S

A summary of our consolidated resuits for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 is as follows:

e, 2005 2006 % Change
’ (i millions, except per share amounts)
REVEIUE .. .ot $4437 8162 84%
Operating income ... .....ovvrunrieeinnenn.. 1805 1,274 58
Netincome.........oooevieneennnn.. T 460 572 24
BasicEPS . ..o 1.20 1.49 24
Diluted EPS . ... .. ..., 113 139 23

Revenue and operating income in 2006 benefited from the HI Acquisition and from strong rate
increases and high demand in most of our major markets, which resulted in significant RevPAR gains at
many of our comparable owned hotels. Management and franchise fee revenue was our highest ever,
increasing 51 percent over the prior year as a result of the HI Acquisition, continued RevPAR growth and
the addition of new units. Results in.2006 also benefited from s{rong results at our timeshare business. Net
income in 2006 was impacted by increases in depreciation, amortization and interest expense due to the HI
Acquisition, and benefited from.net gains on foreign currency transactions. Net income in 2005 benefited
from -higher gains on property transactions compared to 2006, as well as a lower effective tax rate
compared to 2006. , L ; ’

Revenue from owned hotels totaled $2.521 billion in 2006,|a 23 percent increase from $2.049 billion in
2005, and total expenses in 2006 were up 22 percent to $1.780 billion. Strong results at our comparable
owned hotels and the impact of the HI Acquisition were partiially offset by the impact of asset sales and
renovation disruptions in New York and Hawaii. Total revenue from comparable owned hotels (excluding
the impact of asset sales, revenue from our two owned properties in New Orleans which were impacted by
Hurricane Katrina, and the results of the acquired HI owned hlotels) was up eight percent to $1.675 billion
from $1.558 billion in the 2005 period, while comparable owned hotel expenses increased seven percent to
$1.180 billion in 2006 from $1.098 billion in 2005, o ‘ '

Results at our comparable owned properties benefited from continued strong demand and average

rate increases from groups, business and leisure travelers. Rebults in Chicago, San Francisco and Phoenix -

were particularly strong in 2006, each reporting double-digit f{evPAR gains over the prior year. RevPAR
growth at our owned hotels in New York City (the Waldorf=Astoria and the Hilton New York) and at the
Hilton Hawaiian Village was significantly impacted by renovgtion disruptions, though all three properties
achieved strong gains in average daily rate (“ADR”). Renovition disruptions are expected to continue to
impact these three properties in 2007. RevPAR for comparable North American owned properties
increased 8.8 percent for the year, with occupancy rising 0.2 points to 78.7 percent and ADR up 8.6 percent
to $199.24. ’ '

Margins at our comparable North American owned hotels (revenue less expenses as a percentage of
revenue for comparable owned hotels} improved 10 basis points in 2006 to 29.6 percent. The
aforementioned renovation disruptions combined with highér insurance and marketing costs in the year
negatively impacted margins by approximately 170 basijI points. Cost-per-occupied-room increased
7.7 percent in 2006.
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Leased hotel revenue totaled $2.347 billion in 2006 compared to $111 million in 2005, while leased
hotel expenses were $1.985 billion in the current year versus $99 million in the prior year. In the 2006
period, leased hotel revenue and expenses include approximately 200 leased hotels acquired in the HI
Acquisition. Prior to the HI Acquisition, we operated six leased hotels. Results from the leased hotels
acquired in the HI Acquisition reflect business strength in the U.K., continental Europe and the Nordic
region. Due to the relatively large size of the lease payments required in a hotel operating lease, the leased
properties operate al margins. significantly lower than our owned hotels. Leased hotel revenue and
expenses are included with our owned hotels in our Hotel Ownership segment results.

Operating income from unconsolidated affiliates increased $13 mitlion in 2006 to $S7 million. The
increase relates primarily to the addition of unconsolidated affiliates acquired in the HI Acquisition
combined with improved operating results over the 2005 period. Operatmg income from unconsolidated
affiliates is included in our Hotel Ownership segment results.

Management and franchise fee revenue in 2006 increased $232 million or 51 percent to 3684 mitlion.
Fee revenue is based primarily on rooms revenue-at franchise properties and total operating revenue (and
to a lesser extent gross operating profits or cash flow) at managed properties. The strong demand among
business, groups and leisure travelers that benefited our owned hotels also resulted in strong RevPAR
gains for each of our brands on a system-wide basis (including managed and franchised properties). The -
increase in management and franchise fees in 2006 also reflects $109 million of fee revenue as a result of
the HI Acquisition and $26 million of contract termination fees related to the Hilton Times Square and the
Embassy Suites Battery Park in New York. The Times Square and Battery Park properties were sold in.
2006 and we entered into franchise agreements with the new owners. Additionally, strong domestic
development activity as well as the large number of conversions to management and franchise contracts
resulting from our owned asset sales favorably impacted fee revenue. .

Revenue from our timeshare operations (included in_timeshare and other income) totaled $650
million, an increase of $96. million or 17 percent from $554 million in 2005. Timeshare expenses in 2006
(included in other operating expenses) were $491 million compared to $420 million in the prior year.
Timeshare revenue and earnings are generated through developing timeshare resorts and selling the
related intervals, financing the sale of timeshare intervals and through management of timeshare resorts.
Overall timeshare unit sales were up two percent in 2006, while the average unit sales price increased 10
~ percent across the system. Timeshare revenue and profitability also benefited from higher financing
"income and the recogmtlon of previously deferred revenue and expenses due to the required percentage-

of-completion accounting.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $142 million in 2006 to $441 million. This net
increase reflects additional depreciation and amortization associated with the tangible and intangible
assets acquired in the HI Acquisition, partially offset by a reductlon in depreciation expense associated
with asset sales.

Results in 2005 include impairment loss and related costs totaling $7 million, which includes a pre-tax
charge of §5 million to reduce the value of an owned hotel and our minority interests in eight joint venture
hotels to their estimated fair values and a $2 million pre-tax charge representing the write down of a non-
hotel cost basis investment to its estimated fair value. The $5 million charge is included in our Hotel
Ownership segment results, while the $2 million charge is not allocated among our reportable segments,
There were no impairment losses in the 2006 period. '
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Corporate Activity

Corporate expense totaled $171 million in 2006, an increase of $68 million, or 66 pefcent, from 2005.
The increase is primarily the result of incremental corporate costs related to the HI Acquisition, $12
million of non-recurring charges related to the HI ACQUlSltIOh and the expensing of stock options under
FAS 123(R) (see “Note 4! Stock Based Compensation” to the consolidated financial statements under
Item 8). Other operating expenses in 2006 include a $12 millidn pre-tax charge 10 increase a performance
guarantee reserve for a managed hotel (see “Note 18: Commitments and Contingencies” to the
consolidated financial statements under {tem 8). Corporate expense is not a]located among our reportable

business segments.

Interest and dividend income decreased $5 million compared to the prior year. This decrease reflects
higher cash balances in 2005 due primarily to proceeds from asset sales prior to the HI Acquisition.
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized, increased $239 million compared to 2005, due primarily to
borrowings under our new senior credit facilities in order to partially fund the HI Acquisition. Net interest
from unconsolidated affiliates and non-controlled interests increased by $19 million to $45 million in 2006,
primarily due to the addition-of non-consolidated interests as part of the HI Acquisition.

The net gain on foreign currency transactions of $24 million in 2006 is primarily the result of
movement in the value of the British Pound prior to our completion of the HI Acquisition, which was
funded in British Pounds. The net gain also includes the impact of forgign currency movements on
intercompany loans that are deemed to be short term in' nature

The $72 miltion net other gain in 2006 mcludes net gains 1from asset sales of $1 million (see “Note 5:
Acquisitions and Dispositions” to the consolidated financial statements under ltem 8), a $33 million gain
from settlement recoveries related to mold found in certain areas of the Hilton Hawaiian Village in 2002, a
$24 million gain on sales of certain marketable securities, a|$17 million net gain related to insurance
proceeds received in excess of the book value 'of assets written off as a result of damage from Hurricane
Katrina (see “Note 19: Insurance Recoveries” to the consolidated financial statements under Item 8), a $3
million pre-tax loss on derivative instruments (se€ “Note 2: Sun!nmary of Significant Accounting Policies—
Derivative Instruments” to the consolidated financial statements undér Item 8) based on the market value
of the derivatives at December 31, 2006, a $3 million loss on the termination of various management and
franchise contracts to which we had value assigned, and $3 million in net other gains. The $103 million net
other gain in 2005 includes gains from asset sales of $112 mllhoxll a $10 million loss on our foreign currency.
options based on the market value of the optioris at December 31, 2005, a $3 million gain on our oil futures
derivative, and $2 million of other losses.

The loss from non-operating affiliates totaling $17 million and $16 million in 2005 and 2006,
respectively, represents equity losses associated with our 24 percent minority interest in a coal-based
synthetic fuel facility. The synthetic fuel produced’ at this facility qualifies for tax credits based on
Section 45K of the Internal Revenue Code; these credits reduce our provision for income taxes (see
“Note 5: Acquisitions and Dispositions” to.the consolidated financial statements under Item 8).

The ‘effective income tax rate for 2006 increased to 31% from 26% in 2005. The effective rate in 2006
reflects the utilization of Section 45K synthetic fuel production {credits of approximately $11 million and a
net benefit of $15 million primarily due to the favorable resolytion of IRS audits for the years 2002 and
2003 and the required treatment of certain foreign currency gains. The effective rate in 2005 includes a
benefit of $28 million resulting from closures of IRS audits, @ reduction in the valuation aflowance for
capital loss tax carryforwards totaling $34 million associated with asset sales and the utilization of
Section 45K synthetic fuel production credits of approximately !?17 million. The 2005 effective tax rate also
includes net state tax credits of approximately $2 million. Qur elffective tax rate is determined by the level
and composition of pre-tax income and the mix of income subject to varying foreign, state and local taxes.
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Excluding the aforementioned items, our effective rate was 34% in 2006 and 39% in 2005. The
reduction in effective rate for 2006 compared to 2005 is primarily the result of the HI Acquisition. In 2005
and earlier, our tax liability was principally comprised of U.S. and state taxes imposed on domestic income.
As a result of our acquisition of HI, our tax liability is comprised of both U.S. and foreign taxes and is
impacted by the composition of pre-tax income by jurisdiction. Income from foreign jurisdictions is subject
- to lower levels of tax resulting in an overall worldwide blended effective rate that is lower than our 2005
effective rate.

Minority and non-controlled interests expense, net, decreased $5 million to $7 million in 2006,
primarily due to a distribution to our minority partner on the sale of the Hilton Glendale in 2005 (see
“Note 5: Acquisitions and Dispositions” to the consolidated financial statements under ltem 8).

Hotel Statistics

" RevPAR for U.S. owned hotels and system-wide for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 is
as follows: ) : ) .

North America (U.S. owned)(1)

. L - 2008 2006 % Change
Hilton ...............ccis. S S $151.85 -165.03 8.7%
Allother ... .o 91.45 101.06 - 10.5

Total ... 144.05 156.73 8.8

(1) Statistics are for corhparable U.S. hotels, and include only hotels in the syste'm as of December 31,
2006, and owned by us since January 1, 2005. Comparable hotels exclude our owned hotels in New
Orleans due to the interruption in operations as a result of Hurricane Katrina.

ik System-wide(2)
2005 2006 % Change

Hilton .......... P e .o $9950 10911 9.7%
Hilton Garden Inn.. ... e e .. 72700 7955 94 =
Doubletree ."......... DU e 7930~ 8760 105
Embassy Suites........ e s 95.85 105.05 96
Homewood Suites by Hilton . ................. 76.19 8214 78
Hampton.........coovveiiviieieenennen.. e 6287 68.66 92
Scandic ........iiiiiieeiaeiaas [T S " 67.11 71.58 6.7
Conrad. . .... e e e e e 107.90 120.94 12.1
Other. ... e 99.98 11536 154

Total.....:....... FED e 82.46 90.27 95

. o .
(2) Statistics are presented pro forma -as if the HI Acquisition had occurred January 1, 2005. Includes
‘hotels in our system as of December 31, 2006 which were in our.hotel system or the hotel system of HI
since January 1, 2005. Comparable hotels exclude data for HI franchise hotels and our owned hotels
in New Orleans due to the interruption in operations as a result of Hurricane Katrina.
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FISCAL 2005 COMPARED WITH FISCAL 2004

+

Overwew

]

A summary of our consolidated results for the years ended December 31, 2004-and 2005 is as follows:

2004 2005 % Change
: (in millions, except per share amounts)
Revenue ......... ... . .. it $4,146 4,437 7%
Operating income . .............. ST 658 . 805 2
Netincome . .......o.veeeeeveiinnnnn., el 238 460 93
Basic EPS . vvoeveeiieienn e 62 1.20 94
“Diluted EPS ..o e .60 l.13 . 88

Results in 2005 benefited from strong increases in room nights and ADR across all business segments,
with particularly strong increasés in ADR, resulting in double-digit RevPAR growth and margin
improvement at many of our comparable owned hotels. Managen’lem and franchise fee revenue increased
18 percent over 2004 as a result of RevPAR growth and the addition of new units. Results in 2005 also
benefited from strong results at our timeshare business. Net income in 2005 also benefited from gains
associated with the sale of owned hotels and a reduction in the provision for income taxes. Revenue growth
was adversely impacted by the aforementioned asset sales and thE impact of Hurricane Katrina on our two
owned hotels in New Orleans..

Revenue from owned hotels totaled $2.049 billion in 2005, 4 one percent decrease from $2.062 billion
in 2004, and total expenses in 2005 were down three percent to $1.459 billion. Strong results at our
comparable owned hotels were partlally offset by the impact of asset sales and Hurricane Katrina. Our two
owned hotels in New Orleans are excluded from the comdarable numbers due to interruptions in
operations caused by the hurricane. Excluding the impact of assets sales and our two owned hotels in
New Orleans, owned hotel revenue in 2005 was up 10 percent to $1.670 billion from $1.519 billion in 2004,
while owned hotel expenses increased seven percent to $1.190 biltion from $1.109 billion in 2004.

Resuits at our comparable owned propemes benefited from continued strong demand and average
rate increases from groups, business and leisure travelers, !including double-digit rate and RevPAR
increases from the leisure and business segments. Results in New York and Hawaii were particularly
sirong in 2005. Strong results were also reporied at-our owned hotels in Boston, Washington D.C. and
Atlanta, while San Francisco remained comparably weak. RevPAR for comparable owned properties
increased 11.9 percent for the year, with occupancy rising[2.2 points to 77.3 percent and ADR up
8.7 percent to $178.35. Approximately 75 percent of the RevPAR increase in comparable owned hotels was
attributable to rate gains,

While strong RevPAR increases led to solid growth in rooms revenue, other comparable owned hotel
revenue also performed well, with food and beverage revenue increasing seven percent over 2004. Group
room nights, which typically generate higher margin food and beverage business, were up two percent at
our comparable owned 'hotels. Margins at our comparable| owned hotels (revenue less expenses as a
percentage of revenue for comparable owned hotels) improved 180 basis points in 2005 to 28.8 percent.
Cost-per-occupied-room increased 4.5 percent in 2005, reflecting a 17 percent increase in energy costs.

Leased hotel revenue totaled $111 million' in 2005, consistent with 2004, while leased hotel expenses
" "decreased two percent to $99 million. Operating income from unconsolidated affiliates decreased
$5 million in 2005 to $44 million. The decrease relates primarily to a $10 million pre-tax gain in the 2004
period, resulting from a joint venture that developed la condominium project in Myrtle Beach,
South Carolina. This decrease was partially offset by improved results at joint venture properties and the
termination or sale of certain joint venture interests that gen¢rated losses in 2004.
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Management and franchise fee revenue increased $68 million or 18 percent to $452 million in 2005.
The strong demand among business, groups and leisure travelers that benefited our owned hotels also
resulted in strong RevPAR gains for each of our brands.on a system-wide basis (including managed and
franchised properties). The increase in management and franchise fees in 2005 also reflects the addition of
new units to our system of hotels. :

Revenue from our timeshare operations totaled $554 million, an increase of $133 millionior 32
percent from $421 million in 2004. Timeshare expenses in 2005- were $420 million compared to $316
million in the prior year. Overall timeshare unit sales were up eight percent in 20035, reflecting continued
strong sales at our projects in Hawaii, Las Vegas and Orlando. The average unit sales price increased two
percent across the system. Timeshare revenue and profitability also benefited from higher resort fees and
higher financing income due-to increased sales. Timeshare results in 2005 also reflect the recognition of
previously deferred revenue and expenses at our Waikoloa project, due to the required percentage-of-
completion accounting. Construction at the Waikoloa project was: approximately 75 pércent complete at
the end of 2005. In contrast, construction was not beyond a preliminary stage at the end of 2004.

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $31 million in 2005 to $299 million, prlmarlly due
to asset sales and lower amortization expense related to certam long term management and franchise
agreements that were either terminated or expired.

Results in"2005 include 1mpalrment loss and related costs totaling $7 inillion, which includes a pre-tax
charge of $2 million relatéd to an owned hotel and a $3 million pre-tax charge related to our minority
interests in eight joint venture hotels to reduce their respective carrying values to their estimated fair
values. The 2005 charge also includes a $2 million pre-tax charge representing the write down of a non-
hotel cost basis investment to its estimated fair value. The $5 million impairment charge is included in our
Hotel Ownership segment results, while the $2 million charge on the non-hotel investment is not allocated
among our reportable segments. Results in 2004 include impairment loss and related costs totaling
$5 million. This pre-tax charge was to reduce the value of an owned hotel to its estlmated fair value and is
included in Hotel Ownershlp segment results.

Corporate Activity

Corporate expense totaled $103 million in 2005, an increase of $18 million from 2004. The increase is
primarily the result of increased expense associated with stock-based com'pensation increased- hotel team
member performance awards and contributions to Hurricane Katrina relief efforts. ‘

Interest and dividend income in 2005 increased $6 million compared to 2004. This i increase reflects
higher cash balances in 2005 due primarily to proceeds from asset sales. This increase was partially offset
by lower interest’ income due to the repayment by Caesars Entertainment, Inc. of the $325 million 7%
Senior Notes in July 2004. Interest on the notes is reflected as both interest income and interest expense in
our consolidated statements of income through repayment in July 2004. Interest expense, net of amounts
capitalized, decreased $15 million compared to 2004, due primarily to the aforementloned repayment by
Caesars,

The $103 million net other gain in 2005 includes gains from asset sales of $_112' million, a $10 million
loss on our foreign currency options based on the market value of the options at December 31, 2005, and a
$3 million gain on our oil futures derivative based on the market value of the contract at December 31,
2005. Also included in 2005 is a net loss of $1 million related to the write-off of several long-term
management and franchise agreements which were terminated during the year and a $1 million loss on the
disposition of other fixed assets. The $5 million net other loss in 2004 represents the sale of two
Doubletree properties, the write off of the value assigned to several long-term management and franchise -
agreements which were terminated during the year and a loss due to the fair market value adjustment of

" our derivative instruments, partially offset by the gain from the sale of certain investments.
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The loss from non-operating affiliates of $6 million and $17 million in 2004 and 20035, respectively,
represents equity losses associated with our 24 percent minorilty interest in a coal-based synthetic fuel
facility. The synthetic fuel produced at this facility qualifies for tax credits based on Section 45K of the
Internal Revenue Code; these credits reduce our provision for{income taxes. We acquired our minority
interest in August 2004, which results in the comparably low amount in that year.

The effective income tax rate for 2005 decreased to 26% fragm 34% in 2004. The effective rate in 2005
includes a benefit of $28 million resulting from the resolution of IRS audits, a reduction in the valuation
allowance for capital loss tax carryforwards totaling $34 million associated with asset sales and the
utilization' of Section 45K synthetic fuel production credits of approximately $17 million. The 2005
effective tax rate also inctudes net state tax credits of approximately $2 million. The effective tax rate in
2004 benefited from a reduction in the valuation allowance for capital loss tax carryforwards of
approximately $7 million resulting from the sale of three Doublétree properties (La Posada in Arizona, as
well as Bakersfield and Modesto in California) and the sale of our interest in Travelweb. In addition, the
2004 effective tax rate also reflects the utilization of Section{45K synthetic fuel production credits of
approximately $7 million. Excluding the aforementioned items, our effective rate was 39% in 2005 and
38% in 2004. Our effective tax rate is determined by the level and composition of pre-tax income and the
mix of income subject to varying foreign, state and local taxes.

Minority and non-controlled interests expense, net, increased $4 million to $12 million in 2005,
reflecting a distribution to our minority partner on the sale of the Hilton Glendale.

Hotel Statistics . ;
RevPAR for U.S. owned hotels and system-wide for the years ended-December 31, 2004 and 2005 is
as follows: . .- :
U.S. owneid(1)
2004 2005 % Change
Hilton .. ... $128.32 14400 = 122%
Allother ... 84.58 91.45 8.1

Total.. ... 123.24 137.90 119

(1) Statistics are for comparable U.S. hotels, and include only hotels in the system as of December 31,
2005 and owned by us.since January 1, 2004. Cornparaible hotels exclude our owned hotels in
New Orleans due to the interruption in operations as a result of Hurricane Katrina.

System—wi&e(l)

2004 2005 % Change
Hilton ... ... e $90.06 100.68 11.8%
Hilton Garden Inn. . . .. e e e 68.14 74.47 93
Doubletree . .......... e s 69.78 71.01 10.4
Embassy Suites. . ...ooooi i e | 87.01 95.09 9.3
Homewood SuitesbyHilton . ................... 70.93 76.05 7.2
Hampton............ccooen... T 56.00 6222 111

Other . ..o 95.33 106.33 11.5

(2) Statistics are for comparable hotels, and include only hotels in the system as of December 31, 2005
and owned, operated or franchised by us since January 1, 2004. Comparable hotels exclude our owned
hotels in New Orleans due to the interruption in operationg as a result of Hurricane Katrina.
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OTHER MATTERS - . . ' ) '
New Accounnng Standards B o '

See “Note 2: Summary of Significant Accountmg Policies—New Accounting Standards” to the-
consolidated financial statements under Item 8, for discussion of new accounting standards.

Other ) L o o T

We are involved in various legal matters arising in the normal course of business, some of which
include claims for substantial sums. Accruals are recorded when-the outcome is probable and can be
reasonably estimated. While the ultimate results of claims and litigation cannot be predicted with certainty,
we do not .expect that the resolution of all pending overtly threatened claims and litigation as of
December 31, 2006 will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations or
financial position. However, depending on the amount and timing, an unfavorable resolution of some or all
of these matters could materially affect our future results of operations in a particular period.

v L

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk .

We are exposed to market risk in the form of changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange
rate movements. In certain instances, we attempt to reduce volatility in earhings and cash flow associated
with interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks by entering into financial arrangements.intended to
provide hedges agatnst a portion of the-associated I’lSkS We continue to have exposure to such risks to the
extent that they are not hedged. : . . :

We are exposed to market risk in the form of changes in interest rates and the potential 'impact such
changes may have on the cash flow from our floatmg rate debt and the fair values of our fixed rate debt
We attempt to limit the impact of changes in mtcrest rates to our debt portfolio by attaining an
appropriate mix of floatmg rate borrowmgs relative to our long-term fixed rate debt. We are also exposed
to interest rate risk on our floating rate notes receivable and the fair values of our fixed rate notes
receivable. We utilize, on a selective basis, interest rate swaps to manage our relative levels of fixed and
floating rate debt, As of December 31, 2006, we had a derivative contract which swaps the fixed interest
payments on our $375 million 7.95% Senior Notes due 2007 to a floating interest rate equal to the six-
month LIBOR rate plis 415 basis points.

We are also exposed to market risk in the form of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and the
potential impact such changes may have on the cash flow related to.our foreign currency denominated debt
and our cash flows from operations. In limited circumstances, we seek to reduce volatility in earnings and
by entering into financial arrangements intended to provide a hedge against a potion of the associated risk.
In August 2001, we issued $100 miltion of 7.43% bonds due 2009 denominated in Chilean Pesos. Payments
of principal and interest on the bonrds are adjusted for movements of the Unidad de Fomento (the Chilean
inflation index) published monthly by the Central Bank of Chile. We have swapped out the Chilean
currency exchange rate and inflation risk by entering into a derivative contract which swaps the principal
payment to a fixed U.S. dollar amount of $100 million with fixed interest payments at 7.65% of that
amount. We believe it is unlikely that the counterparty will be unable to perform under the terms of the
derivative instrument.

We have three tranches of long-term debt denominated in foreign currencies which qualify as hedges
of the foreign currency exposure of our net investment in foreign operations acquired as part of the HI
Acquisition. The gains or losses on the long-term debt are included in accumulated other comprehensive
income as part of the cumulative translation adjustment to the extent that the instruments are effective as a
hedge. The gains or losses recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income are relieved when we
substantially exit foreign operations in a market covered by our hedging instruments.
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- We also enter into short-term foreign currency forward and swap agreements in the normal course of
business to hedge certain of our cash flows from foreign operations. The gains. or losses on.the hedging
instruments are largely offset by gains or losses on the under]ying asset or liability, At December 31, 20606,

the notional amount of our foreign currency hedging instruments is approximately $72 million. A

theoretical 10 percent change in the foreign currency exchange rates would result in an increase or
decrease of approximately $7 million in the fair value of the heéiging instruments at December 31, 2006,
Such a change would be offset by an opposite effect on the underlying assets and liabilities.

our investment in a synthetic fuel facility. This contract was|effective for the calendar year ending
December 31, 2006. The contract involved -two call options that.provided for net cash settlement at
expiration based on the full year 2006 average trading price off oil in relation to the strike price of the
options. The settlement of the options yielded no payment at [December 31, 2006. The purpose of the
transaction was to provide economic protection against an’ increase in oil prices that could limit or
eliminate the amount of tax credits available-under Section 45K ‘%)f the Internal Revenue Code to the point.
of a negative return on our investment. The strike prices of the two options were intended to approximate

In January 2006, we entered into a derivative contract coveling 1.85 million barrels of oil relating to

- the price ranges under which the expected tax credits available-under Section 45K of the Internal Revenue

|
Code would be reduced to an amount which no longer covered our after- tax production costs in the
investment for the 2006 calendar year.

our investment in a synthetic fuel facility. This contract is|effective for the calendar year ending
December 31, 2007. The contract involves two call options ithat provide for net cash settlement at
expiration based on the full year 2007 average trading price of oil in relation to the strike price of the
opttons If the average price of oil in 2007 is less than $72 per barrcl the derivative will yield no payment.
If the average price of oil exceeds $72 per barrel, the derivative will yield a payment equal to the excess of
the average price over $72 per barrel, up 10 a maximurm prlée per barrel of $76. The purpose of the
transaction is to provide economic protection against an lncrease in oil prices that could limit or eliminate
the amount of tax credits available under Section 45K of the [[ntemal Revenue Code to the point of a
negative return on our investment. The strike prices of the two options are intended to approximate the
price ranges under which the expected tax credits available under Section 45K of the Internal Revenue
Code could be reduced to an amount which no longer covers our after-tax production costs in the
investment for the 2007 calendar year. '

In December 2006, we entered into a derivative contract COTering two million barrels of oil relating to
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The following table sets forth the scheduled maturities and the total fair value of our derivative and
other financial instruments, excluding non-recourse debt and capital lease obligations of non- controlled
entities, as of December 31, 2006:

4

3

Maturities by Period Total
Within 1 ARer Carrying  Total Fair

ear 2years 3vears 4years Syears S years Amount Value
—Year - years ..L__. ayears o years
(§ in millions)

ASSETS—Maturities represent
principal receipts, fair values

represent assets . o
Timeshare notes receivable........ $ 54 63 67 68 64 . 138 .- 454, 459

Average interest rates. .. ....... . . _ P 129% .
Other notes receivable............ $ -1 — 5 - = 9 25 24
Average interest rate.., ............ ’ ' , ) . 67%

LIABILITIES—Maturities
represent principal payments,
fair values represent libilities

Fixed rate debt . ... .. ...... $ (18)  (995) (409) (559)  (304) (985) (3270)  .(4,058)
Average interestrate ........... ‘ o . 6.9% -
Floating rate debt .~.............. $(394)  (13) (5) (5) (2.916) (365) (3,698)° (3,326
Average interestrate ........... L ' _ _ 64% '
INTEREST RATE SWAPS— '

* Maturities represent notional
amounts, fair values represent
assets (liabilities) ’ : )

Fixed tovariable ................. $ 372 — = = — — 3n2 3)

Average payrate................. : Lo 9.5%

Average receiverate.............. . . 80%

Fixed (CLP) to Fixed (§US) ....... $ — —. 145 — - = 145 " 57
Averagepayrat€................. . . ’ E 1.7%
Average recelve rate............ L ) S ‘ 7.4%

OTHER DERIVA TIVE :

" CONTRACTS - -

Call options on oil prices......... ! — - - — =1 1

»

At December 31; 2006, our senior credit facilities contain approximately:$1.601 billion in floating rate
foreign currency denominated loans, including €675 million, £326 million and Australian $93 million. At
December 31, 2006, these facilities have interest rates ranging from 4.49% to 7.39% and have a maturnty
date of February 2011.

As of December 31, 2006, approximately 53% of our long-term debt (including the impdct of interest
rate swaps and exc]udmg non-recourse debt and capital lease obligations of non-controlled entities) was
floating rate debt. .
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Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Hilton Hotels'Corporation and ubsidiaries
Consolicated Statements of Income
{in millions, except per share amounts)
" Year ended December 31,
2004 2005 2006
Revenue -
Ownedhotels ......... ..o $2,062 2,049 2521
leasedhotels ......... ... ... ... ... .. s 111 111 2,347
Management and franchise fees ....... ... ... .. .o ool 384. 452 684
Timeshare and otherincome . ... i 463 606 767
o . . 3,020 3,218 6,319
Other revenue from managed and franchised properties. .. 1. ... ... ... 1,126 1,219 1,843
' ' 4,146 4,437 8,162
Expenses _ o
Owned hotels . ... .. e 1,501 1,459 1,780
Leased hotels ...... T U P P 101 -~ 99 1,985
_Depreciation and amortization ... 330 299 441
Impairment loss and related costs. .................... b 5 7 -—
Other Operating eXpenses. . . .. ... ... ooteiae it 395 497 736
COTPOTALE EXPEIISE .+ . v v v v et e e e e e et e e e e e eeenen 83 103 171
o ' _ 2417 2464 5,113
Other expenses from managed and franchised properties . .L.......... .. 1,120 1,212 1,832
: : ) : : o 3,537 3,676 6,945
Operating income from unconsolidated affiliates ...........0L............ 49 44 57
OPerating INCOME . ... v .\ vy ettt et e e e e e e ee e e 658 805 1,274
Interest and dividend income............... ... oo oo 26 32 27
Interest 0 4 1] 11 S R (274 (259) (498)
Net interest from unconsolidated affiliates and non-controlled interests (26) (26) (45)
Net gain on foreign currency transactions. .............. oo — — 24
Netother (loss)gain ............oo oot (5) 103 72
Loss from non-operating affiliates ................... .. oo L 6y a7 16
Income Before Taxes and Minority and Non-Controlled Inter‘estb .......... 373 638 838
PrOVISION fOF INCOME LAXES -+ -+« s e v e eesneeeene e (127)  (166) (259)
Minority and non-controlled interests, net ... .. R B8y (12) o8
Net InCOme . ... u et $ 238 460 572
Basic Earnings Per Share'. ................... ... S $ .62 120 149
Diluted Earnings Per Share . ... .....oovvvvvrine et $ 60 113 139
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
52

TRARAT S CR

i i O




Hilton Hotels Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance.Sheets
(in millions)

ASSETS
Current Assets .
Cash andequivalents. ................ ..ot e
Restricted cash. ........oocoiviinnnin.. e i

LNy o 1= P
* Deferred iNCOME tAXES ..« oo\ vr et e et e
Current portion of notes receivable,net.................. .. .o ool
Prepaid expensesand other ... ... oottt i i
Total currentassets . ... ... e e e

Investments, Property and Other Assets

Investments and notes receivable, net. .. ... . ... e .

Property and equipment,net ...................... B
Management and franchise contracts,net .......... .. ... . ...

I R 1 11 A :

Total investments, property and other assets ................................ '

Total ASSES. . . . e e e e e e ..

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current Liabilities
‘Accounts payable and accrued expenses. ... ... oo il
© Current maturities of long-termdebt .. ... ... ... ...
Current maturities of non-recourse debt and capital lease obligations of non-
controlledentities .. ... ... ... i i e
incometaxespayable ... ... .
Total current liabilities ......... e e e e

Long-termdebt ... ... . e e .
Non-recourse debt and capital lease obligations of non- controlled entities . ...,
Deferred income taxes ... ..o

* Insurance reservesandother .. .. ... ..ottt e
*Total liabilities . .. ... . e

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders’ Equity . -
Common Stock, $2.50 par value, 382 mllllon and 387 million shares outstanding,
TeSPECIVELY . ... e e e
Additional paid-incapital, . ...: . o o AP
Retained earmings ... ...oovuviine i e
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income . ........... P

Less treasury slock AL COSE . e e e
Total stockholders’ equity. .. ..o it e
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity . .............c.coiiiiiiiiiiiiiea

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31, December 31,
2005 2006

$1,154 138 .
182 293
312 659
219 430
85 95
40 55
97 239
2,089 1,909
707 759
2,985 4,983
302 1,184
107 319
., 970 2,846
1,216 3,710
: _— 85
367 686
6,054 14,572
$8,743 16,481
$ 772.¢ 1,901
47 412
— 110
45 44
864 2,467
3,572 6,556
100 390
678 2,065
718 1,276
5,932 12,754
1,010 1,023
1,158 1,248
1,125 1,663
(11 262
3,282 4,196
(471) (469)
2,811 3,727
58,743 16,481




Hilton Hotels Corporation.and ﬁubsndlanes
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow

{(in millions)

Operating Activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash prowded by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization. . .........covivniinaen..
Amortizationof loancosts. . .........cii il
Net other loss (gain).................. e
Loss from non-operating affiliates . ...................o0hs.
Impairment loss and related costs. . .........................
Change in working capital components:

L3I0 1Y e o 1= T .

Accounisreceivable .. ... ...
Other current assets. . ........ e e
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ........... PP
Income taxespayable. ... ... . ... .. ... ... ... e
Restrictedcash . ....... F T UTPRR
Change in deferred income taxes .. ............ouoiveneennn.
Change in other liabilities .. .. ... ... ... ... ... ...
Unconsolidated affiliates’ dlstnbutlons in excess of carnmgs e
Change in timeshare notes receivable
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements. . . .
Other..................... e e

Net cash provided by operating activities. .. ....................

Investing Activities
Capital expenditures .. ....coiei it i e
Additional investments
Proceeds from asset dispositions. ............. ...
Payments received on notesandother. ........................
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities . ..............

Financing Activities
Change in revolving loans, net of issuancecosts. ...............]
Long-term borrowings, net of issuance costs. . .............o....
Reduction of long-termdebt. .. ........ ... ... oo
Issuance of commonstock. . .........oii i
Repurchase of commonstock ... ..o vve i iiiiiiiiiiiian,
Cash dividends
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements. .. ..

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities............. .

Exchange rate effect on Cash and Equivalents . ..................1
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Equivalents. . ..................L
Cash and Equivalents at Beginning of Year ; _ ‘

Cash and Equivalents‘ at End of Year

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ded December 31,

Year
2004 2005 2006
$238 460 572
330 © 209 441
9 9 17
5 303) ()
6 17 16
5 7 —
45 (I (163)
24y (4D 4
9 18 (69)
59 99 44
- a1 (119)
90y  (19) (7
27 (63) 67
49 (35 93
20 1 9
(105)  (99)  (109)
- —_— (12}
(17)  (28) 12
548 486 652
(178) (423)  (613)
(72)  (47)  (146)
80- 1,041 1,450
38 49 7
— —  (5,460)
(132) 620 (4,598)
(160) . —. 1,582
— 14 2626
(14 (15 (1,303)
131 63 63
48 (71 |, —
(31)  (46) (62)
_ — 12
(122) (255) 2918
— — 12
294 851 (1,016)
9 303 1,154
$303 1,154 138
&




Hilton Hotels Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Year ended December 31,
2004 2005 2006

COMMON STOCK '
Balance at beginning of year. ........ ..o ii i e % 971 997 -1,010
Issuance of commonstock................ e e et — 1 1
Exercise of StoCk Options . . ... i e e 26 12 12
Balanceatend of year .. .. .. ... . ... ... i . $ 997 1010 1,023
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL ' )
Balance at beginning of year. ... .. o e $ 970 1,086 1,158
Issuance of common stock. .. .. .. S s SRS (4" 6 (8):
Exercise of Stock OPtions . . ... i e it e e i . 105 51
Deferred COmMPEMSAtON . . . .. v\ vttt et eea i eee i ea st eiateteritieirienanenanns 15 15 47
Balanceatendofyear ............... ... ... ... ... e $1,086 1,158 1,248
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of YA ottt $ 456 - 689 1,125
NELITICOMIE oottt e i e e e et et e et e 238 460 572
Exercise of stockoptions . . ... ... .0 i e ‘ . 26 22 28
Common dividends ($.08, $.12 and $.16 per share, respectively) ....... e (3D (46) (62)
Balanceatend of year . . ... .. ... .. ...l $ 689 1,125 1,663
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) . .
Balance at beginning of year. ... ... .ottt et e 3 (D (3) (11}
‘Cash flow hedge adjustment, netof deferred tax .. ......ooviiiiiivrnininieansnns. 7 —
Cumulative translation adjustment, net of deferredtax. . .............o. o ... — () 251
Change in unrealized gain / loss on marketable securities, net of deferred tax .. .. ... . 3 2 (10)
Minimum pension obligation adjustment, net of deferred tax. .. .. .. i (12) (9
Balance atend of Year(1). . ... ... vttt ittt it iy $§ 3 (1) 262
TREASURY STOCK, AT COST
Balance at beginning ofyear......... ... .. .. . o oL, P $ (157 - (201) (471)
Issuance of common stock. ... ... o e 4 1 - 2
Repurchase of commonstock. ... i e (48) (271) —
Balance at end of Year . ... ... i e i e e $ (201 (471) (469)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY .
Balance at beginning of year.................... . .. e $2,239 2,568 2,811
NELIICOIMIE L ..ttt ettt et e e e e et et e et e e e 238 460 572
Cash flow hedge adjustment, net of deferred tax ... ... e e 7
Cumulative translation adjustment, net of deferred tax. . ........................ ... — (D 25
Change in unrealized gain / loss on marketable securities, net of deferredtax.......... 3 2 (10)
Minimum pension obligation adjustment, net of deferredtax. . ...................... (12) (9) -

- Comprehensive ICOME . . .. .. ... ..ttt v erincananancnes 236 452 845
Essuance of common Stock. ... ..o i e — 8 (5)
Exercise of stock options .. .. ... oo i i oo 157 85
Repurchase of commonstock. ...... ... o i i i i (48) (271) —
Deferred compensation . . .. ... ool 15 15 47
Common dividends (3.08, 3.12 and $.16 per share, respectwely) ..................... (31) (46) {62)

Balance atend of year ............. e e P $2,568 2811 3727

(1} At December 31, 2006, accumulated other comprehensive income consists of $250 million of cumulative
translation adjustment, $8 million of cumulative adjustments to derivative instruments, $3 million of cumulative
minimum pension liability adjustments and $1 million of cumulative unrealized gains on securities.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Accounts Receivable

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006

NOTE 1: BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND ORGANIZATION

Hilton Hotels Corporation is engaged, together with its subsidiaries, in the ownership, management
and development of hotels, resorts and timeshare properties and the franchising of lodging properties. We
operate in 78 countries and territories and believe we are one of the largest lodging companies in the
world. Revenue and income are derived from three reportable segments: Hotel Ownership, Managing and
Franchising, and Timeshare. :

On February 23, 2006, we acquired the lodging assets of Hilton Group plc (known collectively as
“Hilton International” or “HI”} in a business combination accounted for as a purchase (the “HI
Acquisition”). Accordingly, our consolidated financial results|include the results of Hilton International
from the date of acquisition. See “Note 3: Purchase of Hilton International” for more information.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles ‘of Consolidation .
¥

The consolidated financial statements include the accounlts of Hilton Hotels Corporation, our wholly
owned subsidiaries, variable interest entities where we are the primary beneficiary and entities in which we
have a controlling financial interest. The determination of controlling financial interest is based upon the
terms of individual joint venture agreements, including evaluation of rights held by other ownership
interests. Entities in which we have a controlling financial interest-are generally compriséd of majority
owned joint ventures. All material intercompany transactions are eliminated and net earnings are reduced
by the portion of earnings of affiliates applicable to other ownership interests. . -

Cash and Equivalents

Cash and equivalents include all highly liquid investments with initial maturities of three months or
less. '

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash includes cash related to certain consolidated hotels, the use of which is restricted for
hotel purposes under the terms of collateralized borrowings, [refundable deposits on the sale of timeshare
intervals and cash balances held by consolidated non-controlled entities. ) -

]

~ Accounts recci\?able are reflected net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of $25 million and
$31 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Inventories _ - \

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. Included in inventories at
December 31, 2005 and 2006, are unsold intervals at OU’J_‘ timeshare properties of $209 million and
$392 million,  respectively. The capital expenditures assqciat%d with our non-lease timeshare products are
reflected as inventory until the timesharz intervals, aré sold. The company uses the relative sales. value
method of costing our timeshare sales and relieving inventory in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“FAS™) 67, “Accounting for Costs ‘Lnd Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate
Projects.” .
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements ' .
December 31, 2006 (Continued) :

Investments

We maintain investments in unconsolidated affiliates, primarily hotel joint ventures. Investments are -
accounted for using the equity method-when we exercise significant influence over the venture but lack a
controlling financial interest, which is determined based upon the terms of individual joint venture
agreements, including -evaluation of rights held by other ownership interests. Generally, we account for
investments using the equity method when we own more than a minimal investment but have no more than
a 50% ownership interest. When we have a controlling financial interest in the venture, which is generally
when our ownership exceeds 50%, the balance sheet and results of operations are consolidated. We also
consolidate variable’interest entities when we aie the primary beneficiary. Net earnings are reduced by the
portion of earnings applicable toother ownership interests. All other investments in unconsohdated
affiliates’are > generally accounted for under the cost method. The hotels in which we own a non- controllmg
financial mterest are an integral component of our hotel ownershlp segment and are strategically and
operatlonally important to that segment’s results. Therefore, our ‘operating income from unconsolidated -
affiliates is included as a component of consolidated operatmg income in the accompanying consolidated
statements of mcome.

Notes Receivable

Notes recewable are reﬂected net of an'estimated allowance for uncollectible amounts. For ‘timeshare
notes receivable, this estimate is based primarily on historical experience and assumptions with respect to
future payment trends. Allowances for uncollectible amounts of other notes receivable, which include,
notes from managed‘ franchised 'and unconsolidated joint venture propertics, are estimated’ based -
primarily on historical trends and analysis of underlying real estate collateral. Assessment of collateral may
include estimates of future cash flow from the underlying real estate. Total notes receivable, including
timeshare, totaled $401 million. and $479 million, net of allowances for uncollectlble amounts of
$24 million and $35 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectlvely .

Currency Translation oo ’ -

L]
. b

Assets and ltabthttes denominated in foreign currencies are translated into-U.S. dollars at year-end
exchange rates and the related gains and losses, net of applicable deferred income taxes, are reflected in
stockholders’ equity. Income and expense accounts are translated at the average exchange rate for the
pericd. Gains and losses from foreign exchange rate changes related to 1ntercompany ‘receivables and
payables of a long-term nature are’ generally included i 1n other comprehensive income. Gams and losses
Afrom foreign exchange rate Changes related to mtercompany receivables and payab]es that are not ‘of a
long- “term nature are reported currently in income and amounted to a net gain of approx:mately $6 million
in 2006. The net gains or losses in 2004 and 2005 were ln51gn|ﬁcant Gains and losses from foreign currency
transactlons are reported currently in income and amounted toa net galn of appronmately $18 million in
2006 and insignificant amounts in 2004 and 2005

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

The carrying value of our long-lived assets are reviewed when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If it is determined that an
impairment loss has occurred based on the lowest level of identifiable expected future cash flow, then a
loss is recognized in the income statement using a fair value based model.
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 (Continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquired in acquisitions that were Iaccounted for as purchases are recorded at
their estimated fair value as of the date acquired, less accumulated' depreciation. Other property and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated dépreciation[lnterest incurred during construction of
facilities is capitalized and depreciated over the life of the asset. Costs of improvements are capitalized.
These capitalized costs may include structural costs, eqmpmént fixtures and floor and wall coverings.
Costs of normal repairs and maintenance are: charged to expense as incurred. '

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method gver the estimated useful life of the assets.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of ‘the asset life or lease tenn The estimated
useful lives of assets are generally 40 years for buildings and three to elght years for building improvements
and furniture and equipment. Deprec1at10n expense, mcludmg depreciation of assets recorded under
capital leases, for 2004, 2005 and 2006 was $271 million, $247 million and $324 million, respectlvely
Amortizable Intangible Assets l o o

Management and franchise contracts acquired in acquisiltions that were accounted for as purchases
are recorded at the estimated present value of net cash flow ﬁxpected to be received over the lives of the
contracts. ‘This value is amortized using the straight-line method over the remaining contract lives. Costs
incurred to acquire individual management and franchise cortracts are amortized using the straight-line
method over the life of the respective contract. Accurnulated lamortlzanon of management and franchise
contracts totaled $227 million and $291 million at December 3 2005 and 2006, respectively.

.Leases acquired in acquisitions that were accounted for as purchases are recorded at the estimated
preserit value of net cash flow expected to be received over the lives of the lease-agreements. This value is
amortized using the straight-line method over the remalmng lease terms. Accurmnulated amortization of
leases totaled $23 mllllon and $41 million at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. ‘

The estimated aggregate amortization expense for amortizable intangible assets is expected to be $121

‘million, $115 miilion, $107 million, $101 million and $97 mllhon for the years ended December 31, 2007

through 2011, respectively.

Brands .o : - oy e

'The brand namies of hotels acqu1red in acquisitions that were accounted for as purchases are assigned
a fair market value. To arrive at a value for each brand naljne an estimation is made of the amount of
royalty income that could be generated from the brand name if it was licensed to an independent third-
party owner. The resulting cash flow is discounted back using the estimated weighted-average cost of
capital for each respective brand name. We account for brands in accordance with FAS 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets,” which requires that intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized, but
are reviewed annually for impairment. '
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets of businesses
acquired. We account for goodwill in accordance with FAS 142, which requires that goodwill is not
amortized, but is reviewed annually for impairment. During 2006, the amount .of goodwill increased by
$2.49 billion due to an addition of approximately $2.33 billion as a result of the HI Acquisition (see “Note
3: Purchase of Hilton international”) and a $176 million increase due to foreign exchange rate moveinents
partially offset by a $10 million decrease resulting from the sale of the Pointe Hilton Tapitio Cliffs (see
“Note 5: Acquisitions and Dispositions”). -

Derivative Instruments

* We have an outstanding swap agreement which quahfres for hedge. accountmg as a cash ﬂow hedge of
a foreign currency denominated liability. The gain or loss on the change in fair value of the derivative is
included in earnings to the extent it offsets the earnings impact of changes in fair value of the hedged
obligation. Any difference is- deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income, a component of
stockholders’ equity. o

We have an interest rate swap on certain fixed, rate senior notes which qualifies as a fair value hedge.
This derivative impacts earnings to the extent of increasing or decreasing actual interest expense on the
hedged notes to simulate a floating interest rate. Changes in the fair value of the derivative ate offset by an
adjustment to the value of the hedged notes.

We have three tranches ‘of long-term debt denominated in foreign currencies which qualify as hedges
of the foreign currency exposure of our net investment in foreign operations acquired as part of the HI
Acquisition. The gains or losses on the long-term debt are included in accumulated other comprehensive
income as part of the cumulative translation adjustment to the extent that the instruments are effective as a
hedge. The net loss included in accumulated other comprehensive income related to our net investment
hedge totaled $254 million at December 31, 2006. The gains or losses recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive i mcome are relleved when we substantlally exit foreign operatlons in a market covered by
our. hedgmg mstruments

We assess on a quarterly basis the effectiveness of our hedges in offsetting the variability in the cash
flow or fair values of the hedged assets or obligations. There were no amounts recognized or reclassified
into earnings for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 or 2006 due to hedge ineffectiveness or due to
excluding from the assessment of effectiveness any component of the derivatives. '

We enter into short-term foreign currency forward and swap agreements in the normal course of
business to hedge certain of our cash flows from foreign operations. The gains or losses on the hedging
instruments are largely offset by gains or losses on the underlying asset or liability. At December 31, 2006,
the notional amount of our foreign currency hedging instruments is approximately $72 million. We do not
enter into derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.
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In August 2004, January 2006 and December 2006, we entered into denvatlve contracts relating to our
investment in a synthetic fuel fac111ty effective for the calendar ye[ars ending Decemnber 31, 2005, 2006 and
2007, respectively. These contracts covered 2.5 million, 1.85 jmillion, "and 2.0 million barrels of oil,

respecnvely The contracts involved two call optlons that provmde for net cash settlement at expiration
based on'the effecuve full year average trading price of oil in re]anon to the strike price of the options. The
call prices of the options were $55 and $68 per barrel for 2005, $68 50.and $72.50 per barrel for 2006 and
$72 and $76 per barrel for 2007. If the average price of oil in t & effective yéar was less than the low call
price per barrel, the derivative will yield no payment. If the average price of oil exceeds the low call price
per barrel, the derivative will yield a payment equal to the exckss of the average price over the low call
price per barrel, up to a maximum price per barrel of the high 4all price per barrel. The purpose of these
transactions is to provide economic protection against increases in oil prices that could limit or eliminate
the amount of tax credits available under Section 45K of the Internal Revenue Code to the point of a
negative return on our investment. The strike prices of the two options for each year are intended to
approximate the price ranges under which the expected tax credits could be reduced to an amoint which
no longer covered our after-tax production costs for the respective calendar years. These agreements do
not qualify for hedge accounting and, as a result, changes in the! fair value of the derivative agreements are
reflected in earnings. Results in 2004, 2005 and. 2006 include a pre-tax loss of $1 million, a pre-tax gain of
$3 million, and a pre-tax loss of $3 million, Iespectwely, resulting from changes in the market value of the
derivative ‘contracts. These amounts are mcluded m net other (loss) gain in the accompanying consolldated
statements of income. _ )

Concurrent with the announcement of our agreement to cqulre HI in December 2005.(see “Note 3:

Purchase of Hilton Iriternational”), we entered into foreign currency options to mitigate the risk associated
with changes in foreign currency exchange rates on our agreement to fund the acquisition price m British
Pounds. These options, which were sold in the 2006 first quarter, were purchased for a’ total of
approximately $54 million and covered approximately £2.3 bihon These derivatives included options to
purchase British Pounds with U.S. dollars and Euros. As of Décember 31, 2005, the options had a carrying
value of approximately $44 'million and were reflected in the Lc_companymg consolidated balance sheet in
other current assets. These.foreign currency options did not (iualify for hedge accounting and, as a result,
changes in the fair value of the derivative instruments were reflected in earnings. Results in 2005 include a
pre-tax loss of $10 million which is reflected in. net other (lbss) gain in the accompanymg consolidated
financial statements. . . ‘ . .

Unamortized Loan Costs

Debt discount and issuance costs incurred in connection with the placement of long-term debt are
capitalized and amortized to interest expense over the lives of the related debt using the effective interest
method. These balances are included in.other assets in our consolidated balance sheets.

60




Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 (Continued)

Self-Insurance

We. are self-insured for various levels of general liability, workers’ compensation and employee
medical and dental insurance coverage at our-owned locations. Managed propertics may be required to
participate in certain of the programs where we are the employer of the employees at the hotel. Managed
propertics may also elect to participate in our self-insured llablllty insurance . program. We purchase
insurance coverage for claim amounts which exceed our self-insured retentions. Depending on the type of
insurance, these self-insured retentions range from $250, 000 to $500,000 per occurrence in the U.S. and
approximately $2,000 to $500,000 1nternat10nally Our self-insurance reserves are included in accounts
payable aid accrued expenses (current portion) and insurance reserves and other (long-term portion) in
the accompanying consolidatéd balance- sheets. Our self-insurancé reserves totaled $146 million and
$156 million at Decémber 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Our insurance reserves are accrued based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims expected to
occur during the covered period. These estimates are prepared with the assistance of outside actuaries and
consultants. Our actuaries periodically review the volume and amount of claims activity, and based upon
their findings, we adjust our insurance reserves accordingly. The ultimate cost of claims for a covered
period may differ from our original estimates.

Revenue Recognition

. Revenue is generally recognized as services are performed.- Owned and leased hotel revenue
represents primarily room rentals and food and beverage sales from owned, majority owned and leased
hotels,

»

~ Management fees represent fees earned from hotels managed by us, usually under long-term contracts
with the. hotel owner. Management fees include a base fee, which is generally a percentage of hotel
revenue, and an incentive fee, which is generally based on a fixed or variable percent of hotel profits after a
stated return threshold to the owner. We recognize base fees as revenue when earned in accordance with
the terms of the contract. In interim periods we recognize the incentive fees that would be due if the
contract were termmated at the end of the interim period.

. Franchise fees represent fees received in connection with the hcensmg of our brand names, usually
under long-term contracts with the hotel owner. Depending on the brand, we charge franchise royalty fees
of up to five percent of room revenue. We recognize fee revenue as earned, in accordance with FAS 45,
~ “Accounting for Franchise Fee Revenue.” :

Timeshare and other income primarily consists of earnings from our timeshare operations. Timeshare
revenue is generated primarily from the sale and financing of timeshare intervals and operating timeshare
resorts. We recognize revenue from deeded timeshare sales in accordance with FAS 66, “Accounting for
Real Estate Sales.” Sales are included in revenue when a minimum of a 10 percent down payment has been
received, certain minimum sales thresholds have been attained, the purchaser’s period to cancel for a
refund has expired and the related receivable is deemed to be collectible. We defer revenue recognition for
sales that do not meet these criteria. During periods of construction, profits from timeshare sales are
recognized under the percentage-of-completion method. Our Hilton City Club timeshare "product is
accounted for as a long-term lease with a reversionary interest rather than the sale of a deeded interest in
real estate. Hilton City Club sales revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Timeshare and other income also includes revenue gene
operations and the recognition of deferred gains on asset sales.
accordance with FAS 66. To the extent we realize gains from the-
continuing involvernent in-the form of a long-term managen
recognizéd in revenue over the term of the contract. The defer
$5 million, $236 million and $5 million in 2004, 2005 and 2006, re

rated by the incidental support of hotel’
We account for the sale of real estate in
sale of real estate and maintain significant
nent contract, the gain is deferred and
ral of pre-tax gains on such sales totaled
spectively. Results in 2004, 2005 and 2006

inciude the recognition of pre-tax deferred gains totaling $1

5 million, $23 million and $38 million,

respectively. The deferral of gain recognition is dependent on the structure of individual sale transaétions.

We incur certain. reimbursable costs on behalf of managed hotel properties and franchisees. We
report reimbursements received from managed properties and franchisees as revenue and, the costs
incurred on their behalf as expenses. These costs, which rela:le primarily to payroll costs at managed
properties where we are the employer, are included in other revenue and expenses from managed and
franchised properties in the consolidated statements of income. iSince the reimbursements are made based
upon the costs incurred with no added margin, the presentat:orll of these reimbursable costs has no effect
on our operatmg income, total or per share net income, cash flow or financial posmon '

. 7

Hilton HHonors

Hilton HHonors is a guest loyalty program operated by Hilton HHonors Worldwide, LLC (“HHW”),
a wholly owned and consolidated subsidiary as of December 31| 12006. At December 31, 2005, HHW was a
50% joint venture accounted for under the equity method Df accounting as we exercised significant
influence over the operation of HHW but lacked a controllmg financial interest. As part of the HI
Acquisition, we acquired the remaining 50% ownership interest! The HHonors program is operated for the
benefit of our family of brands worldwide. ' ’

Members of the HHonors program ¢arn points based|on their spending at most of the hotel
properties operated and franchised by us. HHW accumulatesiand tracks points on the member’s behalf
and fulfills awards upon request. Points can be redeemed for hotel stays at participating properties and for
a variety of other awards such as airline tickets, cruises and car fentals.’

HHonors is provided as a guest loyalty program to participating hotels. HHW charges the cost of
operating the program, including the estimated cost of award rédemptions, to participating hotels based on
members’ qualifying expenditures. These charges do not inclu?e a markup or profit element. Qur awned
hotels record our share of program costs when qualified members stay at our owned hotels. When the
members redeem awards at our hotels, our owned hotels recognize revenue for reward stays.

We use outside actuaries to assist in determining the fair value of the future award redemption
obligation based on statistical formulas which project future point redemptions based on factors including
historical experience, an estimate of points that will never be T deemed, an estimate of the points that will
eventually be redeemed and thé -cost of reimbursing hotels and other third parties in respect to other
redemption opportunities available to members. These estimates are used to determine the required
liability for outstanding points. : '

The total liability recorded for outstanding .points as|{of December 31, 2006 was $421 million
Approx:mately $126 million is classified as current and is yecorded in accounts payable and accrued
expenses in our consolidated balance sheets. The remaining $295 million is long-term and is recorded in
insurance reserves and other in our consolidated balance sheets.
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Earnings Per Share (EPS) '

. " Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for the period. The weighted average number of common
shares outstanding for 2004, 2005 and 2006 were 384 million, 383 million and 385 million, respectively.
Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur-if securities or other contracts to issue common
stock were exercised or converted. The dilutive effect of stock-based compensation and convertible
securities increased the weighted average number of common shares by 34 million in 2004 and 2005 and
35 million in 2006. In addition, the increase to net income ‘resulting from interest on convertible securities
assumed to have not been paid for use in calculating diluted EPS was approximately $12 mllhon in 2004,
2005 and 2006.

Use of Estlmates

The preparatlon of financial statements in conformity with accounting prmcnples generally accepted i in
the United States (“GAAP”) requires us to make estimates and assumpt:ons that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses dunng the reportlng period.
Actual results could dlffer from our estimates and assumptions. . . .

-Reclassnﬁcatlons

" The consolidated financial statements for prior years reflect cerfain reclassnflcanons to conform Wlth
classnflcatnons adopted in 2006. These clasmﬁcatlons have no effect on net income.

New Accounting Standards

In December 2004, the Financial Accountmg Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FAS 123(R) “Share-
Based Payment,” which eliminates the ability to account for share-based compensation transactions usmg
Accounting Prmc1ples Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accountmg for Stock Issued to Employees,” ‘and
generally requires that such transactions be accounted for using a fair-value-based method. Pro forma
- disclosure is no longer an alternative, FAS 123(R) also requ1res that the tax benefit associated with these
share-based payments be classified as financing activities in the statement of cash flow rather than
operating -activitics. We adopted. FAS 123(R) effective Januaryl 2006 (see “Note 4: Stock-Based
Compensation” for a detailed discussion). : ‘

As permitted by FAS 123(R)}, we previously accounted for share-based payments to employees using
APB 25’s intrinsic value method and, as such, generally recognized no compensation expense for employee
stock options. Had we adopted FAS 123(R) in prior periods, the impact of the ‘'standard would have
approximated the impact of FAS 123(R) as described in the disclosure of pro forma net income and
earnings per.share (see “Note 4: Stock-Based Compensation”).
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In December 2004, the FASB issued FAS 152, “Acc unting for Real Estdate Time-Sharing
Transactions.” FAS 152 amends existing accounting guidance 0 reference the financial accounting and
reporting guidance for real estate time:sharing transactions provided in AICPA-Statement of Position
04-02, “Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing Transactionb.” FAS 152 is effective for our financial
statements issued after January 1, 2006. The new accounting guidance requires, among other things, that
cost$ incurred to sell timeshare units generally be charged to ¢ pense as mcurred including indirect sales
and marketing expenses. The new standard also requires a change in the classification’ of certain iters
previously repoited as expenses, requiring these items to be reflected as reductlons of revenue. The new
c]assrﬁcatrons have not affected timeshare operating income, and the tlmeshdre segment operatrng margm
has improved.

FAS 152 also impacts the timing of expense recognition when pre-sales of projects under construction
occur and we use the percentage-of-complstion method of accounting. We were previously allowed to
defer sales and marketing expenses in the same proportion as the deferred revenue during construction.
FAS 152 allows only the deferral of “direct” sales and marketing expenses. This results in earlier
recognition of sales and marketing expenses during ‘the constrliction period but does not impact the total
sales and marketing expenses recognized. This change has not materially affected reported results in ‘2006

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB interpretation No. #8, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes” (“FIN 48”), to clarity the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s
financial statements in accordance with FAS 109, “Accountihg for Income Taxes.” Effective January 1,
2007, FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measuzement attribute for the financial statement
recogmtlon and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return The adoption
of FIN 48 is not expected to result in a material adjustment to retained earnings.”

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” FAS 157 defines fair
value, provides a framework for measuring fair value, and expands 'the disclosures required for fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies to other accountmg pronouncements that requrre fair value
measurements; it does not require any new fair value méasurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for
financial statements for fiscal years beginning after Novembeér 15, 2007. We do not expect this statement
will have a material impact on our results of operations or fménmal position. '

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 158 “Employers Accountlng for Defined Beneﬁt
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans.” FAS 158 requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or
underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan ZE:)ther than a multiemployer plan) as an asset
or liability, respectively, in its balance sheet and to recognize changes in that funded status as unrealized
gain or loss through accumulated other comprehen‘;we ingome when the changes occur. FAS 158 also
Tequires, an employer to measure its defined benefit plan jassets and obligations as of the date of the
employer s fiscal year-end. FAS 158 is effective for our fischl year ending December 31, 2006 (see “Note
15: Employee Benefit Plans”). :

+
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The incremental pre-tax effect of adopting FAS 158 in our consolidated balance sheets is as follows:

Before Adopting . Adjustments to After Adopting
FAS 158 Adopt FAS 158 FAS 158
(in millions)

- Asscts
Otherassets. .. ..., s 1 - 17 - 28
Liabilities ' S _ '
Insurance reservesandother...................... (81) 6, (75)
Shareholders’ Equity _ , .
Accumulated other comprehensive (income) loss . . .. 17 (23) (6)

The separate pre-tax adjustments of retained earnings and accumulated other comprehensive income
resulting from adopting FAS 158 are as follows:

Accumulated
Other
i b Comprehensive
Adjustments to  Comprehensive (Income)
Adopt FAS 158 {Income) Loss
(in millions)
Balance at December 31,2005, ..............cccvvtna.. $ — — . 47

Decrease in additional minimum liability included in

accumulated other comprehensive income ........... L — {30) ‘ (30)
Adjustments to adopt FAS 158 ......... e . - (23) — (23,
Balance at December 31,2006 .................. SO $ (6)

NOTE 3: PURCHASE OF HILTON INTERNATIONAL

On December 29, 2005, we announced an agreement to acquire HI for approximately £3.3 billion,
equivalent to approximately $5.7 billion on the transaction date, excluding acquisition costs. On
February 23, 2006, we completed the acquisition of the lodging assets of Hilton Group ple in an all-cash
transaction (the “HI Acquisition”). The HI properties that we acquired consisted of 392 hotels with
approximately 102,000 rooms, including 39 owned, 201 leased, four partially owned through joint ventures,
118 managed and 30 franchised properties. The hotels we acquired in the HI Acquisition consisted of 249
properties operated under the Hilton brand, 131 properties operated under the mid-market, Scandic brand,
one property operated under the Conrad brand and 11 other propertics. We also acquired 80 LivingWell
health clubs, primarily in Europe, and six timeshare properties. As a result of the HT Acquisition, we now
wholly own the Hilton HHonors Worldwide fréquent guest program and the Hilton Reservations
Worldwide reservation system, both of which were previously owned equally by us and HI. We also
obtained worldwide ownership of the luxury Conrad hotel brand, which had been operated a$ a joint
venture between us and HI since 2002. As a result of the HI Acquisition, we now own all the rights to the
Hilton and Conrad brands, including the right to develop these brands, along with ali of our other
proprietary brands, on a worldwide basis. Results of operations in 2006 include the income of the acquired
properties from February 23, 2006.
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-In order to fund the HI Acquisition, we used approx1mate]y $867 million of cash and equivalents and
borrowed approximately $4.8 billion under new senior credit facilities with a syndicate of financial .
institutions (see “Note 11: Long-Term Debt”). The aggregate cash consideration for the HI Acquisition is
as follows:

{in millions)
Payment to Hilton Group plc from cashonhand..............L..... P e $ 867
Payment to Hilton Group plc from new senior credit facilities . .| ........................ 4,809
Total consideration paid to Hilton Groupple ............Loooooo i ‘ 5,676
Direct acquisSition COSES . .. ..ottt e e 35

Total............ e e PR L R PO $5,761

Allocation of Purchase Price

FAS 141, “Business Combinations,” requires that the toteil purchase price be allocated to the assets
.acquired and liabilities assumed based on. their fair values at the acquisition date. In valuing acquired
assets and assumed liabilities, fair values are based on factors lhcludmg, but not limited to, quoted market
prices, expected future cash’ flows, current replacement costs market rate assumptions and appropriate
discount and growth rates. |

Under the purchase method of accounting, the assets and liabilities of Hilton International were
recorded at their respective fair values as of the date of the ac bisition. Subsequent to the acquisition date,
we reduced the preliminary goodwill balance by approximately $389 million reflecting adjustments to the
preliminary purchase price allocations of certain items including’ property and equipment, amortizable
intangible assets, brands, deferred income taxes and other assets and liabilities to reflect revised fair values.
The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets| achIred and liabilities assumed as of the

acquisition date.

s Fair Value
(in millions}

Current assets, including $467 in cash and equivalents. .. |.......... FETR PO $ 961

Property and equipment. ... .......oovveienin... P P 2911
Amortizable intangible assets ,......... S S 963 .

Brands . . ... T L 1,741

Goodwill ...l et e PO 2,328

Other assets ......... e PR e P . 310
Current liabilities. ........... s N e (1,269)
Long-term debt, including capital leasc obligations. ............ e e (612)
Deferred income taxes ..o N PP '.'. e - (1,282)

Other liabilities. . .... ..... e RPN AN e 250

' . ; _ '$ 5,761

66




Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 (Continued)

Pro Forma Financial Information ; o

The following pro forma c;bnsqlidated results of ‘operations for the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2006 assume that the HI Acquisition was completed as of January 1, 2005; ) _
.o o 2005 2006

., (unaudited)
(in millions,

’ ’ - 4 . . except per share -
! cr R amounts)

Total FeVenUe . .. ....vev e e e Vol 88333 8675
Netineome .. ...vvveeiiee e e 'S 454 552
Diluted earnings pershare.......... ... i $ 112 . 1.34

~ The pro forma amounts represent the historical opcratmg results of Hllton Hotels Corporation and -
HI with adjustments for purchase price allocation and for translatlon from International F1nanc1al
Reporting Standards to Umted States GAAP.

Goodwill and ]ntangible Assets Acquired

- Goodwill resultmg from the HI Acquisition totaled approxlmately $2.33 bll]l()n We do not expect any,
of the goodwill to be tax deductible.. Goodwill has béen assigned to our segments as follows: Hotel
Ownership - $1.35 billion; and Managmg and Franchising - $976 million. We also have an intangible asset
relating to the brand names acquired in the HI Acquisition totaling $1.74 billion as of the acquisition date.
Goodwill and brands are considered to have an indefinite life and are not amortized, but rathgl: are
reviewed annually for impairment or more frequemly if lndlcators of i lmpalrment exist.

Intangible assets with defmlte lives sub]ect to amort:zatlon acqu1red in the HI Acqunsmon are as
follows:

' . : Weighted-Average

' _Fair Value Amortization Period
(in millions) (in years)
T S $263 25,
Management contracts .............. O PR 648 - 20
Franchise contracts ................ e ‘ _ 52 14
5963 21

NOTE 4: STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

As of December 31, 2006, we maintained the 2004 Omnibus Equity Compcnsatlon Plan (“2004 Plan™)
which provides for the grant of options, stock units, performance units and other stock-based awards, In
addition, we mainfained three stock plans with substantially identical terms that provide for the grant of
options. At December 31, 2006, there are approximately 21 million shares available for issuance under the
2004 Plan and no authorized shares remaining available for grant under the other three stock plans.
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Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted IFAS 123(R) In agcordance with the modified prospective
transition method of FAS 123(R), financial results for prior periods have not been restated. We recognize
compensatior expense On a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award, taking into
consideration the applicable ‘estimated forfeiture rates. ompensatlon expense associated with
performance units is subject to adjustments for changes in estm}ates relating to whether the performance
objective will be achieved (see Restricted Stock Units below) Total pre-tax compensation expense
included in net income was $10 million, $22 million and $46 million for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2005, and 2006, respectively. The adoption of FAS 123(R),resu]ted in incremental pre-tax expense of
$16 million ($10 million, net of tax) for 2006. The impact to both basic and diluted EPS was $.03 and $.02
for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2606, the
impact to basic and diluted EPS, was $.03 and $.02, respectively.

Prior to the adoption of FAS 123(R), benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation
costs were reported as operatmg cash flows. FAS 123(R) requrr'es that excess tax benefits be reported as a
financing cash inflow rather than as a reduction of taxes paid. Such amounts totaléd $12 million for 2006.
As of December 31, 2006, there was $73 million of unrecogni ed compensation cost which is expected to
be recognized over a weighted-average pericd of 23 months.

Prior to January 1, 2006, we applied APB Opinion 25 and related mterpretatlons in accountmg for our
stock-based compensatlon plans Compensation cost for stock units and performance units awarded in
2004 and 2005 'is bemg expensed over the respectlve vesting fperlods and is included in net income. No
compensatlon cost rélated to stock optlon awards was reflected in nét income for the periods prior to 2006,
as'all stock options had an exercise prrce greater than or edual to the market value of the underlying
common stock 'on the date of grant. '

Had the expense for alf forms of our stock-based compensanon been determmed using the fair value
based method défined in'FAS 123(R), our net income and net income per share would have been reduced
to the pro forma amounts indicated as follows:

- Year Ended December 31,
2004 2005 2006
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Net income: .o -
Asreported..............oo i R $238- 460 - 572 -
Add back: Compensanon expense included in reported netjincome, -
net Of taX ..o e e 6 14 28
Deduct: Fair-value compensation expense for all awards, net of tax .. _{18) (23) _(28)
As adjusted ............ O T UUUY PO $226 451 ST2
Basic earnings per share: . . ,
CASTEPOTIEA .« ee e s ens s et eeoe et h e ... §.62 1.20 149
As adjusted ........ I S A S T A ~. §.59 118 149
Diluted earnings per share oot ’ T
Asreported...... ' .............. e F N $ .60 113 139
As adjusted ...... B Y $.57 111 139

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $67 million, $48 million and $68 million for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectlvely The total fair value of restricted stock units
vested was $8 million and $15 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. No
restricted stock units vested in 2004.

68




Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements R T 7L JE S S .- .
December 31, 2006 (Continued) ' ‘

Stock Options : S o g

Options may be granted to salaried officers, directors and ‘other key employees to purchase our
common stock at not less than the fair market value at the date of grant. Generally, options vest over a
four year period, contingent upon continued employment and, remam outstanding for ten years from the
date of grant. Optlons are generally exercrsable in installments commencing ofie’ year after the date of
grant.’, -

We granted 400 000 and 2,530,165 stock options in 2005 and 2006 with- weighted-average exercise
prices of $22.19 and $25.35 per share, respectively, and estimated weighted-average grant date fair values
of approximately $13.12 and $13.44 per share, respectively. No options were granted in 2004. Cash
received from options exercised under all share-based payment arrangements in 2006 was $63 million. The
actual tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from options exercised was $26 million, $22 million and
$28 million for 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. |

The fair values of the options granted in 2005 and 2006 were estimated on the grant date using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for grants in
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006: : L

.
FE | - 4

: 2005 2006
Dividendyield ...... ... ... i T 10% 07%
Expected volatility. ... e ' 55.0% 55.0%'
Weighted-average risk-free interestrate . .......................o00 0 T 4% 45%
Expectedtermofoption(inyears).....................— ................... 8 6

Volatility is based on hrstoncal information with terms consistent with the expected life of our non-
qualified stock optlons The risk-free rate is based on the. quoted treasury yield curve at the time of grant,
with terms con51stent with the expected life of our non- qualified stock options. The drvrdend yield is based
on the annual dividend payment of $0.12 and $0.16 per share for 2005 and 2006, respectwely

A summary of stock Optlon actwrty under our equrty plans for the year ended December 31, 2006 is as
follows: ) -

-~ . Ce ' -

. Weighted-
. Average . .
' Weighted: ' ' Remaining " Apgregate
. Average Exercise = Contractual Intrinsic
Option Activity : __Shares _Price. ‘¢ "« Term - Value*
: - (years)‘ ¢ (in millions}
Balance at December 31, 2005. ... . 16,896,920 Sws2 ;
Granted................... Lo 2530065 T 2535t T e ,
Exercised............0......... _ "(4,834,204) C13.03 . . g .

" Forfeited .. ........ AU B (177,043) ° 1808 ‘ s .
‘Expired ... ... PR S L (150000 1866 ' o
Balance at December 31, 2006. ...... 114,400,838 ) 1687, ' . 3.0 ., $265
Exercisable at December 31,2006... ~ ' 8,186,604 -~ -+ 1231 . 4.4 $188*

|
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At December 31, 2006, outstanding stock options issued under our stock plans are as follows:

Options Qutstanding - - Options Exercisable
Weighted- |
’ . Average ‘ Weighted- : ‘Weighted-
. Number | Remaining .~ Average - Number Average
Exercise Price Qutstanding Contractual Life i Exercise lPrice . Exercisable ' Exercise Price

$ .6.65 - 981 787,842 30 " '$ 9.}6 ' 787,842 $ 9.16

11.18 - 13.40 7,619,726 5.3 11.93 6,255,142 11.94
13.95-20.56 1,143,620 1.5 16.;52 -+ 1,143,620 -16.52 |
22.19-27.53 4849650 . 9.1 2598 <. = L — |
6.65-2753 - 14,400,838 50 - S, 16]87 - 8,186,604 12.31 '

A sufnrriary of unvested options ‘as of December 31, 2006 ind the changes during the year then ended
is as follows: : o

' Weighted-
C . . Average Grant
Unvested Option Activity . Shares Date Fair Value
Balance at December 31,2005, ........... P U 6,796,688 $ 497
GIAMEA . ettt e e e e Lo 2,530,165 13.44
Vested ............. e e e e e e ] ...... (2,935,576). 8.35’
TFOTEIEM -« ..o e ettt L. (177,043) 418
Balance at December 31,2006, .. ...l 6,214,234 8.70

Restricted Stock Units

During 2004, 2005 and 2006, we awarded restricted stopk under our 2004 Plan in the form of time-
based units (“TBU”) and performance-based units (“PBUY). TBU awards generally vest. annually in a
straight-line method over four years. PBU awards have a performance and-vesting period established by
our Compensation Committee, which was, three years for thql PBUs granted in 2004, 2005 and 2006. PBUs
are payable from 0% to 150% of the target amount depending upon on the level of achievement of
performance goals established by the Compensation Committee. Compensation expense for the TBU and
PBU awards is measured at the fair value of the underlyin | stock at the date of grant and is adjusted for
estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense associated| with the PBU awards is also subject to
adjustments for changes in estimates relating to the achievement of the established performance goals.

In 2004, we granted 1,560,670 TBUs and 765,309 |PBUs, both with grant date fair values of
approximately $17.37 per share.

In 2005, we granted 1,272,313 TBUs and 810,749 PBUs (the “Original 2005 PBUs”), both with a grant
date fair value of approximately $22.19 per share. On AI\I/Iarch 31, 2006, the Compensation Committee
determined that, in light of the HI Acquisition on February 23, 2006, the performance goals established for
the Original 2005 PBUs were no longer appropriate because they do not take into account the impact of
the HI Acquisition on the performance of the, new ' cdmbined company. Accordingly, to encourage
retention and to better -align compensation incentives |with the performance of the new combined
company, the Compensation Committee issued new grants under the 2004 Plan consisting.of PBUs, TBUs
and stock options to all of the recipienss of the Original 2005 PBU grants, as described in the table below
(the “Special Grants”™).
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With ‘respect to the Special Grants, the PBUs have a performance and vesting period ending on
December 31, 2007, and the TBUs and stock options vest in full on January 5, 2008. On March 31, 2006,
the Compensation Committee cancelled the Original 2005 PBUs, except for grants made to certain
executive officers. With respect to those executive officers, following the December 31, 2007 simultanecus
close of the performance periods for both the Original 2005 PBUs and the PBU portion of the Special
Grants, the Compensation Committee will assess our overall performance in relation to the performance
objectives established for the Original 2005 PBUs and the PBU portion of the Special Grants and the
individual performance of each holder of those units and determine what payment is warranted based on
such performance. The Compensation Committee believes that the amount payable with respect to the
Original 2005 PBUs based on actual performance will be minimal or zero at the end of the full

- performance period. However, in the unlikely event that any amount becomes payable with respect to the
Original 2005 PBUs, the Compensation Committee may nevertheless exercise its discretionary authority
under the Original 2005 PBUs and the PBU portion of the Special Grants to reduce the amount payable
thereunder so that the total compensation paid to each holder reflects the Compensation Committee’s
intent with regard to appropriate pay-for-performance under both grants and remains fair and reasonable
in light of both company and individual performance over the period.

In the first guarter 2006, we granted 2,845,001 TBUs and 910,272 PBUs with weighted-average grant
date fair values of approximately $23.69 and $24.30 per share, respectively. The TBUs vest in full on
January 5, 2009 and the PBUSs have a performance and vesting period ending on December 31, 2008. On
March 31, 2006, the Compensation Committee adjusted the 2006 PBU grants for all recipients as follows:
(i) the target number of PBUs granted to each recipient was reduced by 50%; and (ii) each recipient
received a nonqualified stock option grant undér the 2004 Plan at a fair market value exercise price of
$25.53, which vests in three equal annual installments on January 5 of each of 2007, 2008 and 2009,

The changes to the driginal 2005 and 2006 PBU awards are as follows:

Original 2005 PBU Grants Special Grants
Weighted- . Weighted.
Average Grant ’ Average Grant
T Date Fair . Date Fair
Type Units Value ’ Type ] Units _ Value
PBU....... 810,749 $22.19. TBU ) 253,295 $25.53
' "PBU 253,295 25.53
Options 759,884 T 13.56
Original 2006 PBU Grants . Adjusted 2006 Grants
. Weighted- L Weighted-
Average Grant Average Grant
Date Fair . " Date Fair
Type Units Value Type Units Value
PBU....... ' 910,272 $24.30 PBU 456,761 - $25.53
Options 1,370,281 13.56

Total incremental cost resulting from the grants ‘made on March 31, 2006 is expected to be
approximately $13 million, expensed over 33 months from the date of grant. As a result of the
modification, we recognized additional compensation expense of approximately §5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006.

In the third quarter of 2006, we granted 13,540 TBUs with a grant date fair value of $27.76 per share.
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" A summary of the activity of TBUs and PBUs granted under our 2004 Plan for the year ended
December 31, 2006 is as follows: . ‘ -

Weighted-

Average Grant
Units . Date Fair ¥alue
“TBUs - : - .
Balance at December 31,2005.................. O 2,330,078 $19.84
Gramted . ..o e e [P 3,111,836 23.86 .
Vested ....oovieeiiiiiinn. U U (639,402) 19.62°
Forfeited ... ... i i i i e e (317,764) 21.27
Balance at December 31,2000, .. .. ..ot e e 4,484,748 22.56 |
PBUs T . ' I
Balance at December 31, 2005, .. .o v i e 1,519,907 $19.84 . .
Granted . . ..o et U [ ......... . 1,620,328 24.84 '
FOMERIEM .+ . et er e e e e e Lo, " (89,774) 20.83
Cancelled. ..................... T (1,459,871) 23.50

Balance at December 31,2006............. Y P 1,590,590 21.51

Supplemental Retention and Retirement Plan-

We also provide supplemental retirement benefits to eligible senior officers in the form of stock units
that settle in shares of our common stock on a one-for-one basis. The compensation expense associated
with the benefits is expensed over the four-year vesting period. At December 31, 2006, an msignificant
amount of stock units remain unvested. The pre-tax compensation expense under these plans was 34
million, $1 million and $1 million for the years ended Decem Ser 31,2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

NOTE 5: ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

We consider properties to be held for sale when management approves and commits to a formal plan
to actively market a property for sale, executes a formal sales|contract, allows the buyer to complete its due
diligence review and receives a non-refundable deposit. Until necessary approvals have been received and
substantive conditions to the buyer’s obligation to perform have been satisfied, we do not consider a sale to
be probable. ‘

Upon designation as an asset held for sale, we revieTv the carrying value of the property and, as -
appropriate, adjust the value to the lower of its carrying value or its estimated fair value less estimated cost
to sell, and we stop recording depreciation expense. '

To the extent we realize a gain from the sale of real estate and maintain significant continuing
involvement in the form of a long-term management con’tract, the gain is deferred and recognized in
revenue over the term of the contract. The deferral of pre-tax gains on such sales totaled $5 million,
$236 million and $5 million in 2004, 2005 and 2006, respecti{vely. Results for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2005 and 2006 include the recognition of pre-tax deferred gains totaling $15 million, $23 million and
$38 million, respectively. _ : '
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Fiscal Year 2006 Transacrions' . ' '

n the first quarter of 2006, we acquired the long-term management contracts for the Hilton Anatole,
in Dallas, Texas; the Grand Wailea Resort Hotel & Spa in Maui, Hawaii; the Arizona Biltmore Resort &

Spa in Phoenix, Arizona; and the La Quinta Resort & Club in La Quinta, Callforrua

On February 23, 2006, we completed the acquisition of the lodging assets of Hilton Group plc
operated by its subsidiary, Hilton International Co., for approximately £3.3 billion, equivalent to
approximately $5.7 billion on the transaction date, excluding acquisition costs, in an all-cash transaction
(see “Note 3: Purchase of Hilton Internatlonal”)

In March 2006, we completed the sale of two wholly owned hotels. The Pomte Hilton Tapatio Cliffs in
Arizona was sold for cash of approximately $85 million, resulting in a pre-tax loss of approximately $33
million. The sale of the Pointe Hilton Tapatio Cliffs resulted in a reduction in our consolidated goodwill
balance of approximately $10 million. The Hilton Minneapolis in Minnesota was sold for cash of
approximately $92 million, resulting in a pre-tax loss of approximately $5 million. We have retainéd long-
term management agreements on both of the aforementioned properties. In addition to the sales of these
wholly owned hotels, we sold our minority 1nterest in the Hilton Times Square in New York, a joint
venture property, for cash of approximately $27 ‘million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately
$11 million.

L i
In May 2006, in connection with the sale of the Hilton Pittsburgh in Pennsylvania, we received cash of
approximately $17 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $8 million. The hotel wilt continue

* to operate as a Hilton-branded property under the terms of a 20-year franchise agreement. In addition, we

sold our minority interest in the Embassy Suites Hotel San Diego-La Jolla in California, a joint venture
property, for cash of approximately $5 million, resulting in a pre-tax loss of approximately $2 million.

" In,the three months ended September 30, 2006, we sold certain assets acqmred as part of the HI
Acquisition. The assets sold include the Hilton Toronto Airport, the HlltOI‘l Toronto Downtown, the
Hilton Quebec City, the Hilton Montreal Airport and the Hilton Saint John, all in Canada; the Wembley
hotel in the United Kingdom,; the stand alone LivingWell health clubs; and the leasehold in the Drake -
Hotel in Chlcago We have retained multi-year management agreements on all of these dispositions except
for LivingWell. Proceeds totaled a U.S. dollar equivalent of approximately $467 million as of the
transaction dates. No gains or losses have been recognized in earnings related to the sale of assets
previously acquired as part of the HI Acquisition. In accordancé with FAS: 141, the preliminary purchase
price allocation has been adjusted to reflect revised fair values based on the sales transactions, with the
differences between the preliminary and final valuations reflected in goodwill (see “Note 3: Purchase of
Hilton Internatlonal”) . : _ - :

"In October 2006, we sold our rmnonty mtcrcst in the Fmbdssy Battery Park in New York, a Jomt
venture property, for cash of approximately $35 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $22
million. We maintain a long-term franchise contract on this property.

In November 2006, we completed the sale-of two wholly owned hotels. The Hilton London Metropole
and the Hilton Birmingham Metropole were sold for cash of a'U.S. dollar equivalent-of approximately
$814 million as of the transaction date. We have retained long-term management agreements on both of
the aforementioned properties. No gains or losses have been recognized in earnings related to the sale of
assets previously acquired as part of the HI Acquisition in accordance with FAS 141.
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The $72 million net other gain in our consolidated statements of income for 2006 also includes $33
million of gains on settlement recoveries related to mold found in certain areas of the Hilton Hawaiian
Village in' 2002, a $24 million gam on sales of certain marketa:ble securities, a $17 million net gain from
insurance proceeds related to Hurricane Katrina (see “Note 19: Insurance Recoveries”), a $3 million pre-
tax loss on derivative instruments based on their market value at December 31, 2006 (see “Note 2
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—Derivative I'nstruments”), a $3 million loss on the
termination of various management and franchise contracts to which we had value assigned, and $3 million
in other net gains.

We have engaged Eastdil Secured, LLC to act as our broker for the sale or financing of certain of our
owned hotels. Fees earned by Eastdil related to owned hotels in 2005 and, 2006 were approximately
$3 million and $2 million; respectively. Benjamin V. Lambert,|a director of our company, is Chairman of
Eastdil,

Fiscal Year 2005 Transactions'

In the 2005 first quarter, we sold the Hilton Tarrytown Iin New York for cash of approximately $9
million. The sale resulted in a pre-tax gain of approxnmately $5 million. After the sale the hotel was
converted to a Doubletree under a long-tern franchise agreembent.

In April 2005, we completed the sale of the Red Lion Austin in Texas for cash of approximately $6
million. As the purchase price approximated our carrying value, no gain or loss was recorded on the sale.
In May 2005, we completed the sale of two Homewood Suites by Hilton properties for total cash of
approximately $17 million, resulting in a pre-tax loss of approjaumately $1 million. We continue to manage )
both hotels under long-term managcment agreements.

In the second quarter of 2005, we completed two transadtions whereby we acquired land on Hawaii’s
Big Island. The first transaction occurred in April 2005 involving the acquisition of 62 acres of land on
which the Hilton Waikoloa Village is located. The purchase price for this transaction was approximately
$115 million. We had previously leased the land pursuant to an agreement expiring in 2061. In May 2005,
we completed the second transaction whereby we acquired 112 acres of undeveloped land located within
the Waikoloa Beach Resort for approximately $65 million. :

In June 2005, we completed the sale of seven wholly owned and one majority owned hotel. The Hilton
Suites Phoenix in Arizona, Hilton Suites Anaheim in Californja and Embassy Suites Cleveland-Beachwood
in Ohio were sold for cash totaling approximately $72 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain totaling
approximately $16 million. Each of the hotels continues to oﬁerate under long-term franchise agreements.
In addition, we continue to manage the Hilton Suites Phoenik under a long-term management agreement.
A pre-tax gain totaling approximately $13 million on the Hll&Ol’l Suites Phoenix has been deferred, due to
our continuing involvement in management of the hotel, and is being recognized over the life of the five-
year management contract retained on this property. These three properties were sold to the RLJ Urban
Lodging Fund, a hotel investment fund created by RLJ DeJelopment LLC (“RLJ”). Robert L. Johnson
was a director of the Company and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of RLJ at the time of the
sale. In addition, we have a limited partnership interest|in the RLJ Urban Lodging Fund totaling
approximately $13 million at December 31, 2005, which is accounted for as a cost basis investment.

74




Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements ’
December 31, 2006 (Continued)

The Doubietree Bellevue in Washington was sold in June 2005 for approximately $49 million in cash,
resulting in a pre-tax loss of approximately $13 million. The Hilton Suites Brentwood in Tennessee was
sold for approximalely $6 million in cash, resulting in a pre-tax loss of approximately $5 million. The Hilton
Alexandria in Virginia was sold for cash of approximately $93 million, resulting in‘ a' pre-tax gain of

~ approximately $37 million, and the Hilton Charlotte in North Carolina was sold for cash of approximately

$56 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $5 million. The sale of the Hilton Charlotie
resulted in a reduction in our consolidated goodwill balance of approximately $3 mllllon We have retained
long-term franchlsc agreements on each of the aforementioned properties. :

- Also in June 2005, we sold the majority owned Hilton Glendale in California for cash of
approximately $80 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $30 million. Amounts attributable
to the minority partner, totaling approximately $7 million on a pre-tax basis, are reflected in the
consolidated statements of income, net of tax, in minority and non-controlled mterests net. We have
retained a long-term franchise agreement on the hotel,

In addition to the sales of wholly owned and majority owned hotels, we. sold our mmonty or noen-
controlling interests in five joint venture hotel properties in the second quarter. Proceeds totaled
approximately $26 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $6 million. . :

In July 2005, we sold the Hilton East Brunswick in New Jersey for cash of dpprommately $43 milljon.
Results in 2005 include an impairment charge of $2 million to reduce this asset to its fair market value. We
managed the hotel on a short-term basis and retain a long-term franchise agreement. Also in July 2005, we
sold our minority interests in eight joint venture hotels. Proceeds totaled approximately $2 million. Results
for the year ended December 31, 2005 include an impairment charge of $3 million to reduce the joint
venture investment to its fair market value.

In August 2005, we sold the Palmer House Hilton in Illinois for cash of approximately $230 million.
We continue to manage the Palmer House Hilton under a long-term management agreement. A pre-tax

" gain totaling approximately $168 million has been deferred, due to our continuing involvement in

management of the hotel, and will be recognized over the ten-year life of lhe management contract
retained on this property. .

In October 2005, we sold the Hilton Boston Back Bay in Massachusetts 1or cash of approximately $110
million. We continue to manage the Hilton Boston Back Bay under a long-term management agreement.
A pre-tax gain totaling approximately $35 million has been deferred, due to our continuing involvement in
management of the hotel, and is being recognized over the 20 year life of the management contract
retained on this property. The sale of the Hilton Boston Back Bay resulted in a reduction in “our
consolidated goodwill balance of approximately $1 million. :

In November 2005, we sold the Hilton Southfield i in Michigan for cash of approximately 86 million,
resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $3 million. In addition, we have retained a long-term franchise
agreement.
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In December 2005, we completed the sale of four wholly owned hotels. The Hilton Portland in
Oregon was sold for cash of approximately $84 million. We continue to manage the Hilton Portland under
a long-term management agreement. A pre-fax gain totaling ap'proximately $19 million has been deferred
due to our continuing involvement in the management of the hotel, and is being recognized over the 20
year life of the management contract retainzd on this property. The Hilton San Diego in California was

sold for cash of approximately $90 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $66 million. The -

Hilton Dallas Fort Worth in Texas was solé for cash of approkimately $66 million, resulting in.a pre-tax
loss of approximately $23 million and the Hilton Anchorage in; Alaska was sold for cash of approximately
$65 million, resulting in a pre-tax loss of approximately $1 million. The sale of the Hilton Dallas Fort
Worth resulted in a reduction in our consolidated goodwill bal ince of approximately $7 million. We retain
long-term franchise agreements on each of the aforementioned properties. '

The $103 million net other gain in our consolidated statement of income for 2005 also includes a $3
million unrealized gain on our oil futures derivative basedj on the market value of the contract at
December 31, 2005, and a $10 million loss on foreign currency options based on the market value of the
options as of December 31, 2005. Also included in the 2005 period are a net loss of $1 million related to
the disposition of certain management and franchise agreements to which value had been assigned, and a
$1 million loss on the sale of other fixed assets. The asset dispbsitions in 2005 also generated capital gains
for tax purposes, which enabled us to utilize capital loss tax carryforwards that had been fully reserved. The
utilization of these capital loss carryforwards resulted in a net benefit to our income tax provision of
approximately $34 million in 2005. +

Tax-Deferred Asset Exchange

The sale of the Palmer House Hilton in 2005 was effectuated through a reverse Internal Revenue
Code Section 1031 tax-deferred exchange with the two land acquisitions on Hawaii’s Big Island. As such,

the sale was completed through an exchange facilitator that teceived and held the cash proceeds for our

benefit until the exchange was completed.

In addition, certain of the owned hotel sales closed in the second quarter of 2005 were also completed
through an exchange facilitator in order to serve as poflzntial substitutes to the Palmer House in
completing the exchange with the land in Hawaii or to facil,itate a separate exchange pursuant to which
other property might be acquired. As a result, approximately $267 million of sale proceeds from asset sales
completed in the second quarter of 2005 were held for our benefit by the exchange facilitator. As a result
of the sale of the Palmer House Hilton in the third quarter, Jipproximately $119 million of these proceeds
were released to us and the cash became unrestricted. In October, approximately $84 mitlion of the
proceeds from the sale of the Palmer House Hilton were released to us and became unrestricted with the
completion of the tax deferred-exchange related to the 112 acres of undeveloped land in Hawaii. The
remaining $64 million of restricted cash' related to exg:han'e activity became unrestricted in the fourth
quarter of 2005. -~ - ’

Fiscal Year 2004 Transactions

In the 2004 first quarter, we sold the Doubletree Posada Resort - Scottsdale in Arizona for
approximately $30 million, including approximately $6 million in cash and a note receivable for
approximately $24 million. The note receivable was repaid in the first quarter of 2005. No book gain or loss
was realized on the sale; however, the transaction generated!a capital gain for tax purposes, which enabled
us to utilize existing capital loss tax carryforwards that h'{ad been fully reserved in prior periods. The
transaction resulted in a net benefit to our income tax provision of approximately $2 million.
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In the second quarter of 2004, we sold the Doubletree Modesto and Doubletree Bakersfield, both in
California for a total of approximately $40 million in cash. Gains of approximately $3 million on Modesto
and approximately $2 million on Bakersficld were deferred’and, due to our continuing involvement with
each hotel, are being recognized over the life of the long-term management agreement retained on each
hotel. Both management agreements are for a term of-ten years. The transaction also generated a capital
gain for tax purposes, which enabled us to utilize existing capital Joss tax carryforwards that had been fully
resérved in prior- periods. The transaction resulted in a net benefit to out income tax provision of
approxjmately $4 million.

~ In the fourth quarter of 2004, we sold the Doubletree Jantzen Beach and the Doubletree Columbla
River, both near Portland Oregon, for a total of approximately $29 million in cash. The sale resulted in a
pre-tax loss of appr0x1mately $3 million. The net other loss of $5 million in 2004 includes the $3 million
loss on the sale of the two Doubletrees, a $4 million foss related to the write-off of values assigned to
certain long-term management and franchise agreements that were terminated in 2004 and a $1 million
loss due to the fair market value adjustment of our derivative instruments. These losses were partlally
offset by a §3 million gain from the sale of our 1nvestmem in Travelweb.

In August 2004, we acquired a 24 percent minority mterest in a coal-based synthetlc fuel facnllry for
approximately $32 million. Our investment is accounted for using the equity method as we lack a
controlling financial interest. The facility produced operating losses, our share of which totaled
approximately. $6 million, $17 million and $16 million in 2004, 2005 and 2006 respectively. This loss is
reflected as loss from non-operating affiliates in the accompanying consolidated statemerits of income.

The synthetic’ fuel produced at this fac1l|ty qualifies for tax credits based on Section 45K of the
Internal Revenue Code; which reduce our provision for income taxes. The Section 45K’ credits are
expected to continue to be available for fuel produced at the facility through 2007. The tax credits,
combined with the tax benefit associated with the operating losses, totaled approximately $9 million, $23

‘million and $17 million in 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. As a result, the benefit to our net income of

the investment' totaled approximately $3 million, $6 million and $1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 respectively.

NOTE 6: VARIABLE lNTEREST ENTITIES | . . v

We manage two hotels in which we have variable interests, as defmed in FASB Interpretation
No. (“FIN") 46(R) “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” as rtevised, due to the terms of
performance 'guarantees. The performance guarantee associated with one of the hotel management
agreements does not expose us to the majority of expected cash flow variability; therefore, we are not the
primary beneficiary and this hotel is not consolidated. Qur maximum exposure to loss on this contract
consists of future management fees and our potential obligation to fund the performance guarantee which,
as of-December 31, 2006, totaled approximately $33 million through 2012,

POl

i
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The second of the two contracts contains provisions that expose us to the majority of expected cash
flow variability. As a result, we are considered to be the primary beneficiary under FIN 46(R), and are
required to consolidate the balance sheet and results of operations of the hotel. Our consolidated balance
sheets at both December 31, 2005 and Deczmber 31, 2006 inqlude the assets and liabilities of this non-
controlled hotel, including approximately $10 million and $9 million, respectively, of cash and equivalents
(reflected as restricted cash) and $100 million of debt in both years, which is non-recourse to us. The debt
is secured by the fixed assets of the hotel with a historical cost of approximately $82 million. The net equity
of the hotel is a retained deficit of approximately $60 million and $63 million at December 31, 2005 and
2006, respectively, and is reflected on our consolidated balande sheets in other assets. The revenue and
operating expenses of this property are included in other revenue and expenses from managed and
franchised properties in the consolidated statements of incomje. Our financial exposure to this property
comsists of the fees we earn under the rmanagement agréement and costs we may incur under the
performance guarantee. The net effect of the other earnings of this property, which belongs to the hotel
owners, is eliminated from our‘consolidated results through minority and non-controlled interests expense
in the consolidated statements of income. ' '

As part of the HI Acquisition on February 23, 2006, we, acquired a minority ownership interest in
three joint ventures that lease hotels which are managed by us. We have variable interests, as defined in
FIN 46(R), which expose us to the majority of expected casH flow variability of the joint ventures. As a
result, we are considered to be the primary beneficiary under (FIN 46(R), and are required to consolidate
the balance sheet and results of operations of the joint ventures. In addition, two of the hotel leases are
accounted for as capital leases under FAS 13, “Accounting 'for Leases.” As of December 31, 2006, our
consolidated balance sheets include the assets and liabilities of these non-controlled joint ventures,
including $14 million of cash and equivalznts, which is rqﬂécted as restricted cash in our consolidated
balance sheets and $400 million of debt and capital lease obliéations, which are non-recourse to us and are
reflected in non-recourse debt and capital lease obligations of non-controlled entities in our consolidated
balance sheets. (

The net equity of the hotels is a retained deficit of approximately $75 million at-December 31, 2006,
and is reflected on our consolidated balance sheet in other assets. The revenue and operating expenses of
these properties are included in leased hotel revenue and iexpenses in the consolidated statements of
income. The net effect of the earnings of these propertie§ applicable to other ownership interests is
eliminated from our consolidated results through minority {and non-controlled interest expense in the
consolidated statements of income. o

NOTE 7: IMPAIRMENT LOSS AND RELATED COSTS
There are no impairment loss and related costs for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Results in 2005 include pre-tax impairment loss and related costs totaling $7 million. This includes a
$2 million pre-tax charge related to an owned hotel and a $3 million pre-tax charge related to our minority
interests in eight joint venture hotels to reduce their respective carrying values to their estimated fair
values. These two charges are included in Hotel Ownership|segment results. The hotel and joint venture -
interests were sold”in July 2005 (see “Note 5: Acquisitions and Dispositions”). The charge in 2005 also
includes a $2 million pre-tax charge in the first quarter, reqresenting the write down of a non-hotel cost
basis investment to its estimated fair value. This charge is{included in corporate and other unallocated
expenses in our reported segment results.
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Results in 2004 include impairment loss and related costs totaling $5 million. This pre-tax charge is to
reduce the value of an owned hotel to its estimated fair value and is included in Hotel Ownership segment
results.

NOTE 8; INVESTMENTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE
Investments and notes receivable at December 31, 2005 and 2006‘ are as follows:

- 2005 2006
(in millions)

Equity inveStments , :
Hotels :........................ [ PP B $269 - 309

Other . ... 28. 8
Timeshare notes receivable, with an average rate of 12.9%, due 2007 to 2016. . 351 454
Other notes receivable, with an average rate of 6.7%, due 2007 to 2015. ... .. 50 25
| Marketable securities .................. P 29 .6
| Foreign currencyoptions . ............ i, e s . 4 -
| Other INVESIMENTS .. ... ..ottt aieeans . 20 1
: : . 79t 819.
| Less current portion .......... e e 84y  (60)

| Total ..o AT PP DU L %707 759

Notes receivable are reflected net of an estimated allowance for uncollectible amounts.;For timeshare
notes receivable, this estimate is based primarily on historical experience and assumptions with respect to
future payment trends. Allowances for uncollectible amounts of other notes receivable, which includes
notes from managed, franchised and unconsolidated joint venture properties, are estimated based
primarily on historical trends and analysis of underlying real estate collateral. Assessment of collateral may
include estimates of futire cash flow from the underlying real estate. For timeshare notes receivable,
interest income is recogmzed monthly from the date that the loan is closed. Any fees, including processing
fees and late feés, are recogmzed in the month of collection. The activity in the allowancc for uncollectible
amounts for timeshare notes receivable is as follows:

2005 2006

. ] ~ (in millions)
Beginning balance . .......oovviiniiiniiiiiieiaann.. RO L %6 10
Additions .............. e e vy P 8 16
PWIHE-OFFS . . vt [P @ (o0
Balance at December 31, . . . ..o ov oot e e 10 16

Total notes receivable, including timeshare, totaled $401 million and $479 million, net of allowances
for uncotlectible amounts of $24 million-and $35 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

F
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Timeshare notes receivable maturities are as follows:

) ! : . (in millions)
2007 o e e e e $ 56
2008 ..ottt R I 64
2009 ..\t TR S 69
2010 ... . e e et P 70
7201 R e wd SR 66 °
,Thereafter ....................................... ' ............... 145

] 470 .

Allowance for doubtful accounts ... ... iiiiiiiiiiiniiiin. L (16) .

Total. . e e e e $454

Our investments in unconsolidated affiliates accounted for under the equity method totaled
$297 million and $317 million at December 31, 2005 and- 200& respectively, representing approximately
three percent and two percent of total assets at the end of 2005 and 2006, respectively. At December 31,
2006, . our unconsolidated: affiliates accounted for under (the equity method had total assets of
approximately $2 billion and total debt of approximately $969] million. Of the $969 million of total debt,
$966 million is secured solely by the affiliate’s assets or is guaranteed by other partners without recourse to
us. We are the creditor on $17 million of the 3969 million of debt.-

Sales of our marketable securities are accounted for using the specific identification method. During
2006, we sold tertain marketable securities for proceeds of approximately $34 million, resulting in gains of
approximately $24 million which were reclassified out of accbmulated other comprehenswe income and
recogmzed in earnmgs during the year.. T

Durmg December 2005 we entered into forelgn curren [optlons to.mitigate the rlsk associated with
changes in foreign currency exchange rates on our agreement to fund the HI Acqunsntlon price in British
Pounds. These options were sold in the 2006 first quarter and were carried at fair market value in other
current assets on the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2005. There were no foreign currency .
options outstandmg as of December 31, 2006. (see “Note 2: i mmary of Slgmflcant Accounting Policies—
Derivative Instruments”)

. NOTE 9: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equrpment at December 31, 2005 and 2006 re as follows:

j - ’ 2005 2006
: (in millions)
Land..... P $ 590 1,065
Buildings and leasehold lmprovemems e . l . 3,009 . 4335,
Furniture and (70111071113 11 A0 I ...... W 703 1,041 |
Property held for sale or development................ L 48 47
Construction in PrOgress. . . .....ouvvevnereeeearonres N P 32 44

- ‘ 4,382 6,532 °
Less accumulated depreciation .. ..............oooidiiiiiiiiii. (1,397) (1,549)
8 A N I $ 2,985 4,983
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At December 31, 2006, property and equipment included approximately $380 million of capital lease
assets, primarily buildings and leasehold 1mprovements fiet of $26 million of ‘accumulated- deprccnatlon
Amounts recorded under capital leases at December 31, 2005 were insignificant. .

NOTE 10: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses at December 31, 2005 and 2006 are as follows "

(in millions)

Accounts and nOtes PAYAbIE. . .. ..o e $139 429
Accrued compensation and benefits. ... ... e T, . 153 392
HHonors current point Hability(1) .. ... ovvvvinnieet et eeiieeeaennn, =126
DEPOSIES. . . . veeee ot ettt e 1 19
| "Deferred income .............. PR e [ S 19 50
ACCrued taxes . . ... e 37 . 80
' Insurance 1 reserves. e R S PO S w45 59
' Accrued intérest.!...... T O ST P P 37 51
| Foreign currency derivative payable.................coiiiiiiiieies 0 54 0 —
- Other accrued expenses .............. el P - 248 555
| TOAL. . ..o .. $772 1,901
' == ==
' (1) Asa ‘result of the HI Acquisition, the HHonors program is now consolidated (see “Note 2: Summary
| of Slgnlflcant Accounting Policies”). _ L
NOTE 11 LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt at December 31, 2005 and 2006 is as follows X
2005 2006
' : . (in millicns)
Industrial development revenue bonds at adjustable rates, due 2015........ $ 82 82
-, .,Senior notes, with an average rate of 8.0%, due 2007 to 2031(1) .......... 2,040 | 2,045
. Mortgage notes, 5. 8% to 8.6%, due 2007 to 2016.......... P 310 .. 289 .,
. 1.95% Collaterahzed borrowings, due2010 ... ...l -~ .. 463 454 |
" Chilean inflation-indexed note, effective rate of 7.65%, due 2009(1). ....... . 148 145
3.375% Contingently convertible,senior notes due 2023, ...l P w0 575 575
Capital lease obligations, 6.34% to 8.75%, due 2007102097, .. ..vven... I 142
Termlodn A, at adjuitable rates, due 2011. ... e AL — 1,302
“Term loan B, at-adjustable rates;due 2013......:..u.e..en.. ... S o= 283
Revolving Ioans at ad]ustable rates, duc 2011 S 1,634
B Other.....".- .............................. SRR S N I S e 4
= v o - o o L 3,619 6,968
Less current maturities of long-term debt. . ... .. U Teeaas (4D _(412)
Net long-term debt ............................................. ... 83572 6,556

(1) 'Interest rates include the'impact of interest rate’ swaps.
A (N 0 . i pi .

s
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In addition to our long-term debt, our consolidated-balance sheets include debt and capital lease
obligations related to variable interest entities consolidated und%:rFIN 46(R) that are non-recourse to us.
Non-recourse debt and capital lease obligations of non-controlled entities at December 31, 2005 and 2006

are as follows:

"

Mortgage note, 5.97%, due 2007.. ... e ea e P T .

Capital lease obligations, 6.34%, due 200710 2025 ............ i ....................
Other ..o e L

Less current maturities of non-recourse debt and capital lease obllgatlons of non-
controlledentities ........... ...l
Net non-recourse debt and capital lease obligations of non-contjolled éntities.........

1\

2005 2006
(in millions)
-$100 100
—_ 370
= _30
100 500
_— iy
$100 3%

Interest pald net of amounts capitalized, was $246 million, $244 million and $469 million in 2004,
2005 and 2006, respectively. Capitalized interest totaled $3 million, $8 million and $13 million in 2004,

2005 and 2006, respectively.

Debt maturities, including non-recoursz debt and capital lease obligations of non-controlled entities,

are as follows:

(in millions})

In February 2006, in connection with the HI Acqunsmon (see “Note 3: Purchase of Hilton
International”), we entered into new senior credit facilities in an initial aggregate principal U.S. dollar
equivalent of approximately $5.75 billion with a syndicate of t;manmal institutions. These facilities replaced
our $1 billion revolving credit facﬂity and are secured by a pledge’ of the capital stock of certain of our

wholly owned subsidiaries. The senior credit facilities consist of the followmg

e U.S. Dollar Denominated Revolver—5. year, $3.25 billion available in U.S. dollars Bnnsh Pounds,
Euros and Swedish Kronor or other currencies accept{ ble to the administrative agent, Interest is at
a variable rate depending upon our leverage ratio and!senior debt ratings, with initial borrowings at
applicable London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 150 basis points (which includes a 25
basis point annual facility fee) The capacity under our revolver was also used to support certain
outstanding letters of credit. Total revolving debt capac1ty of approximately $1.42 billion was

available to us at December 31 2006.

¢ Foreign Currency Denominated Term Loan A—S5 year, approximate equivalent of $2.32 'billion at
December 31, 2006, denominated in £675. million,/ €675 million and Australian $140 million.
Interest is at a variable rate depending upon our leverage ratio and senior debt ratings, with initial

borrowings at applicable LIBOR plus 150 basis pomtﬁ
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~ o US. Dollar Denominated Term Loan B—7 year, $500 l'I'lllllOn term loan avallable only in US.
dollars. Interest at LIBOR plus 137.5 basis points. -

2

We also have the option to increase the credit facilities by $500 million.”

- In February 2006, we borrowed an aggregate principal U.S. dollar equwalcnt of appr0x1mately $4.8
billion under these fac111t|es to partially fund the HI Acquisition.

Subsequent to our announcement in December 2005 of our agreement to acqulre the lodging assets of
Hilton Group ple, Standard & Poéor’s Ratings Group lowered our senior debt rating from BBB- to BB. In
addition, Moody’s Investor Services Jowered our senior debt rating from Baa3 to Ba2. These downgrades
are reflected in the interest rates and facility fee of our $5.75 billion senior -credit facilities. On
February 26, 2007, Moody’s Investor Services upgraded our senior debt rating to Bal.

Under the terms of the senior credit facilities, proceeds, if any, from the sale of certain owned
properties acquired as part of the HI Acquisition are required to be used for the repayment of our senior
credit facilities. In addition, we expect that excess cash flow, if any, will be used to repay outstanding debt
balances. :

" In addition to our new senior credlt facilities, our December 31, 2006 consolidated balance sheet
includes approximately $25 million of long-term debt, $140 million of capital lease obligations, and $400
million of non-recourse debt and capltal lease obligations related to obligations assumed in the HI
Acquisition.

In October 1997, we flled a shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission
registering up to $2.5 billion in debt or equity securities. At December 31, 2006, available financing under
the shelf totaled $825 million. The terms of any additional securities offered under the shelf will be
determined by market conditions at the time of issuance. :

In 2003, we sold $575 million of 3.375% Convertible Senior Notes due in 2023 in a private placement
transaction. The notes are convertible into approximately 25.6 million shares of our common stock at an
initial convérsion price of $22.50 per share of common stock, upon our stock trading at 120% ‘of the
conversion price for 20 consecutive days during the last 30 day period of a financial. quarter. As of
December 31, 2006, the conversion trigger was met, and the notes are convertible at the discretion of the
bond holders. No conversions have taken place as of December 31, 2006.

In November 2002, we entered into a derivative contract which swaps the fixed interest payments on
our $375 million 7.95% Senior Notes due 2007 to a floating interest rate equal to the six-month LIBOR
plus 415 basis points. In connection with our $100 million 7.43% bonds due 2009 denominated in Chilean
pesos, we have a derivative contract which swaps the principal payment to a fixed U.S. dollar amount of
$100 million and fixed interest payments at 7.65% of that amount.

As of December 31, 2006, approximately 53% of our long-term debt; including the impact of interest
rate swaps and excluding non-recourse debt and capital lease obligations of non-controlled entities, was
floating rate debt. -Our total debt, excluding non-recourse debt and capital lease obligations, has a
weighted-average life of approximately 6.1 years and a weighted-average interest rate of approximately
6.6%.

Provisions under various loan agreements require us to comply with certain covenants which include
limiting the amount of our outstanding indebtedness. Our revolving credit facilities contain two significant
financial covenants: a leverage ratio and a debt service coverage ratio. We are in compliance with our
financial covenants as of December 31, 2006.
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Provisions of the financing agreement related to our 7.95% collateralized borrowings due 2010

require that certain cash reserves be maintained and also restrict the transfer of excess cash generated by .

the related properties to us if net cash flow falls below a specified level (the cash trap). The cash trap
became effective in 2003 due to reduced cash flow from the COllftterali'zcd properties, primarily the Hilton
San Francisco. As of December 31, 2006, cash restricted under the terms of the collateralized borrowings,
including required reserves and the cash trap, totaled $214 milljon. The impact of the cash trap, which is
expected to remain in effect throughout 200|7, is not expected to have a material impact on our liquidity.

NOTE 12: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ‘
The estimated fair values of our financial instruments at December 31, 2005 and 2006 are as follows:

2005 ' 2006

. . . Carrying . Fair Carrying Fair
|Amount Value Amount Value |

N ' ' wd ‘ (in millions) :
Cash and equivalents and long-term marketable securities . 1,183 - 1,183 . ' 144 . 144
Restrictedcash.......coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaicanns . 182 182 293 293
Timeshare notes receivable (including current portion}.... .| . 351 356 454 . 459
Other notes receivable (including ¢urrent portlon) ........ 50 59 25 24
Derwatlveassets...................................;.. 107 107 58 38
Long-term debt (including current maturities) ............ (3,619) (3,849) (6,968) (7,384)
Derivative liabilities. .............coiiiiiiiiiiinnn, (6) (6) 3) 3)

. Qur estimates of the fair value of financial instruments at December 31, 2005 and 2006 were
determined using available market information and appllopriate valuation methods. Considerable
judgment is necessary to interpret market data and develo | estimated fair value. The use of different
market assumptions or estimation methods may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Cash Equlvalents, Long-Term Marketable Secuntles and Restricted Cash

The fair vatue of cash equwalents long-term marketable securities and restricted cash is estlmated
based on the quoted market price of the investments. '

Timeshare and Other Notes Receivable

]

The estimated fair value of tlmeshare and other notes I ceivable is based on recént market prices or
the expected future cash flows dlscounted at risk adjusted rates. '
Long-Term Debt

The estimated fair value of long-term debt is based on the quoted market prices for the same or
similar issues or on the current rates offered to us for hebt of the same remaining maturities and
considering the collateral. In determining-the current market rate for fixed rate debt, a market spread is
added to the quotéd yields on federal government treasury securities with similar maturity dates.

Derivative Instruments

The fair value of denvatlve assets and liabilities is based on the present value of estimated future cash
flow; including the use of foreigr currency forward exchange rates, as appropriate:
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NOTE 13: INCOME TAXES

The provisions for income taxes for the three years ended December 31 aré as follows:

2004 _2005 2006
{in millions)
Pre-tax income
U S e Ceaeean . $350 619 594
S0 T3 A .23 19 244
B 01 1 T $373 638 838
Current ’
Federal.'. ... ... ... .0 .. oo i i el 81140 207 102
Foreign ...t e 5 2 55
State and local . ........c..vviviiiieieniini.., PR 20 50 35
139 239 192
Deferred ‘
Federal. .. ... .. e (12) (89) 43
FOTIgN vt e PO — 1 24
Stateandlocal ... ... ... . e e — & =
o $127 166 259

During 2004, 2005 and 2006, we paid income taxes of $99 million, $209 million and $260 million,

respectively, net of refunds received.
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)

The income tax effects of temporary differences between financial and income tax reporting that gave

Foreign tax credits. .. ... e e e
Net operating loss carryforwards. ...................... "
" Compensation
INSUrance reServes . (. ... .veunrininninian i oninninnas
Deferred income ............ e e

.......................................

...................

2005 and 2006 are as follows:

- Other reserves

Systemfunds......... . ... ..ol s
Other.................. e .. ..

Valuation allowance .. .......o.onunnineeinennnnnn..

Deferred tax liabilities

Brands ........ .. .o e e
Amortizable intangibles .. .......... o,
Unrealized foreign currency gains ............... ... ...
Unremitted foreignearnings. ......... ... oo,
Property and equipment. . .............. ... ..

Prepaid royalties

Accrued interest. . ........ B AN AR e

Net deferred tax lability . . ........ ..o

The reconciliations of the Federal income tax rate to out
December 31 are as follows:

2005 2006
(in millions)

$ — 436
6 188
115 113
48 - 48
68 32
22 32
22 29
1 37

282 915
(11) (393)
271 522
(383)  (1,010)
(153) . (530)
— @301
— (@)
(186)  (203)
— (53)
(33) (49)
C105)  (44)
_® _ =
- (864 2,407
$(593 1,885

r effective tax rate for the three years ended

2004 2005 2006
(in millions) ~
Federal inCOmMe taX rate. .. ...oovveerenrneveenenrenenenebonas, e 35.0% 350 35.0
Increase (reduction) in taxes _

_State and local income taxes, net of Federal tax benefits ... ......... 4.7 59 2.1
Foreign taxes. . ....oovu il 13 4 94
Foreign earnings subject tolowerrates................J.......... — — (6.8)

‘Federal income tax credits......... e, PN 4.3) (4.1) (11.2)
Change in deferred tax asset valuation allowance .......[.......... (2.3) (5.1) 2.5
Closing of prior years’ tax audits.......... P — (8.0) —
Other ... e e (4) 1.9 (.1)

EFfective taX 1ate - .. ..ottt e R 340% 260 30.9
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Net operating loss carryforwards are generally recorded as deferred tax assets and are fully reserved
until evidence indicatcs that it is more likely than not that the benefit will be realized. Approximately
$6 million of net operating loss carryforwards cxpirc between 2008 and 2021 with approximately $5 million
of that amount expiring in 2009. Approximately $182 million of net operating loss carryforwards have
indefinite lives. Foreign tax credits are recorded as deferred tax assets. With respect to certain
jurisdictions, foreign tax credits are reserved to the extent evidence indicates it is more likely than not that
the federal tax benefit of those foreign tax credits will not be realized.

Our tax provision, deferred taxes and effective rate in 2006 were impacted by the utilization of
synthetlc fuel tax credits of approximately $11 million (sec “Note 5: Acquisitions and Dispositions”) and a
net benefit of $15 million, primarily due to the favorable resolution of IRS audits for the years 2002 and
2003 and the required trecatment of certain foreign currency gains. Our tax provision,.deferred taxes and
effective rate in 2005 were impacted by the utilization of synthetic fuel tax credits of approximately $17
million, a reduction in the valuation allowance for capital loss tax carryforwards of approximately $34
million and a net benefit of $28 million from the reversal of tax reserves no longer required as the result of
the completion of IRS audits of our 1997 through 2001 Federal income tax returns, partially offset by
increases in state tax reserves and deferred tax liabilities principally attributable to statutory tax increases
in- various jurisdictions. The provision for income taxes also reflects a net benefit of approximately
$2 million related to state tax credits received in 2005. Excluding the aforementioned items, our effective
rate was 34 percent in 2006 and 39 percent in 2005.

The reduction in effective rate for 2006 compared to 2005 is primarily the result of the HI Acquisition.
In 2005 and carlicr, our tax liability was principally comprised of U.S. and state taxes imposed on domestic
income. As a result of our acquisition of HI, our tax liability is comprised of both U.S. and foreign taxes
and js impacted by the composition of pre-tax income by jurisdiction. Income from foreign jurisdictions is
subject to lower levels.of tax resulting in an overall worldwnde blended effective rate that is lower than our
2005 effcctwe rate.

In accordance with the provisions of FAS 109, the reversal of reserve balances arising from the
completion of the IRS audits that relate to our acquisition of Promus Hotel Corporation in 1999 were
reflected as an adjustment of goodwill and did not impact our tax provision in 2005. These adjustments
resulted in a reduction of both goodwill and other liabilities totaling approximately $13 million in 2005.

Our tax provision, deferred taxes and effective rate in 2004 were impacted by a reduction in the
valuation allowance for capital loss tax carryforwards, primarily as a result of the sale of three Doubletree
properties and the sale of our interest in Travelweb. The 2004 effective rate also reflects the utilization of
Section 45K synthetic fuel production credits. Excludmg the impact of these items, our effective rate in
2004 was 38 percent.

NOTE 14: STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Five hundred million shares of common stock with a par vatue of $2.50 per share are authorized, of
which 404 million and 409 million were issued at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively, including
treasury shares of 22 miilion at both December 31, 2005 and 2006. We have 25 million shares of preferred
stock with a par value of $1.00 per share authorized for issuance. No preferred shares were issued or
outstanding at December 31, 2005 and 2006.
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There were no stock repurchases in the year ended December 31, 2006. During 2005, we repurchased
a total of 12.3 million shares of our common stock at a total cost of approximately $271 million. During
2004, we repurchased approximately 2.3 million shares of| our common stock at a total cost of
approximately $48 million. The timing of stock purchases is|at the discretion of management. As of
December 31, 2006, approximately 44.7 million shares remained authorized for repurchase.

We have a Preferred Share Purchase Rights Plan under which a right is attached to each share of our
common stock. The rights may only become exercisable undef certain circumstances involving actual or
potential acquisitions of 20% or more of our. common stock by Eertain people or groups. Depending on the
circumstances, if the rights become exercisable, the holder ma;} be entitled to purchase units of our junior
participating preferred stock, shares of our common stock or shares of common stock of the acquirer. The
rights remain in existence until November 2009 unless they are terminated, exercised or redeemed (see
“Rights Agreement” under Item 5). - ’

NOTE 15: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

We sponsor multiple domestic and international pension plans. We have a noncontributory retirement
plan in the United States (the “Domestic Plan”) which covers certain non-union employees. Benefits are
based upon years of service and compensation. The annual measurement date for the Domestic Plan is
December 31. Since December 31, 1996, employees have hot accrued additional benefits under *the
Domestic Plan. Therefore, the projected benefit obligation is ’equal to the accumulated benefit obligation.
Plan assets will be used to pay benefits due employees for service through December 31, 1996. As
employees have not accrued additional benefits since 1996, we do not utilize salary .or pension inflation
assumptions in calculating our benefit obligation for the Domestic Plan. . . '

- As a result of the HI Acquisition, we acquired multiplé employee benefit plans that cover many of our
international employees. These plans include a plan that covers workers in the United Kingdom (the “U.K.
Plan”) and a number of smaller plans that cover workers in various countries across the world (the
“International Plans”). The measurement date for both the UK. Plan and the International Plans is
December 31. : : , :

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine|benefit obligations at December 31 were as
follows® : ' - ' - - : o

: : : i International
Domestic Plan . U.K.Plan ~ Plans
_ o 05 - 2006 2006 3006
"Discount rate .. ... i . 53% 5.8 5.1 4.8 -
Salary inflation...................... - . — 59 ‘ 3.0
Pension inflation .................... - — 2.9 22
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December 31, 2005 and 2006 are as fol!ows

{

[

Benefit obligation at begmnmg of -

.................
H

Acquisitions and divestures, net . ...

Service cost. .. ..
Interest cost .. .. s _
~ Employee contributions .. .. ... S
* Actuarial loss (gain) .......... feer
Benefits paid. .. .

Curtailment gain

. Settlement gain .
Currency loss ...
Benefit obligation at end of year. .. ...

.................

.................

.................
.................
.................

...................

E T

Fair value of plan assets at begmmng

ofyear...... .

-----------------

Acquisitions and dlvcstures, net....
Actual return on plan assets........
Employer contributions ...........
Employee contributions...........

Benefits paid. .. ..
Currency gain. ..

..................

..................

Fair value of plan assets at end of

year............

................. .

The " rollforwards of our benefit obllgatlons and fair value of plan assets for the- ycars ended-

N

:

International ,

' Domestic Pian U.K. Plan Plans

2005 ¢ 2006 * 2006 2006
, (ln‘mllllons)

$324 328 — —

— 6 342 221

—_ — 9 11

17 17 15 8

- — , 2 —

8 (19) 17 4)

(21) (18) . ® (13)

— — - (2)

— - —. M
= = . 4 _9
5B M 0® 0B

I Inte;'n-at.lonal ‘
Domestic Plan - U.K. Plan Plans *
2005 . 2005 2006 __2006
(in millions) '

- $288 m e — —
—ee 7339 164
12 28 2 2
— — 8 12

. — — 2 —

(21) (18) ) (13)
= = 4 _4
s29 296 . 44 1D

¥

The accumulated benefit obligation for the U.K. Plan and the International Plans totaled $361 million
and $219 million, respectively, at December 31, 2006.

The investment objectives for the various plans are pi'eservation of capital, current income and long-
term growth of capital. Substantially all plan assets are managed by outswle investment managers., Asset
allocations are reviewed periodically.

For the Domestic Plan, equity securities include S&P 500 and S&P 400 index funds and foreign equity
funds. Equity securities also include our common stock in the amounts of $11 million and $16 million at .
December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively, representing approximately 4% and 5% of total plan assets in
each period. Debt securities are prlmarlly U.S. Treasury and government agency debt securities. The
expected long-term return on plan assets is based on assumed rates of return for the assets held of 4% to
7% for debt securities and 7% to 9% for equity securities.
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For the UK. and International Plans, plan assets are primarily in pooled funds managed by outside
investment managers. Equity securities are in global equity an reglonal international funds. Debt funds
are in fixed interest and index-linked bond funds. Property fnds are in a glohal real estate fund. The
expected long-term return on plan assets is based on assumed Tates of return for the assets held of 3% to
6% for debt securltles 7% 10 9% for-equity securities, and 6% th 8% for property funds.

The asset allocations as a percentage of total plan assets at December 31, 2005 and 2006, are as
follows: :

o International
Domestic Plan : U.K. Plan Plans(1)
- Percentage of . Percentage of Percentage of
Target Plan|Assets Target Plan Assets Plan Assets

. Allocation 2005 | 2006  Allocation 2006 2006
Equity securities. ..........oooiiiiiian, 50% 62 54 56 56 50
Debt securities ............cooiaoi 50 38 46 30 29 31
Property funds ......... e — - — 14 14 : 8
Other ............... F N _— _— - _— _'_-l ’ _I_l_
TOAl. .- o eeeeeeeeie e 100% ~100{ 100 100 100 100

(1) International Plans assets are managed to individual tJrget allocatlons depending on the plan and
region. , ’

At December 31, 2006, we have adOpted FAS 158 (see (‘Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies—New Accounting Standards”). The following tables provide the reconciliation between the
funded status of our plans and the accrued benefit cost llablhty on the consolidated balance sheets for the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 as well as the other components recognized in our consolidated
balance sheets:

International
Domestic Plan U.K. Plan Plans
2005 2006 2006 2006
(in millions)
Fundedstatus.................ooont. $(50) (18) 21 (50)
Unrecognized actuanal loss......... 47 _— — —
Unrecognized prior service cost ... .. 3 — — -
Net amount recognized at end of year .. $ — 18 21 (50}
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Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheéts consist of: -

[

. . . International -
Domestic Plan U.K. Plan Plans
2005 2006 2006 2006
: . {in millions) .
Noncurrent asset .................... $ — . | 21 6
Current liability ..................... —_ — — M
Noncurrent liability .................. — (19) — (55)
Additional minimum liability.......... (50) — - —
Intangible asset...................... 3 — — —
Accumulated other comprehensive
income, excluding.tax impact........ 47 — — =
Net amount recognized............... 3 — (18) 21 (50) -
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consist of:
Domestic International
! Plan U.K. Plan Plans
2006 2006 - __2006
) ! : (in millions)
Net actuarial loss (gain) .......... e Yea.e $16 (16) ®
Prior service cost-. ... .:-. PO U PR 2 — =
Net amount recognized. ..................coooiun. '$18 (16) -

. =l

The weighted-average ‘assumptions used to determine net periodic cost were as follows:

International -

Domestic Plan U.K. Plan Plans
2004 2005 + 2006 2006 2006
Discountrate .......... 6.0%- 55 53 4.7 44
Expected long-term . L ’
return on plan assets . . 73 7.3 13 . 7.1 5.5
Salary inflation......... = - ' — 5.7 26
Pension inflation . ... ... — — — 2.6 21°

Our annual benefit
the following:

" ‘

income (cost) for the years;ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 consisted of

International

Domestic Plan UK. Plan Plans
2004 20052006 2006 2006
(in millions)
Expected return on plan assets ......... $20 20 20 23 8
Servicecost............. e — — — 9 (11)
Interestcost ... ....cooivriiiiiinn s  an  an (15) &)
Amortization of prior service cost. . ... .. §)) (1) (1) — —
Curtailmentgain ..................... — — — — 1
Settlement gain. . ..................... — — — — 2
Amortization of netloss............... _—- 2 = —
Net annual benefit income (cost) ....... $ 1 1 = 1 (8




Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements R _ . L,
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We expect to contribute approximately $9 million to the U.K. Plan and approximately $14 million to
the International Plans in 2007, We do not expect to make any contribution to the Domestic Plan in 2007.
Amortization from accumulated other com-prehensive income| into net periodic benefit cost in 2007 of
actuarial ‘losses and prior service cost is not expected to be material for the Domestic, UK. or
International Plans. As of December 31, 2006, the benefits expected to be pald in the next five years and in
the aggregate for the fivé years thereafter are as follows: .

ot

Domestic . International

Plan UK. Plan . Plans
) . (in millions) *

2007 e e e $ 19 -1 11 -
2008 .. e e dedera e 19 11 12 -
2009 . S 19 12 e 12
2010 ....ouennnn. U e 19 13 13
71} § U P SUU 19 .14 14
2012 -2006 .o vvvve e e Jowr .. -8 . 68,

As of Januaty 1, 2007, the Domestic Plan and plans maintained for certain domestic hotels currently
or formerly managed by us were merged into a multiple employer plan. We are the sponsor of this plan
and as such could be liable to fund any contributions not funded by the owners of any of the properties
covered by the plan. As of January 1, 2007, the multlp}e emp10yer plan had combined assets of $332 mllllon
and a projected benefit obligation of $340 million. .

We also have plans covering qualifying employees and non-officer directors (the “Supplemental
Plans”). Benefits for the Supplemental Plans are based. upen years of service and compensation. Since
December 31, 1996, employees and non-officer directors have not accrued additional benefits under the
Supplemental Plans, These plans are self-funded by us and therefore have no plan assets isolated to pay
benefits due employees. At both December 31, 2005 and 3006 these plans have benefit obligations of
$10 million, which are fully accrued in our consolidated [balance sheets. Pension expense under the
Supplemental Plans for the years ended Diecember 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 was not significant.

Certain employees are covered by union sponsored, collectively bargained multi- -employer pension
plans. We contributed and charged to expense $19 million, $23 million and $21 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively, for such pl ns. Information from the plans’ administrators
is not sufﬁc1ent to permit us to determine our share, if any, of unfunded vested benefits

We have various employee investment plans whereby we contrnbute matchmg percentages of
employee contributions. The aggregate ¢xpense under thesé plans totaled $12 million, $13 million and $26
million in 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

.‘ -
'.
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NOTE 16: SEGMENT INFORMATION

Our operations consist of three reportable segments which are based on similar products or services:
Hotel Ownership; Managing and ‘Franchising, and Timeshare. The Hotel Ownership segment derives
revenue primarily from owned, majority owned and leased hotel properties. The Managing and
Franchising segment provides services including hotel management and licensing of our family of brands to
franchisees. This segment generates its revenue from fees charged to' hotel ‘owners. Managing' and
Franchising revenue includes reimbursements. from managed properties and franchisees for certain costs
incurred on their behalf, which are included in other revenue from managed and franchised properties in
the consolidated statements of income. The Timeshare segment consists of multi-unit .timeshare resorts.
This segment produces its results from the sale and financing of timeshare intervals and operating
timeshare resorts. Segment results are presented net of consolidating eliminations for, fee-based services at
the operating income level, without allocating corporate expenses, which is the basis used by management
to evaluate segment performance. ‘

Segment results for the three years ended December 31 are as follows:

2004 2005 2006
Ve ‘ ] : - . * (in millions})
Revenue 4 . - .
Hotel Ownership...... ... .. oo - $2215 2212 4,985
Managing and Franchising. ............... ... o oeant, 1,510 1,671 2,527
Timeshare................. S RO 421 554 - 650

$4,146° 4437 8,162

Operating income ‘ ‘ o .
Hotel Ownership.......... F oo 8394 +450 904 .

Managing and Franchising................. ...\ U .. 343 417 600
Timeshare . . e e e 99 129 152
Corporate and other unallocated expenses........... e (178) (191) . (382)
Total operating inCome. . ...........cooiiiiiiiia i, 658 B80S 1,274
Interest and dividend income ... ... e e <126 32 27
Interest eXpense. .t ....0v.oeeeueevennn.... SR DU U274 (259)  (498)
Net'interest from unconsolidated afflllates and non-controlled ' ‘ o
12 (O A L. (26) (26) (45)
Net gain ‘on foreign currency transactions. .. ..... e D — =24
Net other (loss) gain . ......... N aaeeeaans e PR N 5 w3 .. 72
. Loss from non-operating-affiliates’. ... ... 0 ..ol ® _an: (6
Income before taxes and minority and non-controtled mterests T 373 " 638 838
" Provision fOr iNCOME taXeS. . ... vvuvveerrvneeeinnnaanaeis (127)  (166)  (259)
Minority and non- -controlled 1nterests net......... (8 (12) - [U))
NEtINCOME . ..ottt e e e ieeeeans $ 238 ‘460 572 ¢
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Segment assets as of December 31 are as follows: -

. 2005 2006
. . ‘ . oo {in millions)
Assets ' ; . : ;
Hotel OWnership ... ... cooeeieiiieinenneiiaeeeaadoanennen ... 54283 9,681
Managing and Franchising. ..............coooiien. ) ... e 2,083 5,191,
TIMESNATE . o' eeere e oee e eeeenenn, e L . 659 1,078
~Corporateandother............. ... ’ ................ 1,718 531
Total assets .ot e v irnnnn. e U S Ve $8,743 16,481

. . Y A + 1
At December 31, 2006, the Hotel Ownership segment includes goodwill and brand values totaling

$2.05 billion and $1.02 billion, respectively, and the Managmg and Franchising segment includes goodwill
and brand values totaling $1.66 billion and $1.83 billion, respecuvely

The following table presents revenue and long-lived assej by geographical region (in millions):

Long-Lived Assets

£ ) Revenue
.

. 2004 2005 2006 2005 2006
: : . (in millions) (in millions})
United States ............. $4,095 4,382 4,926 $4,040 4,008
United Kingdom .......... ' 1 1 880 — 610
All other international ... .. 50 - 54 2,356 19 1,810
Total................ e $4.146 4,437 8,162 $4,059 6,428

Other than the United Kingdom, there are no individu l mternationa] countries which comprised at
least 10 percent of our total revenue for the years ended Deccmber 31, 2004, 2005 or 2006 or at least 10
percent of our total long-lived assets as of December 31, 2005: or 2006.

NOTE 17: LEASES

We lease hotel properties and land under operating and capital leases. At December 31, 2005 and
2006, we leased six and 196 hotels, respectively, under operating leases. We also operated seven hotels
under capital leases as of December 31, 2006. Two of the capital leases at December 31, 2006 are
consolidated under FIN 46(R) (see “Note 2: Summary of Sigmficant Accounting Policies—Investments”)
and are non-recourse to us. The increase in our operating zind capital leases is due to the HI Acquisition
on February 23, 2006 (see “Note 3: Purchase of Hilton International”). Our hotel operating leases may
require the payment of fixed rent payments, variable rent playments based on a percentage of revenue or
income, or the payment of rent equal to the greater of a mlinimum fixed rent or variable rent based on a
percentage of revenue or income. Our hotel leases expire tl]rough-2097, with varying renewal options. Qur
land leases represent ground leases for certain owned hotels and, in addition to minimum rental payments,
may require the payment of additional rents based on varying percentages of revenue or income. Total rent
expense incurred under our leases was 357 million, $55 mllhon and $528 million in 2004, 2005 and 2006,
respectively, which inchuded minimum rent payments of approxmately $41 million in both 2004 and 2005
and $269 million in 2006.
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Minimum lease commitments under non-cancelable operating and capital leases are as follows:

. . . \ . Operating Capital . Non-Recourse
December 31 ’ . Leases Leases Capital Leases
' . ! ’ (in millions)
2007 .. e $ 294 15 30 -
2008 .. e e 292 15 30
2009 . e e e 272 56 30
2010 ......... PRI e FUTTTR e " 266 8 T30
2 260, 8 30
Thereafter......... ... . . i 2,775 178 447
‘ . . $4,159 280 597
Less imputed interest at 6.34% .............c.ovieiiann.. ‘ 138 227
Present value of net minimum lease payments.. . .... e . § 142 370 .

NOTE 18: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

We have established franchise financing programs with third party lenders to support the growth of
our brands. As of December 31, 2006, we have provided guarantees of $16 million on loans outstanding
under these programs. In addition, we have guaranteed $27 million of debt and other obligations of
unconsolidated affiliates and third parties, bringing our total guarantees to approximately $43 million. Qur
outstanding guarantecs have terms ranging from one to 14 years. We also have commitments under letters
of credit totaling $110 million as of December 31, 2006. We believe it is unlikely that material payments
will be required under these guarantees or letters of credit.

L

In additton, we remain a guarantor on 12 operating leases sold as part of the sale of the Red Lion
hotel chain in 2001. We have' entered into an indemnification and reimbursement agreement with
Red Lion Hotels Corporation (“RLH”), which requires RLH to reimburse us for any costs and expenses
incurred in connection with the guarantee. The minimum lease commltment under these 12 operating
leases totals approxrmately $5 mllllon annually through 2020.

We have. also .provrded performance guarantces to certain owners of hotels we operate under
management contracts. Most of these guarantees allow us to terminate the contract rather than fund
shortfalls if specified performance levels are not achieved. In limited cases, we are .obligated to fund
performance shortfalls. At December 31, 2006, we have six contracts containing performance guarantees
with possible cash outlays totaling approximately $523 million through 2020. Funding under these
performance guarantees totaled approximately $2 million in 2006 and is expected to total approximately
$3 million in 2007. Funding under these guarantees in future periods is dependent upon the operating
performance levels of these hotels over the remaining term of the performance guarantees. In 2006 we
increased the reserve for the performance guarantee at a managed hotel by approximately'$12 million
based on our estimate of the guarantee payment that will be required at the end of the contract term in
2012. The charge is included in other operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income. Although we anticipate that the future opéfating performance levels of these hotels will be largely
achieved, there can be no assurance that this will be the case. In addition, we do not anticipate losing a
significant number of management contracts in 2007 pursuant to these guarantees.

Our consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2005 and 2006 include liabilities of
approximately $6 million and $18 million, respectively, for potential obligations under our outstanding
guarantees. Under certain circumstances, we may be obligated to provide additional guarantees or letters
of credit totaling $74 million at December 31, 2006,
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At December 31, 2006, we had contractual commitments of approximately $399 million for
construction and renovation projects at certain owned and majoxlity owned properties, including timeshare.
Our construction cofitracts contain clauses which allow us to cancel all or some portion of the work. The
minimum commitments would be for cost incurred under the contract and two to five percent of the
remaining contract value,

We are involved in various legal matters arising in the normal course of business, some of which
includé claims for substantial sums. Accruals are recorded when the outcome is probable and can be
reasonably estimated in accordance with FAS 5, “Accountinlg for Contingencies.” While the ultimate
results of claims and litigation cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not expect that the resolution of
all pending overtly threatened claims and litigation as of December 31, 2006 will have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated results of operations or financial po;smon However, depending on the amount
and the timing, an unfavorable resolution of some or all of these matters could materially affect our future
results of operations in a particular period.

NOTE 19: INSURANCE RECOVERIES : B

On August 29, 2005, Hurricane Katrina hit the Gulf Coa t, affecting two of our consohdated hotels;
the majority owned Hilton New Orleans Riverside and the wholly owned Hilton New Orleans Airport.
Both properties suffered some physical damage, and both properties were closed to paying guests for a
period following the:hurricane. We have insurance policies thdt provide coverage for physical damage and
business interruption, including lost profits, These policies alslo reimburse us for other costs and expenses
incurred relating to the damages and losses suffered. '

Based on the claims we filed and initial estimates from the insurance carriers, we expected to receive
insurance payments in excess of ‘the approximate $4 million ’net book value of the damaged assets. As a
result, the impairment charge related to the damaged assetﬁ was offset by the expected recovery in our
consolidated statement of income for the yzar ended December 31, 2005.

In addition, based on the claims we filed and initial estimates from the insurance carriers, we expected
that the other costs and expenses incurred during the period in the aftermath of the hurricane would be
less than the business interruption and other insurance procgeds to be received. As such, post-storm costs
incurred in 2005 totaling approximately $22 million were d)ff'set by the expected recovery and did not
impact results in the year. We received approximately $15 million in insurance recoveries in 2005,

In 2006, we recognized approximately $26 million of business interruption insurance proceeds. These
proceeds are recorded as owned hotel revenue in the consolidated statements of income. Additionally, we
recognized approximately $17 million .of insurance recove'nes related to building and property losses
during the year ended December 31, 2006, which are . recorded as net other gain in our consolidated
statements of income.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm - -t

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Hilton Hotels COrporathl‘l

We have audited the accompanymg consolidated balance sheets of Hilton Hotels Corporation, a -
" Delaware corporation, and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related
consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flow for each of the thfee years in the -
period ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these ﬁnanmal statements based on our audlts

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those. standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in ‘the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide-a reasonable basis for our oplmon -

-

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in.all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Hilton Hotels Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and
2005, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flow for each of the three years in 'the
period ended December 31, 20086, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) No.123(R), Share-based. Payment, on January 1, 2006_and
adopted FAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Penszon and Other Postretirement Plans, on
December 31, 2006. . . .

We also have. audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Hilton Hotels Corporation’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsormg Organlzauons of the Treadway Commlssmn and our
report dated February 26, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Los Angeles, California
February 26, 2007 b ] ) S
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . .
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

- The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Hilton Hotels Corp ration

We have audited managements assessment, included in the accompanying Annual Report on-
Form 10-K, that Hilton Hotels Corporation, a Delaware corploratmn, and subsidiaries (the Company)
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued .by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO] criteria). Hilton Hotels Corporation’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal’ qontrol over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over flnanmal reportmg Our responsxblllty is to express
an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal
¢ontrol over financial reporting based on our audit. : ) -

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountmg
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require th It we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal controliover financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an unde}'standing of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the , design and operatmg
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we con51dered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable, basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting i§ a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted -accounting ‘principles. A company’s internal

- control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance

of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provnde reasonable assurance thz%t transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of managemeént and directors of the company; and (3) prov1de reasonable aSsurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements. .

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over ffinancial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in|conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-K, management’s assessment of and
conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over flqlanmal reporting did not include the internai.
controls of the lodging assets acquired from Hilton Group plc on February 23, 2006, which is included in
the December 31, 2006 consolidated financial statements df Hilton Hotels Corporation and constituted
51% of total assets as of December 31, 2006 and 38% of revenue for the year then ended. Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting of Hilton Hotels Corporation also did not include an evaluation of
the internal control over financial reporting of the lodging assets acquired from Hilton Group ple on
February 23, 2006.
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In our opinion, management’s assessment that Hilion Hotels Corporation maintained effective:
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects,
based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, Hilton Hotels Corporation maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the
COSO criteria.

We have also audited, 'in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovérsight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Hilton Hotels Corporation as of December 31,
2005 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flow for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 of Hilton Hotels Corporation and our
report dated February 26, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

ézvmts‘ MLLP |

i . 3 ’ ! 1

Los Angeles, California
February 26, 2007
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
Quarterly Financial Data - - -

1st 2nd  © 3rd - dth o
. _Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total
in millions, except per share nmounts)

2006 .
Revenue..........ccooveeven... R $1,519 2,204 2,207 2,232 8,162
Operating income. ......... e 235 366 315 358 1,274
Netincome ............ L. e - _ 104 144 117 207 572
Basic EPS(1).............. e . $ .27 37 30 53 - 149
Diluted EPS(1)......cooooeeiirniiannneainae. 8§26 35 29 50 1.39
2005 , : .
Revenue........... P sl $1,076 1,176 1,102 1,083 4,437
Operating inCome. . ... ..ovuvenriniemiienen.. 163 246 203 193 805
Netincome .......ovveeriiiiniiirinnianenas 64 202 89 105 460
Basic EPS(1). .. ooiiiiiiiiiiieei e, $ .17 53 23 28 1.20
DilutedEPS ...... ... oo $ .16 49 22 .26 1.13

(1) EPS for the full year differs from the sum of quartel:ly E
computing EPS in the respective periods.

Comparable System-Wide Statistical Infdrmation(l)

Year ended December 31, 2006 Occupancy Average Rate RevPAR
3 5170 72.8%  $149.86 $109.11
Change from prior year. .. ........coo it iiiiineininan.s 1.0pts 8.2% 9.7%
Hilton GardenInn................. oo iiiiiiiaiiianns 71.4%  §111.34 $ 79.55
Change from prioryear. . .........cooovviiiiniannn.s e 1Apts 7.2% - 9.4%
DOUDIELTEE ..\t vve et 71.6%  $122.32 $ 87.60
Change from prior year. .. .........ooeviieeen... e 1.2pts 8.7% 10.5%
Embassy SUItes . . ..., .ottt 749%  $140.18  $105.05
Change from prior year......... PR lL.ilpts - 7.9% 9.6%
Homewood Suites by Hlton ................coevveveennn. " 758%  $108.31 $ 82.14
Change from prior year. ...............iiiuiiiianennn. 0.6pts 6.9% 7.8%
Hampton .. ... e 72.5%  § 94.69 $ 68.66
Change fromprioryear. ..........ooiiviiiiieienannen, 0.9pts - 18% - 92%
Scandic. ...voviii e e 651%  $109.92 $ 71.58
Change from prior year..............ovviviuneennaaen... ) L1pts 4.8% 6.7%
Conrad. ... i e i e 69.6%  $173.75 $120.94
Change from prioryear. .........oooiiiieiiiieiinienian (0.8)pts 13.3% 12.1%
11 T-) 795%  $145.13 $115.36
Change from prioryear. ........cooviiieieiieei e, 4.3pts 9.1% 15.4%

(2) Statistics are presented pro forma as if the HI Acquisition ha
our system as of December 31, 2006 which were in our hotel
1, 2005, Comparable hotels exclude data for HI franchise ho
to the interruption in operations as a result of Hurricane Kat

As of December 31, 2006 there were approximately 11,500
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d occurred January 1, 2005, Includes hotels in
system-or the hotel system of HI since January

rina.
stockholders of record.

PS amounts due to the required method of

tels and our owned hotels in New QOrleans due -




FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
Year ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006
(in millions, except per share amounts)
Operating data o :
Revenue................. e $ 3816 3,819 . 4,146 4,437 8,162
Netincome ..........oiiviiioiiiiinnnnn., $ 164 238 460 572
Basic earnings pershare ....................... $ 43 . . 62 120 149
Diluted earnings pershare ... '................. $ .43 60 1.13 1.39
Cash diyidends per common share ......... ceees % .08 .08 12 .16
Other information
Number of properties at year end : :
Owned(1).......... e 55 50 30 " 60
"Leased ............. 7 7 6 203
Jointventure................ ...l 67 . 65 54 53
Managed ................. e U 206" 206 210 343
Franchised....... e e, 1,808 1,900 2,054 2242
. Timeshare ............. ..o i, 30 31 34 34
Totalo.ooee 2,173 2,259 2,388 2,935
Available rooms at year end n . |
Owned(1)...........o i i, 32,526 31,068 22971 29,647
Leased ........cooviiiiii i 2,643 2,643 2,245 46,663
Jointventure. ...t 20,556 20,186 17,040 17,232
Managed ............ ... oL R - 52,088 51,380 53,1157 97,536
Franchised............ ... ... ..o, 237,026 249,391 275,350 306,660
Timeshare ....................... L 3,644 3,740 3,948 3,740
Total... ... 348,483 358408 374,669 501478

(1) Includes majority owned and controlled hotels.
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Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accountilig and Financial Disclosure -

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Diéclnsure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required
to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Securities Excﬂange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Security and Exchange Commission’s
rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated jand communicated to our management,
including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating|the disclosure controls and procedures,
management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can
provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is required
to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationshiﬂ of possible controls and procedures. Also,
we have investments in certain unconsolidated entities. As we do not control these entities, our disclosure
controls and procedures with respect to such entities are necesL,arily substantially more limited than those
we maintain with respect to our consolidated subsidiaries.

- As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act, we carried out an evaluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of December 31, 2006, the end of the period covered by this report. Based on the foregoing,
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level. | '

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Our internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed under the supervision of our :hief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilip of financial reporting and the preparation
of our financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with United States generally
accepted accounting principles.

As of December 31, 2006, management assessed the Lffectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting based on the framework established in {Internal Control—Integrated Framework”
published by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations gf the Treadway Commission (COSO). As
permitted by the Securities and Exchange Commission, management’s evaluation as of December 31, 2006 -
excludes the lodging assets acquired from Hilton Group plc on February 23, 2006. Such businesses
represent approximately 51% of our total assets as of December 31, 2006 and 38% of our total revenue for
the year ended December 31, 2006 (see “Note 3: Purchase of lJI-Iilton Group plc” under Item 8). Based on
this assessment, management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006 was effective,

Erst & Young LLP, the independent registered public a counting firm that audited our consoclidated
financial statements included in this Form 10-K, has issued an attestation report on management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006.
The report, which expresses unqualified opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of
our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is included in Part II—Item 8 under
the heading “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Intermal Control over
Financial Reporting.”
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There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during our most recent
fiscal quarter that have matenally affected, or are reasonably likely to materlally affect, our internal control
over financial reporlmg

Item 9B, Other Information

None.

PART 111
Item 19, Dlrectors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govemance

Certain of the information respecting executive officers required by thls Item is set forth under the
caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant” under Item 1. Other information respecting executive
officers, as well as the required information for directors, will be set forth under “Election of Directors”
and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our Proxy Statement, and reference is
expressly made to the Proxy Statement for the specific information incorporated in this Form 10-K.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics {the “Code of Ethics”) that applies to our
officers, employees and directors, including our principal executive officer, principal financial officer,
principal accounting officer and controller or persons performing similar functions. This Code of Ethics is
also posted on our internet website located at www.hiltonworldwide.com (click on “Investor Relations,”
then “Corporate Governance”), and is available in print to any person requesting a copy from the
Secretary of the Company at our World Headquarters at 9336 Civic Center Drive, Beverly Hills, California
90210. See “Additional Information—Available Information” under Item 1. In the, event of any
amendment to, or waiver from, a provision of the Code of Ethics that applies to any of the aforementioned
officers that relates to the requirements of Regulation S-K Item 406, we intend. to disclose such
information on our website.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The mformatlon reqmred by this Item will be set forth under “Executive Compensatlon in our Proxy
Statement, and reference is expressly made. to the Proxy Statement for the specific information
incorporated in this Form lO-K

Item 12. Security Ownershlp of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Certain of the information reqmred by this {tem will be set forth under “Securlty Ownership of
Certain Beneficial-Owners, Directors and Executive Officers” and “Election of Directors” in our Proxy
Statement, and reference is expressly made to the Proxy Statement for the specific information
incorporated in this Form 10-K.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of Decemb

er 31, 2006 with respect to shares of our

Common Stock that may be issued under our existing equity compensation plans:

Number of securities
to be issued upon

Weighted average exercise

Number of securities
remaining availabte for
future issuance under equity

exercise of price, 'of outstanding compensation plans
outstanding options, optiuns, warrants and (excluding securities
warrants and rights rights reflected in column (a))
Plan category (a) (b} (c)
Equity compensation ' :
plans approved by B
security holders(1). ... 20,476,176 $16.87(4) 20,553,501(6)
Equity compensation '
plans not approved by ‘ . o
security holders(2).... .2,495,501(3) N/A(S) 638,274(7)
Total. .. ... ooeeen. .. 22,971,677 $16.87(4) 21,191,775

(1) Consists of our 1990 Stock Option and Stock Appreciati

2

3

)

)
(6)

(7

on Rights Plan, 1996 Stock Incentive Plan,

1997 Independent Director Stock Option Plar and 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan. Of such
plans, the 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan is the only plan with shares remaining available

for grant as of December 31, 2006. -

Consists of our Supplemental Retirernent and Retention Plan and Directors’ Stock and Deferred

Retainer Plan, . o

Consists of 2,453,947 units under the Supplemental Retirement and Retention Plan and 41,554 units

under the Directors’ Stock and Deferred Retainer Pla
equivalent number of shares of Common Stock, subject
the respective plans.

Represents the weighted average exercise price of outst:
prices associated with grants of restricted stock units ar
Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan.

n that entitle -the recipients to receive an
to satisfaction of the conditions set forth in

inding stock options. There are no exercise
1d performance stock units under the 2004

.

There are no exercise prices associated with units include

Compensation Plan.

in the referenced plans.

Consists of 20,553,501 shares available for future lesuance under the 2004 Omnibus Equlty

‘Consists of 638,274 shares available for future issuance under the Supplemental Retirement and

Retention Plan. The Pirectors’ Stock and Deferred Retax‘ner Plan does not llmlt the number of shares

that may be issued thereunder.
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Supplemental Retirement and Retention Plan

The Supplemental Retirement and Retention Plan (the “SRRP”) was ‘approved by our Board of
Directors as of June 9, 2000. The SRRP is not a stockholder approved plan. Under the SRRP, a total of up
to 3,500,000 supplemental retirement benefit units (*Units”) may be granted to our senior officers. Each
grant of Units vests 25% per year over a four-year period and entitles the grantee to receive shares of
Common Stock on a one-for-one basis upon retirement, with limited distribution available during
employment. The SRRP also provides for an upward adjustment in the number of Units in a participant’s
-account based upon dividends and distributions paid by us with respect to the underlying shares of
Common Stock, until distribution of such shares, The Units will becomé immediately vested in the event of
a change of control of Hilton, as defined in the SRRP. Shares of Common Stock issued under the SRRP
consist of our treasury shares. As of December 31, 2006, 2,453,947 Units were outstanding under the |
SRRP and 638, 274 Units remained available for grant.

Directors’ Stock and Deferred Retamer Plan

The Directors’ Stock and Deferred Retainer Plan (the “Dlrector Retainer Plan”) was approved by our
Board of Directors on September 11, 2001, effective as of January 1, 2002. The Director Retainer Plan is
not a stockholder approved plan. The Director Retainer Plan provides non-employee directors the right to
elect to receive their annual retainer fees in the form of (i) cash; (ii) Common Stock payable on a quarterly
basis; or (iii) deferred units that vest immediately and are payable in shares of Common Stock on a one-
for-one basis subsequent to a director’s retirement from the Board. The number of shares of Common
Stock or deferred units received by a participant each quarter is based upon the closing price of our
Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the last trading date of such quarter. Shares of
Common Stock issued under the Director Retainer Plan consist of our treasury shares. As of
December 31, 2006, nine non-employee directors were eligible to defer all or a portion of their annual
retainer fees into Common Stock or deferred units under the Director Retainer Plan. As of December 31,
2006, 41,720 shares of Common Stock had been issued under the Director Retainer Plan and 41 ,954
deferred units were allocated to the accounts of non—employce directors.

Ttem 13. _Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this Item will be set forth under “Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions” and “Corporate Governance Information—Director Independence” in our Proxy
Staternent, and reference is expressly made to the Proxy Statement for the specific information
incarporated in this Form 10-K. .

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item will be set forth under “Election of Directors—Audit Fee
Summary” and “—Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy” in our Proxy Statement, and reference is
expressly made to the Proxy Statement for the specific information incorporated in this Form 10-K.

105




PARTIV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Index to Financial Statements
1. Financial étatemcnis:

'The consolidated financial statements and supplementary data are set forth under Part II—
Item 8 of this Form 10-K. ' : .

. 2. Financial ‘Statement Schedules:.

All schedules are inapplicable or the required information is included elsewhere herein.
(b) Exhibits ' ' '

Reference is made to the Index to Exhibits, immediately preceding thé exhibits to this
Form 10-K. ) ) -
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. ' SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be sngned on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, as of February 28, 2007.

. HILTON HOTELS CORPORATION
{Registrant)

By: . ° /s/ ROBERTM.LA FORGIA
Robert M. La Forgia -
Executlve Vice President and
' Chlef F mancnal Offlcer

i

Pursuant to. the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following "persons on behalf of the Reglstrant and in the capacmes indicated as of

February 28, 2007. - o : S {
/s/ STEPHENF. BOLLENBACH ~ . . . - /sf ROBERT M. LA FORGIA
Stephen F. Bollenbach - : «. .., -Robert M, La Forgia
Co-Chairman of the Board and Executwe Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
" Chief Executive Officer o (Chief Accounting Officer)
/s/ BARBARA BELL COLEMAN * ' ' /s{f BENJAMIN V. LAMBERT
Barbara Bell Coleman . Benjamin V. Lambert
Director - - 2 et Director ' ¢
. Lol - . N o
/s/ A. STEVEN CROWN : : - /s/ JoHN H MYERS
A. Steven Crown ‘ John H. Myers -
Director - T Coo Director
" Js/ CHRISTINE GARVEY : -, . /s/ JOHN L. NOTTER
Christine Garvey ' - - John L. Notter
Director _ Director
/s/ MATTHEW J. HART _ - /s/ DONNA F. TUTTLE
Matthew J. Hart _ N : Donna F. Tuttle
Director = o ' Director
/sf BARRONHILTON  , . . =~ . . /s{ PETER V. UEBERROTH
Barron Hilton - . ' Peter V. Ueberroth ‘

Co-Chairman of the Board to ©+ . - Diréctor. -
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Exhibit

Number

21

31

32

33

3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4.1

. 442

443

444

4.4.5

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description
Sale and Purchase' Agreement, dated as of December|29, 2005, among Registrant, Hilton Group
plc, Ladbroke Group International Limited, Ladbroke Group Limited and Town & County

. Factors Limited (incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to Registrant’s Current
- Report on Form 8-K, dated Deceraber 30, 2005)

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant, as amended (incorporated herein by
reference from Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form §-3
(File No. 333-18523))

Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant, relating to Exhibit 3. 1
hereto (incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 1997)

Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporanon' of Registrant, relating to Exhlblts 3.1 and
3.2 hereto (incorporated herein by reference from Appendix F to Registrant’s Registration .
Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-89437))

By-Laws of Registrant, as amended and restated (inorporated herein by reference from

[Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated January 23, 2006)

Indenture, dated as of July 1, 1988, between Registrant and Morgan _Guar_anty Trust Company

~ of New York, as Trustee, regarding Registrant’s Senior Debt Securities (incorporated herein by

reference from Exhibit 4.1 to Post. Effective Amendment No. 1 to Reglstrant s Registration”
Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 2-99967)) : :

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 30, 1992, between Reglstrant and Morgan
Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as Trustee, regarding Registrant’s Senior Debt
Securities, relating to Exhibit 4.1 hereto (mcorporaled herein by reference from Exhibit 4. 3to
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992)

Indenture, dated as of April 22, 2003, between Registrant and BNY Western Trust Company, as
Trustee, regarding Registrant’s 3.375% Convertible, Senior Notes due 2023, including the form
of Note thereof (incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to Regtstrant s Registration
Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-107159))

Indenture, dated as of April 15, 1997, between Registrant and BNY Western Trust Company, as
Trustee, regarding Registrant’s Debt Securities (mcbrporated herein by reference from
Exhibit 4.3 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form(8-K, dated April 15, 1997)

Officers’ Certificate containing terms of 7.95% Senior Notes due 2007 (incornorated herein by
reference from Exhibit 99 to Registrant’s Current Rleport on Form 8-K, dated April 15, 1997)

Officers’ Certificate containing terms of 7.20% Senior Notes due 2009 and 7.5% Senior Notes
due 2017 (incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated December 17, ]997) :

Officers’ Certificate containing terms of 8.25% Semor Notes due 2011 (incorporated hereln by
reference from Exhibit 99.01 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated February 12,
2001)

Officers’ Certificate containing terms of 7.625% Senior Notes due 2008 (incorporated herein by
reference from Exhibit 99.01 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated May 10, 2001)
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Exhibit : :
Number -Description
446  Officers’ Certificate containing terms of 8% Quarterly Interest Bonds due 2031 (incorporated
herein by reference from Exhibit 99.01 to Reglstrant s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
August 16, 2001) | e oo .

44.7  Officers’ Certificate containing terms of 7.43% Chllean Inflation Indexed (UF) Notes due 2009
(incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 99.01 to Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated August 29, 2001) -, . e .

44.8 = Officers’ Certificate containing terms of 7.625% Senior Notes due 2012 (incorporated herein by
reference from Exhibit 99.01 to Regtstrant s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated November 21,
2002) _ . - :

4.5 Credit Agreement, dated as of February 22, 2006 among Registrant, Bank of America, N.A., as
' Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and Issuing Lender, UBS Loan Finance, as
Syndication Agent, and the financial institutions signatory thereto (incorporated herein by
. reference from Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated February 28,
2006) ,

4.6 Loan Agreement, dated as of September 27, 2000, among Phoenix SP Hilton LLC,
S.F. Hilton, Inc., Chicago Hilton LLC, Short Hills-Hilton LL.C and McLean Hilton LLC, as
Borrowers, and Secore Financial Corporation, as Lender (incorporated herein by reference
from Exhibit 99.01 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 2000) .

4.7 First Amendment to Loan Agreement dated as of October 30, 2000, among Phoenix SP Hilton
- LLGC, S.F. Hilton, Inc., Chicago Hilton LLC, Short Hills Hilton LLC and McLean Hilton LLC,
as Borrowers, and Morgan Stanley Dean Witter Mortgage Capital Inc., as Lender, relating to
Exhibit 4.6 hereto (incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 99.02 to Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2000)

4.8 Rights Agreement, dated as of November 29, 1999, between Reglstrant and ChaseMellon
Shareholder Services, LL.C., as Rights Agent (incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 1
to Reglstrant s Registration Statement on Form 8-A, dated December 1, 1999)

4.9 . Amendment to Rights Agreement Changing nghts Agent dated as of February 15, 2001, -
between Registrant and The Bank of New York, as Rights Agent, relating to Exhibit 4.8 hereto
(incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 4.22 to Registrant’s Annual Report on
From 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000)

10.1 1990 Stock Option and Stock Appreciation Rights Plan of Regrstrant together wrth the Stock
Option Agreement relating thereto both as amended (incorporated, heréin by reference from
Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1990)* -

10.2 Amendment, dated January 20, 1994, to the 1990 Stock OpthI’l and Stock Appreciation Rights
Plan of Reglstrant relating to Exhibit 10.1 hereto (mcorporated herein by reference from
Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31,
1993)*

10.3  Amendment, dated January 19, 1995, to the 1990 Stock Optton and Stock Appreciation Rights
Plan of Registrant, relating to Exhibits 10.1 and 10.2 hereto {incorporated herein by reference
from Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s Annual- Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1994)* -
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Exhibit
Number

104

10.5

106 -

10.7
10.8
10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.12.1

10.12.2
10.13

10.14

December 31, 1999)*

* Description
Amendment, dated November 14, 1996, to the 1990 Stock Option and Stock Appreciation
Rights Plan of Registrant, relating to Exhibits 10.1, 10.2 and 10.3 hereto (incorporated herein by
reference from Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1996)* : .

Fourth' Amendment, dated as of December 31, 1998, to the 1990 Stock Option and Stock
Appreciation Rights Plan of Registrant, relating to E;xhlb:ts 10.1 through 10.4 hereto
(incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 99.9 to Registrant’s Current Report on’

-Form 8-K, dated January 8, 1999)*

Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Incentive Plan of Registrant (incorporated herein by
reference from Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Post- Effective Amendment No. 1 to Reglstranon
Statement on Form $-8 (File No. 333-04273))*

Amendment, dated as of November 14, 2001, to the Amended and Restated 1996 Stock
Incentive Plan of Registrant, relating to Exhibit 10.6(hereto (incorporated herein by reference
from Exhibit 10.11 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001)*

.1997 Independent Director Stock Option Plan of Reglstrant (incorporated herein by reference

from Exhibit 10.10 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended
December 31, 1997)*

First Amendment, dated as of December 31, 1998, tﬁ the 1997 Independent Director Stock
Option Plan of Registrant, relating to Exhibit 10.8 hereto (incorporated herein by reference
from Exhibit 99.11 to Registrant’s Current Report op'Form 8-K, dated January 8, 1999)*

Second Amendment, dated as of November 11, 1999, to the 1997 Independent Director Stock
Option Plan of Registrant, relating to Exhibits 10.8 nd 10.9 hereto (incorporated herein by
reference from Exhibit 10.15 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

Third Amendment, dated as of November 14, 2001, to the 1997 Independent Director Stock
Option Plan of Registrant, relating to Exhibits 10.8,/10.9 and 10.10 hereto (incorporated herein
by reference from Exhibit 10.17 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001)*

2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan of Regtstrant (mcorporated herein by reference from

Exhibit B to Registrant’s Proxy Statement, dated as of April 8, 2004)*

Form of stock unit grant agreement under 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensatlon Plan of
Registrant (incorporated herein by reference from ibit 10.12.1 to Registrant’s Annual

" Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Décember 31, 2004)*

Form of performance unit grant agreement under 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan of
Reglstrant (incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.12.2 t6 Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembet 31, 2004)* |

Amendment 2006-1 to 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan of Regtstrant relatmg to
Exhibit 10.12 hereto (incorporated herein by referehce from Exhibit 9.1 to Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2006)*

Directors’ Stock and Deferred Retainer Plan of Registrant {incorporated herein by reference
from Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-72906))*
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Exhibit

Number

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21
10.22
10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

. Description
Amendment 2005-1 to Dlrectors Stock and Deferred Retainer Plan of Registrant, relating to
Exhibit 10,14 hereto (incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.14 to Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)* .

Annual Incentive Plan of Registrant (incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit C to
Registrant’s Proxy Statement, dated as of April 8, 2004)* .

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan of Registrant, as amended (incorporated herein by
reference from Exhibit 10.6 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1991)* ! .

Amendment, effective April 1, 1994, to the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan of
Registrant, relating to Exhibit 10.17 hereto (incorporated herein by reference from

*Exhibit 10.10 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,

1994)*

Amendment, effective December 31, 1996, to the Supplemental ‘Executive Retirement Plan of
Registrant, relating to Exhibits 10.17 and 10.18 hereto (incorporated herein by reference from
Exhibit 10.19 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1996)*

Doubletree Hotels Corporatlon Supp!emental Executrve Retirement Plan, dated as of

- February 15, 1997, as amended by letter dated December 9, 1997 (incorporated herein by’

reference from Exhibit 10.29 to the Promus Hotel Corporation Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1998)* _— .

Directors’ Retirement.Benefit Plan of Reglstrant as amended (mcorporated herem by
reference from Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1991)*

First Amendment, dated July 31, 1997, to the Drrectors Retrrement Benefit Plan of Registrant, ,
relating to Exhibit 10.21 hereto (mcorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.22 to
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997)*

Retirement Benefit Replacement Plan of Registrant, as amended (incorporated herein by
reference from Exhibit 10.9 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1992)* : -

Amendment, dated as of January 1, 1994, to the Retirement Benefit Replacement Plan of
Registrant, relating to Exhibit 10.23 hereto (incorporated herein by reference from

Exhibit 10.12 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1993)*

Amendment, effective April 1,.1994, to the Retirement Benefit Replacement Plan of Registrant,
relating to Exhibits 10.23 and 10.24 hereto (incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.14
to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994)*

Amendment, effective December 31, 1996, to the Retirement Benefit Replacement Plan of
Registrant, relating to Exhibits 10. 23 10.24 and 10.25 hereto (incorporated herein by reference
from Exhibit 10.24 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended '
December 31, 1996)*

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan of Registrant (incorporated herein by reference from
Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-122019))*
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Exhibit
Number

10.28

10.29

10.30.

10.31
10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36 --

10.37

10.38 -

11 .

12

21

23
311

. 2005 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan of Registrant, as amended and restated

Form 10-K for the year ended Deczmber 31, 2005)*

.1999)* L

-Employment Agreement, dated as of March 10, 2006, between Hilton U.X. Hotels Limited and

" Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges .............. B PR
_ List of Registrant’s Subsidiaries ............cooodiiiiiiiiiiiiis e U

Description
Amendment 2005-1 to the Executive Deferred Compelnsation Plan of Registrant, relating to
Exhibit 10.27 hereto (incorporated herein by refcrenc? from Exhibit 10.27 to Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)*

(incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.28 to Registrant’s Annual Report on

Promus Hotel Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated
(incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.27 I{o the Promus Hotel Corporation Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998)* .

Supplemental Retirement and Retention Plan of Reg strant, dated as of June 1, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.42 to Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000)* f

First Amendment to the Supplemental Retirement and Retention Plan of Registrant, relating to
Exhibit 10.31 hereto (incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.46 to Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dechember 31, 2001)* o

* Form of Change of Control Agreement between Registrant and each of Matthew J. Hart,

Madeleine A. Kleiner and Robert M. La Forgia (inco{rporated herein by reference from
Exhibit 10.43 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
First Amendment to form of Change of Control Agreement, relating to Exhibit 10.33 hereto
(incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.48/to Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001)* :

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of November 11, 2004 and amended

. as of January 27, 2005, between Registrant and Steph:en F. Bollenbach (incorporated herein by

reference from Exhibit 10.30 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004)* . . ~ .

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2006, between Registrant and
Stephen F. Bollenbach, relating to Exhibit 10.35 hereto (incorporated herein by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated April 6, 2006)*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated as of January 18, 2007, between Registrant and
Stephen F. Bollenbach, relating to Exhibits 10.35 and 10.36 hereto (incorporated herein by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated January 19,
2007)* :

Ian R. Carter (incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated March 14, 2006)* .

Computation of Per Share Earnings.............. B IR e

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. .. ...

Certification of Chief Executive Qfficer pursuant to |Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
204 72 L R R
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Exhibit .

Number : : Description -
312 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 ....... C e e e et
321 Certiftcation of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
: 2002 e e
322 Certification of Chief Fmancnal Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 s e

99 ° - Undertakings ..... e e e e !

Manageinent contracts or compensatory pilans or arrangemeﬁts required to be filed as exhibits to this
Form 10-K by Item 601(b)(10)(iii) of Regulation S-K, previously filed where indicated and
incorporated herein by reference.

Pursuant to Regulation §229.601, Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of Reguiation S-K, upon request of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, the Registrant hereby undertakes to furnish a copy of any unfiled
instrument which defines the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Registrant and its consolidated
subsidiaries (and for any of its unconsolidated subsidiaries for which financial statements are required to
be filed) wherein the tatal amount of securities authorized thereunder does not cxceed 10% of the total
consolidated assets of the Registrant.
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